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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Separate and consolidated financial statements al Pecember 2011

Dear Shareholders,

The separate and consolidated financial statesreentat and for the year ended
31 December 2011, submitted for your approval, sh@spectively, a profit of Euro 19,258
thousand and a profit attributable to the ownerthefparent of Euro 23,446 thousand.
In 2011, the Cairo Communication Group continuedperate as a publisher of magazines and
books (Cairo Editore/Editoriale Giorgio MondadomdaCairo Publishing), as a multimedia
advertising broker (Cairo Pubblicita) for the safeadvertising space on TV, in print media, on
the Internet and in stadiums, and as operatortefiet sites (Il Trovatore).
In 2011, the short and medium-term economic unteytabegan to deteriorate — starting
especially from autumn — reflecting the overallmmmic-financial scenario.
According to AC Nielsen figures, advertising invaents in Italy in 2011 amounted to
approximately Euro 8.6 billion, down 3.8% versus fitevious year. Nielsen’s analysis by media
shows that in 2011:
= the magazine advertising market dropped by 3.7%u&eR010, when it had slid by 5.4%
versus 2009,
= the TV advertising market fell by 3.1% versus 20d@gen it had progressed by 6% versus
2009.

Against this backdrop, in 2011 current operatinsules for the Cairo Communication Group

surged versus last year, with gross operating (p{&BITDA) of approximately Euro 39.5
million (+31.6%) and operating profit (EBIT) of amgximately Euro 35.9 million (+36.6%). The
2011 profit attributable to the owners of the paame to approximately Euro 23.4 million.
Mention must be made that the financial year 20dd &lso included non-recurring income from
the Cairo-Telepiu arbitration, as illustrated i t2010 annual financial report, in the paragraph
on “Management Performancef the Cairo Communication Group - Consolidated figures”
contained in theDirectors’ Report and in the notes to the constéidaand separate financial
statements at 31 December 2010 regarti®ifper operating revenues - non-recurring income
from Cairo-Telepiu arbitration”

Looking at each business segment, in 2011:

- for publishing, gross operating profi{fEBITDA) and operating profi{EBIT) were up

versus the previous year, reaching Euro 19.6 milamd Euro 18.2 million respectively,

despite the lower number of issues of “Settimamafgu” versus 2010 (52 instead of 53),



with a drop of approximately Euro 0.3 million ingfits, the cut price (from 1 Euro to 50
cents) of six issues of “Dipiu TV”, with a drop approximately Euro 1 million, and costs
of Euro 0.3 million, mainly for personnel, incurred2011 during the planning stage of the
two new magazines scheduled for 2012. In OctobairodEditore chose Riccardo Signoretti
and Marisa Deimichei as the editors-in-chief of ta@w weeklies. The first, “Settimanale
Nuovo”, led by Riccardo Signoretti, debuted on neasds on 19 January 2012 (the first 2
issues at a launch price of 50 cents), and thé €irgssues posted average sales of
approximately 419 thousand copies, a highly sdtigfyesult that even beats forecasts. The
second, a women’s weekly, will be launched in 2012;

- for advertising, gross operating profit (EBITDA) and operating fitr(EBIT) from current

operations surged versus the previous year, regafeispectively Euro 19.9 million and
Euro 17.7 million, as a result mainly of the incgedn TV advertising revenues (+30.1%
overall). Advertising sales on LA7, approximatelyr& 167.5 million, were up 32.5%
versus 2010.
In 2011, LA7 audience shares confirmed the trerad ttad started in autumn 2010 and
increased by 24.4% (3.82% average all-day sharsuse3.07% in 2010). Specifically, the
8PM newscast’s average share reached 8.4% in 286ls/4.22% in 2010, and continued
to enjoy widespread exposure across the media.llExteesults were also achieved by the
other news and in-depth programmes, especiallyLtipfedele” (6% average share versus
3.71% in 2010), "Otto e mezzo” (6.69% average sharsus 3.91% in 2010) and the new
programmes “ltalialand nuove attrazioni” (9.97% ragee share in 2011) and “Piazza Pulita”
(6.43% average share in 2011).

PERFORMANCE

Cairo Communication Group — Consolidated figures

The mainconsolidated income statement figure®f 2011 can be compared as follows with
those of 2010:



2011 2010

(€ thousands) Current Non- Total Current Non- Total
operations recurrin operations recurring

g items items
Gross operating revenue 316,635 - 316,635 271,456 271,456
Advertising agency discounts (35,086) - (35,086) (27,896) - (27,896)
Net operating revenue 281,549 - 281,549 243,560 - 43560
Change in inventory (124) - (124) (35) - (35)
Other income 2,567 - 2,567 2,871 - 2,871
Non-recurring income from arbitration - - - - 6,792 6,792
Total revenue 283,992 - 283,992 246,396 6,792 258,18
Production cost (220,854) - (220,854) (194,610) -194(610)
Personnel expense (23,630) - (23,630) (21,753) - 1,768)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 39,508 - 39,508 30,033 6,792 36,825
Amortization, depreciation, (3,584) - (3,584) -
provisions and impairment losses (3,738) (3,738)
Operating profit 35,924 - 35,924 26,295 6,792 380
Net financial income 1,327 - 1,327 349 - 349
Income (loss) on investment (765) - (765) 1 - 1
Pre-tax profit 36,486 - 36,486 26,645 6,792 33,437
Income tax (13,027) - (13,027) (9,518) (3,122) 61D)
Non-controlling interests 3) - 3) (1) - (1)
Profit from continuing operations
attributable to the owners of the
parent 23,456 - 23,456 17,126 3,670 20,796
Loss from discontinued operations (20) - (20) (67) - (67)
Loss from discontinued operations
attributable to non-controlling interests - - - - - -
Loss from discontinued operations
attributable to the owners of the (20) - (20) (67) - (67)
parent
Profit attributable to the owners of 23,446 23,446 17,059 3,670 20,729
the parent -

In the schedules of the consolidated income staterdoe 2010 appearing in this directors’
report, income arising from the Cairo-Telepiu adtibn is shown separately owing to its non-
recurring nature.

As for the preparation of the consolidated finahattements at 31 December 2010, loss
attributable to the owners of the parent in DigleS.r.l. in liquidation has been shown separately
under “loss from discontinued operations”.

In 2011 looking at_current operations:

- consolidated gross revenuas approximately Euro 319.2 million (Euro 274.@ion in

2010), which comprise operating revenue of Euro.@Xfillion and other revenue of
Euro 2.6 million, up 16.3% overall versus 2010,

- consolidated gross operating profiEBITDA), amounting to approximately Euro 39.5

million, was up 31.6% versus 2010 (Euro 30 million)



- operating profit(EBIT) amounted to approximately Euro 35.9 milliagising by 36.6%
versus 2010 (Euro 26.3 million),

- profit from current operations attributable to the ownefsthe parent came to
approximately Euro 23.4 million, up 37.4% versud@QEuro 17.1 million).

Including non-recurring income from the Cairo-Teéleprbitration, in 2010 consolidated gross

operating profit (EBITDA) and operating profit (EBl had amounted to approximately Euro

36.8 million and approximately Euro 33.1 milliorspectively. Profit attributable to the owners

of the parent had come to approximately Euro 20llfom

The variation in financial income is mainly duett® variation in interest rates versus 2010

(1.19% average 1-month Euribor in 2011 versus 0.5¥2010).

Investment income refers to the effect of the mesmant of the investment in the associate

Dmail Group S.p.A.

The Groupstatement of comprehensive incomean be analyzed as follows:

(€ thousands) 2011 2010

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Profit attributable to the owners of the parent 23,446 20,729
Loss on measurement of available-for-sale financial

assets (8) (1,775)
Total comprehensive income 23,438 18,954

Loss on measurements of available-for-sale findrasaets, equal to Euro 8 thousand, refers to
the adjustment of the carrying amount of the invesit in the listed company Dmail Group
(765,000 shares, or 10% of the share capital)hatdate taken as the basis to reclassify the
investment from “investments in other companiesVditable for sale” to “investments in

associates”, as illustrated in Note iBthe consolidated financial statements at 31ebder

2011“Investments and non-current financial assets”

The Group’s performance can be read better by amgythe 2011 results bgore business

(publishing, advertising and Il Trovatore) vershgge of 2010:



2011 Publishing Advertising Trovat Unalloc Intra- Total
ore ated group
(€ thousands) Current Non- operatio
operations recurring ns
items
Gross operating revenue 100,181 246,778 - 354 - (30,678) 316,635
Advertising agency discounts - (35,086) - - ,(8B)
Net operating revenue 100,181 211,692 - 354 0 &®B) 281,549
Change in inventory (124) - - - - - (124)
Other income 1,872 695 - - - - 2,567
Non-recurring income from arbitration - - - - - - -
Total revenue 101,929 212,387 - 354 0 (30,678) 282,
Production cost (65,571) (185,665) - (296) - 30,678(220,854)
Personnel expense (16,746) (6,852) - (32) - (23,630)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 19,612 19,870 - 26 0 0 39,508
Amortization, depreciation, provisions ¢  (1,416) (2,170) - 2 - (3,584)
impairment losses
Operating profit (EBIT) 18,196 17,700 - 28 0 0 35,924
Net financial income 177 1,151 - (2) - - 1,327
Loss on investment - (765) - - - (765)
Pre-tax profit 18,373 18,086 - 27 0 0 36,486
Income tax (6,451) (6,554) - (22) - - (13,027)
Non-controlling interests - - - 3) - - 3)
Profit from continuing operations 11,922 11,532 - 2 0 0 23,456
attributable to the owners of the parent
Loss from discontinued operations - - - - (20) 0 10)(
Profit 11,922 11,532 - 2 (10) 0 23,446
2010 Publishing Advertising Trovato- Unalloc Intra- Total
re ated group
(€ thousands) Current Non- Operat
operations recurring ions
items
Gross operating revenue 101,203 197,227 - 344 - (27,318) 271,456
Advertising agency discounts - (27,896) - - - (27,896)
Net operating revenue 101,203 169,331 0 344 0 @&B) 243,560
Change in inventory (35) - - - - - (35)
Other income 1,958 913 - - - - 2,871
Non-recurring income from arbitration - - 6,792 - - - 6,792
Total revenue 103,126 170,244 6,792 344 0 (27,318) 253,188
Production cost (68,628) (153,041) - (259) - 27,318194,610)
Personnel expense (16,194) (5,526) - (33) - - (21,753)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 18,304 11,677 6,792 5 0 0 36,825
Amortization, depreciation, provisions (1,489) (2,247) - ) - (3,738)
and impairment losses -
Operating profit (EBIT) 16,815 9,430 6,792 50 0 0 Iy7
Net financial income - 1 - - - - 1
Loss on investment 61 289 - (1) - - 349
Pre-tax profit 16,876 9,720 6,792 49 0 0 33,437
Income tax (5,701) (3,774) (3,122) (43) - - (12,640)
Non-controlling interests - - - (1) - - 1)
Profit from continuing operations 11,175 5,946 3,670 5 0 0 20,796
attributable to the owners of the
parent
Loss from discontinued operations - - - - (67) - (67)
Profit 11,175 5,946 3,670 5 (67) 0 20,729




Gross operating revenuein 2011, split up by core business segment (philbigs advertising

and Il Trovatore), can be analyzed as follows vethe amounts of 2010:

Gross revenue 2011
(€ thousands)
Publishing  Advertising Trovatore Intra-group Total
eliminations
Magazine over-the-counter sales 66,338 - - - 66,838
Print media advertising 30,074 41,039 - (29,860) 41,253
TV advertising - 201,768 - - 201,768
Stadium signage - 2,094 - - 2,094
Internet advertising 19 1,275 38 - 1,332
Subscriptions 3,126 - - - 3,126
Books and catalogues 1,377 - - - 1,377
Other revenue - 602 316 (818) 100
VAT relating to publications (1,253) - - - (1,253)
Total gross operating revenue 100,181 246,778 354 (30,678) 316,635
Other revenue 1,872 695 - - 2,567
Revenue from current operations 102,053 247,473 354 (30,678) 319,202
Non recurring arbitration income - - - - -
Total revenue 102,053 247,473 354 (30,678) 319,202
Gross revenue 2010
(€ thousands)
Publishing  Advertising Trovatore Intra-group Total
eliminations
Magazine over-the-counter sales 70,978 - - - 70,978
Print media advertising 26,675 38,918 - (26,501) 39,092
TV advertising - 155,058 - - 155,058
Stadium signage - 1,571 - - 1,571
Internet advertising - 1,092 28 - 1,120
Subscriptions 2,883 - - - 2,883
Books and catalogues 1,970 - - - 1,970
Other revenue - 588 316 (817) 87
VAT relating to publications (2,303) - - - (1,303)
Total gross operating revenue 101,203 197,227 344 (27,318) 271,456
Other revenue 1,958 913 - - 2,871
Revenue from current operations 103,161 198,140 344 (27,318) 274,327
Non recurring arbitration income - 6,792 - - 6,792
Total revenue 103,161 204,932 344 (27,318) 281,119




The mainconsolidated statement of financial positionas at 31 December 20ldan be

compared with the situation as at 31 December 2010:

(€ thousands) 31/12/2011 31/12/2010
Balance sheet

Property, plant and equipment 2,724 2,656
Intangible assets 9,282 9,552
Financial assets 1,540 2,319
Deferred tax assets 4,734 4,480
Net current assets (3,170) (1,147)
Total assets 15,110 17,860
Non-current borrowings and provisions 6,081 6,015
(Net financial assets)/Net debt (54,701) (58,339)
Equity attributable to the owners of the parent 783, 70,184
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests 3 0
Total equity and liabilities 15,110 17,860

Mention must be made that:

- at their Meeting of 28 April 2011 the shareholdapproved the distribution of a dividend of
Euro 0.25 per share, inclusive of tax, for a tofatEuro 19.4 million;

- on 30 November 2011, the Board of Directors remwlio distribute to the Shareholders an
interim dividend for financial year 2011 of EurdlB.(inclusive of tax), for a total of Euro
11.7 million, of which Euro 10.2 million had beeistiibuted as at 31 December 2011.

In 2011, as part of the share buy-back plans, 400teasury shares were sold (0.511% of the

share capital) following entry in the shareholdisgucture of an institutional investor of

prominent standing, at a unit price of Euro 3.00g®&re, equivalent to a total value of Euro 1.2

million. As at 31 December 2011, Cairo Communigati@ld a total of 371,326 treasury shares,

or 0.474% of the share capital, subject to art.72@5 of the Italian Civil Code.

The consolidatedet financial assetsas at 31 December 2011, compared with the situatioat

31 December 2010, can be summarized as follows:

(€ thousands) 31/12/2011 31/12/2010 Change

Cash and cash equivalents 54,701 58,260 (3,559)
Current financial assets - 79 (79)
Total 54,701 58,339 (3,638)

To analyze the major financial indicators, the astricture as at 31 December 2011 can be

examined using a reclassified statement showing#sing liquidity/settlement:
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31/12/2011 31/12/2010
(€ thousands)
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible asset 12,007 12,208
Financial assets 1,540 2,319
Deferred tax assets 4,734 4,482
Total non-current assets 18,281 19,009
Current assets
Inventory 3,389 2,952
Trade receivables (unavailable liquid funds) 188,0 93,942
Other unavailable liquid funds 8,988 14,934
Total current operations assets 120,463 111,828
Available liquid funds 54,701 58,260
Total current assets 175,164 170,088
Invested capital 193,445 189,097
Equity 63,730 70,184
Consolidated liabilities
Post-employment benefits 6,081 6,015
Non-current bank loans - -
Total consolidated liabilities 6,081 6,015
Current liabilities
Current operating liabilities 123,633 112,898
Current bank loans - -
Total current liabilities 123,633 112,898
Financing capital 193,445 189,097
Profit 23,446 20,729
Operating profit (EBIT) 35,924 33,087
Sales 281,549 243,560

An analysis of the financial position of the Grouging the main financial indicators indicates

that the Cairo Communication Group is suitably taged to maintain financial equilibrium in

the medium/long term and has a very sound equigjtipa as it has significant cash resources,

and generates positive results and can finangaiitent operations even within the dynamics of

its current assets.
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(€ thousands)

Description 31/12/2011 31/12/2010

Solvency indicators
Current assets less current

Current assets-current liabilities

liabilities margin 51,530 57,192

Current assets less current Current assets /current liabilities

liabilities ratio 1,42 1,51
(Unavailable liquid funds + available

Treasury margin liquid funds)-current liabilities 48,141 54,240
(Unavailable liquid funds + available

Current ratio liquid funds)/current liabilities 1,39 1,48

Non-current asset financing

indicators

Own funds less fixed assets margin ~ Own funds — non-current assets 45,449 51,177

Own funds less fixed assets ratio Equity /non-current assets 35 3.7

Own funds plus non-current (Own funds+ non-current liabilities) —

liabilities less non-current assets non-current assets

margin 51,530 57,192

Own funds plus non-current (Own funds+ non-current liabilities)/

liabilities/non-current assets ratio non-current assets 3.8 4.0

Financing structure indicators

Total debt ratio (non-current + current liab.)Own funds 2.0 1.7

Third parties funds /Own funds

Financing debt ratio 0.0 0.0

Current operating assets - current

operating liabilities (3,171) (1,068)

Profitability indicators

ROE Profit /Own funds 36.8% 29.5%

ROE current operations Profit curr. op./Own funds 36.8% 24.3%

Operating profit /

ROI (Inv. op. capital — op. liabilities) 51.5% 43.4%
Operating profit current operations/

ROI current operations (Inv. op. capital — op. liabilities) 51.5% 34.5%

Other indicators

Receivables turnover 117 117

Solvency indicators (liguidity)represent the ability of the company to maintdiorsterm

financial equilibrium, to meet short-term outflowsurrent liabilities) with existing cash

(available liquid funds) and short-term inflows &wailable liquid funds). Specifically, available

and unavailable liquid funds fully cover curreraMilities. The statement is used to analyze

overall dynamics and origins of cash movements.

The financing structurand_non-current assets financingdicators express the strengthequity,

and the ability of the company to maintain finahequilibrium in the medium/long term, which

depends on:

- the methods of funding medium/long term commitments

- the composition of funding sources.
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Specifically, these indicators, overall, disclobattthere are no risks related to stability in the
composition of the assets and liabilities/equity.

Regarding profitability indicators, the ROl (Retu®n Invested capital) is an indicator that
expresses the level of efficiency/effectivenessmporate management. Invested capital as the
denominator is restated for an equivalent amouniatilities without explicit maturity since
their cost is substantially included in operatimgfi.

As further non-financial key performance indicatotise Group mainly uses data relating to
distribution that indicate the “success” of eadietiwhere performance may be analyzed as

follows, for weeklies and monthlieADS):

. . . . Dipiu’ TV .
Weeklies Dipiu’ Diva & Donna Dipiu’ TV ) TV Mia
Cucina
?(I)DlSlNovember 674,186 199,078 436,590 415,923 179,390
gglsoNOVGmber 717,832 202,223 468,767 405423 174,403
-6.08% -1.56% -6.86% 2.59% 2.86%
Monthlies For Mgn Natural Bell'ltalia BellEuro- _In . Airone Gardenia
EE—— Magazine Style pa Viaggio

ADS November
2011
ADS November
2010

89,489 81,583 62,922 33,097 36,713 72,650 61,198

99,623 88,363 64,709 34,012 37,886 77,911 56,970

-10.17% -7.67% -2.76% -2.69% -3.10% -6.75% 7.42%

These figures show how circulation managed to goddind, despite the tough market in 2011.

Cairo Communication S.p.A. - Parent performance

The mainParent income statement figuredor 2011 can be compared as follows versus those
of 2010:

13



2011 2010
Current Non- Total Current Non- Total
operations  recurring operations recurring
items items

Gross operating revenue 140,487 - 140,487 137,472 - 137,472
Advertising agency discounts } - } } } )
Other income 261 - 261 528 - 528
Non-recurring income from - - 9,944 9,944
arbitration -
Total revenue 140,748 - 140,748 138,000 9,944 147,944
Production cost (127,125) - (127,125) (129,470) - (129,470)
Personnel expense (2,773) - (2,773) (2,469) - (2,469)
Gross operating profit
(EBITDA) 10,850 - 10,850 6,061 9,944 16,005
Amortization, depreciation,
provisions and impairment losses (218) - (218) (222) - (222)
Operating profit (EBIT)

10,632 - 10,632 5,839 9,944 15,783
Net financial income 952 - 952 237 - 237
Income on investment 11,674 - 11,674 7,462 - 7,462
Pre-tax profit 23,258 - 23,258 13,538 9,944 23,482
Income tax (3,990) - (3,990) (2,394) (3,122) (5,516)
Profit from continuing
operations 19,268 - 19,268 11,144 6,822 17,966
Loss from discontinued
operations (10) - (10) (67) - (67)
Profit 19,258 - 19,258 11,077 6,822 17,899

In 2011, Cairo Communication continued to operatealte TV advertising sales market (LA7,

LA7d and theme channels Cartoon Network, Boomerand,CNN) and on the Internet through

its subsidiary Cairo Pubblicita, which operatesaogub-concession basis, invoicing advertising

spaces directly to its customers and returnindp¢éosub-grantor Cairo Communication a share of

revenue generated by resources managed on a scéss@n basis.

Starting from January 2011, Cairo Pubblicita hawered directly with Cairo Editore into an

exclusive advertising concession contract on itdipations. Until December 2010, print media

advertising sales had been governed by a sub-csinoeagreement.

The drop in revenue of Cairo Communication on prmtdia is attributable to this new

contractual framework, more than offset in the tw@einonths, however, by the surge in TV

advertising revenue.

14



In 2011, looking at current operations

- gross revenuavas approximately Euro 140.7 million (Euro 138liofl in 2010), which
comprises operating revenues of Euro 140.5 mikiod other revenue of Euro 0.2 million;

- gross operating profitEBITDA) of the Parent, amounting to approximaté&yro 10.9

million, surged versus the figure of 2010 (Euro @illion);
- operating profiEBIT), amounting to approximately Euro 10.6 naifii rose sharply versus
2010 (Euro 5.8 million);
- profit from current operations came to approximately EL8@ million (Euro 11.1 million
in 2010) increasing also for the variation in irvesnt income.
“Investment income” mainly includes dividends reesl from subsidiaries Cairo Pubblicita,
amounting to Euro 2.3 million (Euro 0.7 million #010) and Cairo Editore, amounting to Euro
10.2 million (Euro 6.8 million in 2010) and the imipment losse from the measurement of the
investment in the associate Dmail Group S.p.A. ¢ELB million).
As for consolidated figures, in the schedules ef Barent’s income statement referring to 2010
appearing in this Directors’ Report, income arisfrgm the Cairo-Telepiu arbitration is shown
separately owing to its non-recurring nature. ldeig non-recurring income, in the first twelve
months of 2010, gross operating profit (EBITDA) hiagen approximately Euro 16 million,
operating profit (EBIT) approximately Euro 15.8 hah, and profit approximately Euro 17.9

million.

The Parent’statement of comprehensive incomean be analyzed as follows:

(€ thousands) 2011 2010

Statement of comprehensive income of the Parent

Profit 19,258 17,899
Loss on measurement of available-for-sale financial

assets (8) (1,775)
Total statement of comprehensive income 19,250 16,124

As mentioned for consolidated figures, loss on mesmment of available-for-sale financial
assets, equal to Euro 8 thousand, refers to theswmgnt of the carrying amount of the
investment in the listed company Dmail Group (768,8hares, or 10% of the share capital), at

the date taken as the basis to reclassify the imesg from “investments in other companies”

15



“available for sale” to “investments in associatea$ illustrated in_Note 1%0 the parent’s

financial statements at 31 December 20h¥estments”

The mainstatement of financial position figuresof Cairo Communication S.p.A. as at 31

December 201tan be compared with the situation as at 31 Dece&0iD:

(€ thousands) 31/12/2011 31/12/2010
Balance sheet

Property, plant and equipment 376 352
Intangible assets 124 151
Financial assets 15,169 15,941
Other non-current assets 399 399
Net current assets 7,709 22,234
Total assets 23,777 39,077
Non-current borrowings and provisions 910 837
(Net financial position)/Net debt (37,476) (32,742
Equity 60,343 70,982
Total equity and liabilities 23,777 39,077

As mentioned in the notes to the consolidated loalaheet:

- at their Meeting of 28 April 2011 the shareholdapproved the distribution of a dividend of
Euro 0.25 per share, inclusive of tax, for a tofaEuro 19.4 million.

- on 30 November 2011, the Board of Directors resbheedistribute to the Shareholders an
interim dividend for financial year 2011 of EurdlB.(inclusive of tax), for a total of Euro
11.7 million, of which Euro 10.2 million had beeistiibuted as at 31 December 2011.

The net financial position of the Parent as at 31 December 2011, comparédthét situation

as at 31 December 2010, is summarized as follows:

(€ thousands) 31/12/2011 31/12/2010 Change
Cash and cash equivalents 37,476 32,663 4,813
Current financial assets - 79 (79)
Total 37,476 32,742 4,734

16



Statement of reconciliation of the Parent’s equityand profit and
Group equity and profit

The statement of reconciliation of equity and profit of Cairo Communication S.p.and

Group equity and profit can be analyzed as follows:

€ thousands) Equity Net profit

Financial statements of Cairo Communication S.p.A. 60,343 19,258

Elimination of the carrying amount of consolidatliity investments:

Difference between carrying amount of investmentstaeir equity value 15,798

Share in subsidiaries’ profit net of investment @&mment losses - 16,447

Allocation of excess consideration paid:

Goodwill 7,230

Elimination of intra-group profits net of incomexta (19,644) 178
Elimination of intra-group dividends - (12,439)
Consolidated financial statements of Cairo Communiation 63,727 23,446

Core business segment operating results and relatedk factors and

strategic opportunities

PUBLISHING
CAIRO EDITORE - CAIRO PUBLISHING

The results achieved Bublishing in 2011 can be analyzed as follows:

17



Publishing 2011 2010

(€ thousands)

Gross operating revenue 100,181 101,203
Advertising agency discounts - -
Net operating revenue 100,181 101,203
Other income 1,872 1,958
Change in inventory (124) (35)
Total revenue 101,929 103,126
Production cost (65,571) (68,628)
Personnel expense (16,746) (16,194)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 19,612 18,304
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impainnesses (1,416) (1,489)
Operating profit (EBIT) 18,196 16,815
Income (loss) on investments - -
Net financial income 177 61
Pre-tax profit 18,373 16,876
Income tax (6,451) (5,701)
Non-controlling interests - -
Profit from continuing operations attributable to the owners 11,922 11,175

of the parent
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations - -

Profit for the year 11,922 11,175

Sales revenue from Group publications, amountingum 66.8 million, was down 5.8% versus
2010, due also to the lower amount of issues oftitBanale Dipiu” versus 2010 (52 instead of
53), causing a loss in revenue of approximatelyoEus million, the cut price (from 1 Euro to 50
cents) of six issues of “Dipiu TV”, with a loss iavenue of approximately Euro 1 million, and
the cut price (from 70 cents to 50 cents) of thssees of “TV Mia”, with a loss in revenue of
approximately Euro 0.1 million.

Group gross advertising revenue, which reached EQrb million, was up 5.3% versus the same
period of 2010 (Euro 38.1 million), despite oneusssess of “Settimanale Dipi’ACNielsen -
3.7% the magazine advertising market in 2011).

Despite the lower amount of issues of “Settimar@ipiu” (with a loss of about Euro 0.3
million), and the higher promotional costs for tha prices made (with a loss of Euro 1 million),
and costs, amounting to Euro 0.3 million, mainly personnel, incurred in 2011 during the

planning stage of the two new magazines scheduie2l0l2, in 2011 gross operating profit

(EBITDA) and operating profi{EBIT) in the publishing segmembse versus 2010, reaching
respectivelyEuro 19.6 million and Euro 18.2 million (respectwé&uro 18.3 million and Euro

16.8 million in 2010), thanks essentially to thgthguality of the Group’s publications and to the
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increased levels of efficiency reached in previpesods, confirmed in 2011, to curb production,

publishing and distribution costs.

“Settimanale Dipiu”, Italy's second best-sellinggaaine, with an average ADS circulation of

674,186 copies, “Dipiu TV” (average ADS circulatioh 436,590 copies) and “Diva e Donna”

(average ADS circulation of 199,078 copies), alethin the 12 months from December 2010 to

November 2011, confirmed the outstanding saledteeachieved.

As far as circulation is concerned, the featurethef Group’s publications and Group strategy

help maintain a strong lead over competitors inciimeent publishing market. In detail:

- cover prices of the weeklies are lower, some sicanitly lower than those of main
competitors; this gap increases appeal and allpasesfor potential price increases,

hence for increased profitability;

- sales are mostly over-the-counter (95%), with aimmiim incidence (about 2% on total
publishing revenue, including advertising) of rewergenerated by gifts and sundry
editorial materials, whose sales figures have pe#d in the publishing segment; the
Group has opted to focus on the quality of its malbions; furthermore, in 2011, gross
advertising revenue generated by the Group’s patdics accounted for 36% - an
extremely low figure if compared with the revenuesdkdown of other major
publishing groups - while 64% was generated byctlisales and subscriptions, proof of

the high editorial quality of publications;

- weekly magazines, which account for approximateéd9o8of total publishing revenue,
are sold as single copies and not bundled withrotleeklies and/or dailies to bolster

sales.

In October, Cairo Editore chose Riccardo Signoraitili Marisa Deimichei to head two new
weeklies, thus returning to a strategy of develapnterough the study, planning and launch of
new publications, which had marked its strong ghowt the 2003-2006 four-year period. The
first, “Settimanale Nuovo”, led by Riccardo Signtbredebuted on newsstands on 19 January
2012, and the first 6 issues (the first 2 issues launch price of 50 cents) posted average sales
of approximately 419 thousand copies. The secomayraen’s weekly, will be launched in 2012.
Riccardo Signoretti, 40 years old, was editor-iretlver the past few years of various weeklies

and monthlies, such as “Vero”, “Vero TV", “Top”, ‘&a”, “Stop” and “Di Tutto”.
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Marisa Deimichei, since 2008 editor-in-chief of “Biyle”, has achieved remarkable results in
terms of circulation and image. She was formergoadleputy editor-in-chief of “Anna” and
editor-in-chief of “Vanity Fair”, “Pratica”, “Sale Pepe”, “Cucina Moderna” and “Starbene”.
Summary financial information from the draft findacstatements at 31 December 2011 of the
subsidiaries is provided in the appendices to theesnto the Parent’s financial statements.

Specifically, in 2011:

- Cairo Editore generated revenue of approximatelyoEL00.9 million, with gross
operating profit (EBITDA) of Euro 19.9 million anaperating profit (EBIT) of Euro
17.2 million (Euro 100.9 million, Euro 18.2 millioand 15.6 million respectively in
2010),

- Cairo Publishing generated revenues of approximdEeko 1.7 million, with a gross
operating loss (EBITDA) of Euro 0.2 million and aperating loss (EBIT) of Euro 0.3
million (Euro 2.3 million, profit of Euro 0.1 millin and loss of Euro 0.06 million

respectively in 2010).

ADVERTISING

In 2011, the Cairo Communication Group operatecdrasdvertising broker — with subsidiary
Cairo Pubblicita - selling space in the print metba Cairo Editore (“For Men Magazine”,
“Natural Style”, “Settimanale Dipiu™, “Dipiu TV” ad weekly supplements “Settimanale
DIPIU" e DIPIU'TV Cucina” and “Settimanale Dipiu Bipiu TV Stellare”, “Diva e Donna” and
“TV Mia”), the Editoriale Giorgio Mondadori divisio (“Bell'ltalia”, “Bell’Europa”, “In
Viaggio”, “Airone”, “Gardenia”, “Arte” and “Antiquaiato”) and for Editoriale Genesis (“Prima
Comunicazione” and “Uomini e Comunicazione”), and the sale of advertising space on TV
for third parties TIMedia (LA7 and LA7d), Interaeti Group (Sportitalia, Sportitalia 2 and
Sportitalia 24) and Turner Broadcasting (Cartoomwdek, Boomerang, CNN), on the Internet
mainly for TIMedia (La7.it and La7.tv), Sportitali€Sportitalia.it) and Turner Broadcasting
(Cartoon Network.it, Cnn.com, Cnnmoney.com) andtlier sale of stadium signage and space at
the “Olimpico” stadium in Turin for Torino FC.

The results achieved Bdvertising in 2011 can be analyzed as follows:
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2011 /2010

(€ thousands) Current  Non- Total Current Non- Total
operation recurring operations recurring

items items
Gross operating revenue 246,778 - 246,778 197,227 - 197,227
Advertising agency discounts (35,086) - (35,086) 27,896) - (27,896)
Net operating revenue 211,692 - 211,692 169,331 0 169,331
Change in inventory - - - - - -
Other income 695 - 695 913 - 913
Non-recurring arbitration income - - - 6,792 6,792
Total revenue 212,387 - 212,387 170,244 6,792 138,0
Production cost (185,665) (185,665) (153,041) - (153,041)
Personnel expense (6,852) (6,852) (5,526) - (5,526)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 19,870 19,870 11,67 6,792 18,469
Amortization, depreciation, (2,170) (2,170) (2,247) - (2,247)
provisions and impairment losses
Operating profit (EBIT) 17,700 17,700 9,430 6,792 61222
Net financial income 1,151 1,151 - - -
Income (loss) on investments (765) (765) 290 - 290
Pre-tax profit 18,086 18,086 9,720 6,792 16,512
Income tax (6,554) (6,554) (3,774) (3,122) (6,896)
Non-controlling interests - - - - -
Profit from continuing
operations 11,532 11,532 5,946 3,670 9,616
Profit (loss) from discontinued - - - - -
operations
Profit (loss) from discontinued
operations attributable to non-
controlling interests - - - - -
Profit (loss) from discontinued - - - - -
operations
Profit attributable to the owners of
the parent 11,532 11,532 5,946 3,670 9,616

In 2011, in the advertising segment, gross opegaimofit (EBITDA) and operating profit (EBIT)

from current operations surged versus last yeaEum 19.9 million and Euro 17.7 million

respectively (Euro 11.7 million and Euro 9.4 millicespectively in 2010).

Specifically, in 2011 Cairo Pubblicita generatedersue of approximately Euro 246.8 million
(Euro 197.3 million in 2010) with gross operatimoftt (EBITDA) of Euro 9.3 million (Euro 6.1
million in 2010) and operating profit (EBIT) of Eui7 million (Euro 3.6 million in 2010).

Television

In 2011, TV advertising revenue (which comprises/|LAA7d, Sportitalia and theme channels

Cartoon Network, Boomerang, and CNN), totaling ER84..7 million, were up 30.1% overall
versus 2010ACNielsen;3.1% the TV advertising market in 2011).
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Specifically, advertising revenue on LA7, amountiogapproximately Euro 167.5 million, was
up 32.5% versus 2010 and greatly exceeded the mmmicontractual revenue for the twelve-
month period (Euro 120 million), as well as the iiddal revenue target related to the increase
in the channel’'s share achieved by TIMedia verbas3®bo share. As mentioned earlier, in 2011,
LA7 audience shares confirmed the trend that hadest in autumn 2010 and increased by
24.4% (3.82% average all-day share versus 3.072010).

Advertising revenues on the unencrypted digitalncleh LA7d, amounting to approximately
Euro 9.6 million, exceeded the 2011 minimum annaget (Euro 8 million).

In 2011, the three-year contractual target (Eu® Bilion) securing Cairo a three-year renewal
(2012-2014) of the advertising concession contra@s achieved; in October 2011, Cairo
Communication and TIMedia acknowledged that theeaggent entered into on 19 November
2008 was to be deemed renewed for the further 4ywae period of 2012-2014, in accordance
with the terms and conditions established undectmract and under the additional agreements
thereto.

Based on the order book as at 9 March 2012 forréidivey aired and to be aired on LAY in the
January-March three-month period of 2012, amountingEuro 50.4 million, the revenue
achieved in the same three-year period of 2011a(BAr6 million) has already been exceeded by
over 27%.

In 2011, the three satellite channels Cartoon NekwBoomerang and CNN generated gross
revenue basically in line with 2010. In 20 11, grosvenues generated by the three digital and
satellite channels Sportitalia, Sportitalia 2 anpor@talia 24 increased versus 2010, when
advertising sales, that had kicked off in Januhad come into full swing starting only from
March.

Print media
As mentioned earlier, in 2011 Group magazine adieg revenue, amounting to Euro 40.1
million, rose by 5.3% versus 2010 (Euro 38.1 mil)iodespite the lower number of issues of

“Settimanale Dipiu”, confirming the positive tretitht had started in 2Q10.

IL TROVATORE

In 2011, Il Trovatore continued operations, prowglitechnological services mainly to Group

companies, as well as managing its search engine.
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Alternative performance indicators

In this Report, in order to provide a clearer pietof the financial performance of the Cairo
Communication Group, besides of the conventionaricial indicators required by IFRS, a
number of alternative performance indicators arewsh that should, however, not be
considered substitutes of those adopted by IFRS.

The alternative indicators are:

- EBITDA: used by Cairo Communication as a target to momitgrnal management, and in
public presentations (to financial analysts anceaters). It serves as a unit of measurement to
evaluate Group and Parent operational performawdd, the EBIT, and is calculated as
follows:

Profit from continuing operations, pre tax

+/- Net finance income
+/- Share in associates

EBIT- Operating profit

+ Amortization & depreciation
+ Bad debt impairment losses
+ Provisions for risks

EBITDA — Operating profit, before amortization, depreciation, write-downs and

impairment losses

The Cairo Communication Group also considegs financial position as a valid indicator of
the Group’s ability to meet financial obligatiofmth current and future. As can be seen in the
table used above, which details the equity figunsed for the calculation of Group net
financial position, this figure includes cash atiden cash equivalents, bank deposits, securities

and other current financial assets, reduced byntiand non-current bank borrowings.

Transactions with parents, subsidiaries and assodres

Transactions in 2011 with related parties, inclgdivith Group companies, were not considered
to be atypical or unusual, and were part of thenamg activities of Group companies. These
transactions were carried out on market terms,ntplkaccount of the goods and services
provided.

Information on transactions with related partiesdisclosed in_Note 360 the consolidated

financial statements and in Note @Bthe separate financial statements.
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Main risks and uncertainties to which Cairo Communcation S.p.A.

and its Group are exposed

Risks associated with the general economic climate

The financial position of the Cairo Communicatioro@® may be influenced by various factors
within the macro-economic environment, such asrtheease or decrease of GNP, the level of
consumer and corporate confidence, the advertesipgnditure/GDP ratio, interest rate trends

and cost of raw materials.

In 2011, the short and medium-term economic unicgytebegan to deteriorate — starting
especially from autumn — reflecting the overall mmmic-financial scenario. There remains

uncertainty over the period required for a returmérmal market conditions.

Should this situation of weakness and uncertaimtytinue for some time, the operations,

strategy and outlook for the Group may be impacted.

To challenge the tough market scenario, the Groygemented, starting in previous periods,
and also in 2011, a series of measures to inceffiseency and effectiveness of the production,
publishing and distribution processes, and willtoare in 2012 to benefit from the high levels of

efficiency achieved.

Risks associated with advertising and publishingketarends

In 2011, deterioration of the short and medium-tegonomic uncertainty — starting especially

from autumn — continued to impact negatively onabieertising market.

According to AC Nielsen figures, advertising invaents in lItaly in 2011 amounted to
approximately Euro 8.6 billion, down 3.8% versug trevious year (in particular, -3.7% the
magazine advertising market, and -3.1% the TV aibieg market versus 2010).

With approximately Euro 246.8 million in gross adiging revenue, the Cairo Communication
Group holds about 2.9% of the overall advertisingrkat (2.3% in 2010). Specifically, the
Group holds approximately 4.4% of the TV advergisimarket (3.4% in 2010) and
approximately 5.2% of the magazine advertising mafk.7% in 2010). This market share,
which increased in 2011, leaves the Group room giméor growth, given the high quality and
significant distribution of its own titles, in patilar weeklies, and of the resources under

concession, qualities and distribution that prowmificant competitive edge.
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The tough economic environment has slowed the péadbe sale of dailies and magazines.
Against this backdrop, in 2011, sales revenue f@noup publications, amounting to Euro 66.8
million, fell by 5.8% versus 2010, due also to thever amount of issues of “Settimanale
Dipiu” versus 2010 (52 instead of 53), causing sslin revenue of approximately Euro 0.5
million, the cut price (from 1 Euro to 50 cents)gix issues of “Dipiu TV”, causing a loss in
revenue of approximately Euro 1 million, and thé mrice (from 70 cents to 50 cents) of three

issues of “TV Mia”, causing a loss in revenue gbregximately Euro 0.1 million.

Advertising

The Cairo Communication Group is significantly egpod to advertising sales performance,
which has progressively decreased over time assaltref significant developments in the
publishing business. Advertising sales from currepérations today represent around 77%
(approximately 72% in 2010) of total Group reven@ansidering the Group’s publishing
business alone, advertising sales in 2011 accounted6% - much lower than the revenue
breakdown of other major publishing groups - wtie remaining 64% was generated by
distribution and subscription revenue, demonstgatime great publishing strength of
advertising products.

The sale of advertising space is monitored dailydfgrence to the percentage saturation of the
catchment time, average sales price and the \@midtom forecasts. Daily monitoring also
provides/enables a review of the sales forecastdmyth in order to act — with reference to

print media — on advertising pages and thus omstiiueture of product costs.

Management's attention is focused on the definitidnstrategy and commercial policy to
ensure an effective presentation of the high valuhe product offering. The features of the

resources offered represent strength for the Giotlpe current competitive climate.

LAY presents an excellent audience profile, paldidy appealing for advertising. In 2011, LAY
audience shares confirmed the trend that had dtamteutumn 2010 and increased by 24.4%
(3.82% average all-day share versus 3.07% in 28tycifically, the 8PM newscast’'s average
share reached 8.4% in 2011 versus 4.22% in 201¢camtinued to enjoy widespread exposure
across the media.

Regarding Group titles, the excellent distributiamiumes that enabled the Group to become the
second major publisher of weeklies by copies seidhewsstands, net of weeklies attached to

dailies, make the advertising pages appealingrmgef advertising cost per copy sold (equal to
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the difference between the price of the advertigiage and the copies sold) which are currently

lower than those of the competition.

Distribution

Regarding distribution, the features of the produstiblished by the Group as well as its
strategy, are such as to build a significant cortipetedge in the current climate of the

publishing segment. In particular

- cover prices of the weeklies are lower, some sicgmittly lower than those of the main

competitors;

- sales are mostly over-the-counter (95%), with aimim incidence (less than 2% on
total publishing revenue, including advertising) relzenues generated by gifts and

sundry editorial materials;

- weekly magazines, which account for approximateBpo8of the total publishing
segment revenue, are sold as single copies andundied with other weeklies and/or

dailies to bolster sales.

Risks associated with developments in the medimeay

The media segment has seen an increase in thedéysnetration of new communication

resources, in particular the Internet, pay TV, #ml new unencrypted theme channels on the
digital terrestrial platform, together with techogy innovations that may lead to changes in
demand by consumers, who in future will probablguest personalized content by even
directly selecting the source. As a result, thiy ti@ange the relative importance of the various

media and audience distribution, with consequesaitgr market fragmentation.

Whereas the development of the Internet may impacthe share of print media, mainly on
dailies and to a much lesser extent on our weekires growth of pay, satellite and digital

terrestrial television may impact on the traditibh® audience.

The Group constantly monitors the level of peneirabf new resources as well as changes in
the business model related to the distributionaftent available to assess the opportunity to
develop the various distribution platforms, with rigaular attention to the Internet.
Developments in the regulatory framework are alsatioually monitored for the media

segment and their disclosure within the Group suesd.
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Risks associated with the importance of the adsiagi concession contracts with third-party

publishers
The Cairo Communication Group operates as bothighd of magazines and books, and as a

multimedia broker for the sale of advertising spandelevision, print media, stadiums and the
Internet.

In 2011, approximately 64.5% of Group gross revemas generated from advertising for
third-party publishers with respect to the Cairon@aunication Group: TIMedia (LA7 and
LA7d), Turner Broadcasting (Cartoon Network, Booamgy, CNN), Interactive Group (canali

Sportitalia) ed Editoriale Genesis (Prima Comurimae).

In December 2010, Telecom Italia Media and Caineeg to revise the advertising concession
contract of 19 November 2008. Specifically, for 2Gind for the 2012-2014 three-year period ,
both set additional annual advertising revenue etarqunguaranteed) with respect to the
minimum annual revenue, proportional to the achiexat by Telecom Italia Media of annual
targets of share higher than the given 3% for ISAShare. Cairo’s achievement of these
additional targets, or payment to Telecom ltaliadMeof equivalent dues, will entitle Cairo to
renew the contract up to 31 December 2019. OthepWislecom Italia Media is authorized to

withdraw from the contract.

The Group’s track record, ever since inception,demonstrated its ability to manage changes in

its portfolio of media types brokered:
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The advertising brokerage business started in ¥@86a number of titles of the RCS Group
including “IO Donna”, which in the space of a fewveays exceeded Euro 50 million in
advertising sales. In 2001 “ IO Donna” was replatgd“Anna”. The contract with RCS
expired at the end of 2002. In 1998 advertisingsatere launched on pay TV Telepiu, which
was then interrupted in July 2004. In 2003, adseryj sales were launched for LA7 and from
2004 those relating to new publishing initiatives Cairo Editore. At the end of 2009, Cairo
Pubblicita had entered a multi-year exclusive diilsieg concession contract on the digital and
satellite Sportitalia and Sportitalia 2 channeld an the www.sportitalia.com website. In 2010,
Cairo Communication also entered a concession acinfior the new unencrypted digital
channel LA7d.

Risks associated with Management and “key staff”

The Group’s success depends on the talents ofxésuéive Directors and other members of
Management to efficiently manage the Group andrtizidual business segments. Editors, too,
have a significant role in relation to their publions.

The loss of the services of an executive Directalitor, or other key resources without an
appropriate substitute, as well as the difficultyattracting and retaining new and qualified

resources, may impact negatively on the prospeptzations and financial results of the Group.
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Risks associated with retaining the value of ttantds of the Group titles

The Cairo Communication Group publishes a numbdeading Italian weeklies: “Settimanale
Dipiu” (674,186 copies), “DipiuTV” (436,590 copiesDipiuTV Cucina” (415,923 copies) and
“Diva & Donna” (199,078 copies). Among the montklieGardenia”, “Bell'ltalia”, “For Men
Magazine”, “Natural Style” and “Arte” are leaderstheir own segment.

The value of Group brands must be continuouslyegated by maintaining the current level of
quality and innovation, for example, by keeping therent number of pages, supported by
appropriate levels of advertising consistent wit offer.

The Group publishing strategy has always been ftas the quality of its products, driven by
the efforts of Management and the editors. Undemtireements with the editors of the weeklies,
a significant part of their remuneration is linkiedthe results of the distribution and/or sale of

advertising space of the titles.

Risks associated with contractual commitments

In 2011, the three-year contractual target (Eu® Biflion) securing Cairo a three-year renewal
(2012-2014) of the advertising concession contra@s achieved; in October 2011, Cairo
Communication and TIMedia acknowledged that theeagrent entered into on 19 November
2008 was to be deemed renewed for the further fywae period of 2012-2014, in accordance
with the terms and conditions established undectmract and under the additional agreements
thereto. The advertising concession contract reéggrd A7 sets minimum annual gross
advertising revenue in 2012 of Euro 126 millionthwiminimum annual guaranteed fees for
Telecom ltalia Media of Euro 88.2 million (70%).

In return for Cairo’s commitment to minimum grossvertising revenue and minimum fees,
Telecom ltalia Media undertakes to maintain theuahshare of LA7 higher than or equal to 3%
and higher than or equal to 2.65% in prime timeving. Should the shares drop below these
thresholds, or further contractually establishedegholds, Cairo is entitled to reduce the
minimum guaranteed payment equal to Euro 88.2anilli

In December 2010, Telecom Italia Media and Caineeg to revise the advertising concession
contract of 19 November 2008. Specifically, for 2Gind for the 2012-2014 three-year period ,
both set additional annual advertising revenue etarqunguaranteed) with respect to the
minimum annual revenue, proportional to the achiexat by Telecom Italia Media of annual

targets of share higher than the given 3% for ISAShare. Cairo’s achievement of these
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additional targets, or payment to Telecom ltaliadMeof equivalent dues, will entitle Cairo to
renew the contract up to 31 December 2019. OthepWislecom Italia Media is authorized to
withdraw from the contract.

The contract regarding the LA7d digital channe$ seinimum gross advertising revenue in 2012
of Euro 8 million for a 0.2% share of the chanmeith minimum guaranteed fees for Telecom
Italia Media of Euro 5.6 million, paid as per caur on a monthly basis. A result higher or lower
than the 0.2% share will produce a correspondirmgease or decrease in minimum annual
revenue and in the guaranteed minimum fee.

Failure to achieve the foregoing minimum revenueildldmpact on Group profit for that year.
Likewise, failure to achieve the foregoing addiibifunguaranteed) targets set as from 2011,
proportional to the achievement by Telecom ltaliadia of annual targets of share higher than
the given 3% for LA7’s share, could impact on theation of the contract, or in the event of
payment to Telecom lItalia Media of equivalent dussprofits for that year.

Based on the order book as at 9 March 2012 forréidivey aired and to be aired on LAY in the
January-March three-month period of 2012, amountingEuro 50.4 million, the revenue
achieved in the same three-year period of 2011a(BAr6 million) has already been exceeded by

over 27%.

Risks associated with business with suppliers

A number of the Group’s production processes, @adrly print, are outsourced. The
outsourcing of production processes requires aosgeration with the suppliers which, on one
hand, can result in economic benefits in termdexilbility, efficiency and cost reduction, but on
the other hand, results in the Group’s reliancéhese suppliers.

The relationship with the printer used by the Growmich dates back to 1999 - the year
Editoriale Giorgio Mondadori was acquired - is goexl by an agreement valid until 2012. The
printer is one of the main operators in a markeictvthas excess production capacity and is
populated by other large players.

In relation to production aspects, relationshipthwpiaper suppliers is also of great importance —

as a rule these are governed by contracts renenvechhy.
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Liquidity risks

The Cairo Communication Group is not exposed toidiiy risk, in that on one hand, significant
financial resources are held with a net availaldsitive financial position of Euro 54.7 million
whilst on the other hand, the Group attempts toaenthat an appropriate ability to generate cash
is maintained, despite current market conditions.

An analysis of the company’s financial position whkdoth liquidity, or the ability to maintain
financial stability in the short term, and solidityr the ability to maintain financial stability in
the medium/long term.

It is Group policy to invest available cash in amwhnd or short-term bank deposits, properly
spreading the investments, essentially in bankimgdycts, with the prime objective of
maintaining a ready liquidity of the said investrt®eMhe investment products are selected on the

basis of their credit rating, their reliability attte quality of services rendered.

Interest rate and currency risk

The Cairo Communication Group is not exposed teratt rate and currency risk, in that on
one hand, there is no loan finance, whilst on temhand, Group operations are carried out
exclusively in ltaly, so all revenue is generatedtaly and main costs are incurred in Euro.
Interest rate risk only affects the yield on avalgacash. Movements in the cash flow and the
liquidity of Group companies are centrally monigbrand managed by Group Treasury in order
to guarantee effective and efficient managemefinahcial resources.

Given limited exposure to both interest rate andency risk, the Group does not use financial

derivative and/or hedging instruments.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk, primarily @lation to its advertising sales activities. This
risk is however mitigated by the fact that exposisraistributed across a large number of
customers and that credit monitoring and contrabcpdures are in place. In terms of
concentration, the top 10 customers represent ak@t (18% in 2010) of advertising revenue,
while the top 100 customers account for 57% (5892040). These indicators are in line with
prior years.

The deterioration of the short and medium-term eatin uncertainty — starting especially from

autumn, along with the resulting credit squeezey ofacourse impact negatively on the quality
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of credit and on general payment terms. In 201&raye payment terms for advertising sales
improved versus 2010.

The publishing segment, on the other hand, preskmited exposure to credit risk as
publishing revenue is basically generated by onmwlsi party - the Group - whilst for
distribution revenue, the distribution contract ypdes for an advance payment equal to a
significant percentage of the estimated sales cif ezagazine.

The Group’s maximum theoretical exposure to cradks as at 31 December 2011 is given by
the carrying amount of trade receivables and otbeognized receivables totaling Euro 117.8
million, and by the nominal amount of guaranteesihed on third-party debts or commitments
as indicated in Note 3t the consolidated financial statements.

The credit risks associated with cash and castvalguits, with a maximum theoretical exposure
of Euro 54.7 million, refer chiefly to a “countempd’ risk, moderated, however, by the fact that
they are deposits spread across various bankserhaith the above-mentioned criteria

illustrated in the notes explaining “liquidity risk

Risks associated with litigation

The notes orfother information” (Note 35to the consolidated financial statements) contain
information on a number of cases of litigation. Tdaluation of the potential legal and tax

liabilities requires the Company to use estimates @ssumptions in relation to forecasts made
by the Directors, based upon the opinions exprebgdtie Company’s legal and tax advisers,
in relation to the probable cost that can be realsigrconsidered to be incurred. The actual

results may vary from these estimates.

Report on corporate governance and ownership struatre

1. Issuer profile

Cairo Communication has adopted a traditional sysiBadministration and control.

The Shareholderare the corporate body that expresses the wih®fshareholders through its
resolutions at its meeting. It typically appoitite Chairman. Resolutions adopted pursuant to
the law and the bylaws bind all the shareholdexduding those absent or dissenting.

The Board of Directorfias the most ample management powers to achiegperate objects.

Elected every three years at the Shareholders’iNgéat appoints one or more Chief Executive
Officers and determines their powers, and thogbefChairman.

The Remuneration Committesend the_Internal Control Committeee bodies set up within the

Board of Directors, and comprise members of ther@aéh Directors and provide consultative
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and proposal functions to the Board of Directottse Bodies now also include the Related Party
Committee provided for by the procedures for related parysactions adopted in 2010.

The Board of Statutory Auditotis the body with the functions of overseeing obarce of the

law and the company bylaws and management control.

The audit is entrusted to an Audit Fimmgistered in the relevant professional roll asdhie
Company’s external control body. The Firm checkspughout the year, that the company’'s
accounts are kept properly and that accountingesnéiccurately reflect its operation. It is also
its responsibility to ensure that the separate @ntsolidated financial statements match the
accounting entries and verifications performed, #uad these accounting documents conform to
the governing rules.

The duties and methods of operating of these catpdvodies are governed by the law and
regulations, by the company bylaws and by the dmtwsadopted by relevant bodies, in
conformity with the regulations set forth in ther@orate Governance Code drawn up by the
Corporate Governance Committee of Borsa ltaliapeAS.in 2006, with amendments made in
2010 to art. 7 regarding remuneration.

The company bylaws are available at the registeffide and in the corporate governance

section on the Company’s website/w.cairocommunication.it

Information on ownership structure (pursuant to art. 123 bis of the Consolidated Finance
Act — TUF) as at 12 March 2012

Information prescribed by art. 123 bis of the TWRs follows:

a) Share capital structure (pursuant to art. 123dzisagraph 1, letter a), T.U.F.)

As at 12 March 2012, the share capital of Cairo @omication S.p.A. was Euro 4,073,856.80,
fully paid and subscribed, and it comprisé8,343,400 shares (as at 31 December 2010
78,343,400 shares), with no indication of the na@hamount.

N° shares % of share capital Listing Rights and
obligations

All Star segment of In accordance with
Ordinary shares 78,343,400 100% Borsa ltaliana the law and
company bylaws

No financial instruments have been issued attmiguthe right to subscribe to newly-issued

shares.
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No share incentive plans are foreseen involvingrestaapital increases, even on a freely

allocated basis.

b) Restrictions on transfépursuant to art. 123 bis, paragraph 1, lettemi),F.)

In accordance with the bylaws, shares are registénelivisible and freely transferable. They
are without requirements of representation, legg#mon, circulation of the company

investment required for securities traded on regdlanarkets.

c) Significant shareholdings (pursuant to art. 123 jigagraph 1, letter ¢), T.U.F.)
As at 12 March 2012, based on the information kexkpursuant to art. 120 of the T.U.F. and

the update of the shareholders’ register, the frahcshareholders in Cairo Communication

S.p.A. were as follows:

Declarer Direct shareholder % %
of ordinary of voting
capital capital
URBANO ROBERTO CAIRO U.T. COMMUNICATIONS SpA 44.812% 44.812%
URBANO ROBERTO CAIRO U.T. BELGIUM HOLDING S.A. 15.710% 15.710%
URBANO ROBERTO CAIRO URBANO ROBERTO CAIRO 12.387% 12.387%

SCHRODER INVESTMENT SCHRODER INVESTMENT
MANAGEMENT LIMITED MANAGEMENT LIMITED 2.019% 2.019%

As at the same date, Cairo Communication S.p.Ad BélL,326 treasury shares, or 0.474% of

the share capital, subject to the provisions of28%57-ter of the Civil Code.

d) Securities carrying special rights (pursuant ta 4@3 bis, paragraph 1, letter d),

T.U.F.)

No securities conferring special controlling rightsse been issued.

e) Employee shareholdings: voting right proceduresdipant to art. 123 bis, paragraph 1,
letter e), T.U.F.)

There are no employee shareholdings and/or voigdsrprocedures.

f) Restrictions on voting rights (pursuant to art. b3 paragraph 1, letter f), T.U.F.)
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There are no restrictions on voting rights othantthose provided by law.

Q) Shareholders’ agreements (pursuant to art. 123aiagraph 1, letter g), T.U.F.)

No shareholders’ agreements are in place pursaanrt.t122 of the T.U.F.

h) Change of controtlauses (pursuant to art. 123 bis, paragraphtéyle}, T.U.F.)

and by-law provisions on takeover bids (pursuamartecles 104, paragraph 1 ter, and
104 bis),

The Company and/or its subsidiaries have signedigoificant agreements that come into

effect, are altered or terminate in the event di@nge in the control of the contracting entity.

Moreover, the bylaws:

- do not depart from the provisions on the passiutg provided by art. 104, paragraphs 1
and 2, of the TUF;

- do not provide for the enforcement of the neutedlon rule set out in art. 104 bis,

paragraphs 2 and 3, of the TUF.

i) Delegations to increase share capital and authimizao acquire and dispose of
treasury sharef@ursuant to art. 123 bis, paragraph 1, letterTm),F.)

There are no delegations to increase the shareatppirsuant to art. 2443 of the Civil Code or
to issue equity financial instruments.

At their meeting of 28 April 2011, after revokingimilar resolution adopted on 28 April 2010,
the Shareholders approved the proposal to acqunaalspose of treasury shares in accordance
with art. 2357 and subsequent articles of thedtalCivil Code, for the purpose sfabilizing

the Company share price and sustaining liquiditbd, af deemed necessary by the Board of
Directors, of establishing a “shares stock” as jghed in Consob regulation 16839/200the
Board was authorizetb acquire treasury shares up to the maximum nupéenitted by law,
for a period of 18 months from the date of authatian, by use of available reservasluding

the share premium reserve, as resulting from the dpproved annual financial statements
Specifically, the Board of Directors will be authmed to acquire treasury shares on one or
more occasions, acquiring shares directly on thikemand through authorized intermediary —
in accordance with the procedures provided byla4. bis, paragraph 1, letter b of the Issuer
Regulation and relevant Instructions — and, in cagd operations are carried out, according to
accepted market practices, pursuant to the reguoktintroduced by Consob Resolution No.

16839/2009Minimum and maximum acquisition prices per shamesat at an amount equal to
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the average official purchase price of the sharBansa Italiana S.p.A. for the 15 working days
preceding the purchase respectively reduced orased by 20%, in any event within a
maximum limit of Euro 6.5 per sharth case such operations are carried out in accoedan
with accepted market practices pursuant to CongsolRtion no. 16839/2009, the purchase of
treasury shares is subject to further limitscluding price limits, provided for theretdhe
proposal of the Board also allows for the authdidrato sell, on one or more occasions, any
acquired treasury shares, setting the minimum @ade per share no lower than the minimum
price calculated following the criteria adopted fioeir purchaseShould the treasury shares be
sold in accordance with accepted market practicesuant to Consob Resolution 16839/2009,
the sale of treasury shares shall be subject tbdutimits, including price limits, provided for
thereto

As at 31 December 2011, Cairo Communication hetdtal of 371,326 treasury shares, or
0.474% of the share capitalibject to art. 2357-ter of the Italian Civil Code

)] Management and coordination activities

Cairo Communication currently carries out managenaed coordination activities in relation
to the following companies:

- Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A.

- Cairo Editore S.p.A.

- Cairo Publishing S.r.1.

- Cairo Due S.r.l.

- Il Trovatore S.r.l.

- Edizioni Anabasi S.r.l.

- Cairo Sport S.r.l.

- Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidation.

Cairo Communication, though subject to rightful tohby UT Communication S.p.A. — which
is directly controlled by Urbano R. Cairo — is moibject to the management and coordination
of such company, nor of any other entity. The Baafr@irectors of Cairo Communication has
come to such conclusion taking account of the ateseri further elements (with respect to
mere control) that may lean towards the existerice unitary direction and the circumstance
that UT Communication S.p.A. igje facto a holding company and has never actually
exercised any policy-making functions and/or irgezhice in the management of the Issuer,

restricting its activities to the management obitgn controlling investment.
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Information prescribed by art. 123-bis, paragraphletter (i) (“agreements between the
Company and the directors, members of the managdmand or supervisory board providing
for indemnity in the event of resignation or unjaésmissal ..”. and letter I) (“provisions
applicable to the appointment and replacement céators and to changes to the bylaws, if
diverging from the legislative and regulatory preigins that might also apglyare illustrated

in the section on Directors’ fees (Sect. 9).

3 Compliance_(pursuant to art. 123 bis, paragraph 2etter a), T.U.F.)

The Cairo Communication Group has adopted a Compo&overnance Code for listed

companies, amended in March 2010 1 by the Corp@ateernance Committee and promoted
by Borsa lItaliana, and also available on the Comigawebsite www.cairocommunication.it

and on www.borsaitaliana.it

No Group company is subject to non-ltalian law tlatld influence the structure of Corporate

Governance.

4, Board of Directors

4.1 Appointment and replacement of directors armhgbs to the bylaws (pursuant to art.
123 bis, paragraph 1, letter h), T.U.F.)

The Board of Directors is appointed by the Shamidrsl on the basis of lists presented by
shareholders pursuant to articles 14 and 15 ofyleavs.

Specifically:

- lists must be filed with the registered office viitithe 28" day prior to the date on which
the Shareholders’ Meeting is called to decide anappointment of the members of the
Board of Directors, and made available to the puldli the registered office, on the
Company website and in accordance with the praesdprovided for by the law and
regulations, at least 21 days before the dateeoMbeting;

- lists admitted to the voting are those submittedtigreholders who, either individually or

jointly with other shareholdersepresent at least 2.5% of the shares entitlagt® in the

! The Group is implementing the changes that maigard the audit and risk management systems, and
the role and responsibilities of the Board of Dices and internal committees, introduced by the new
Code of Conduct of listed companies of Decembed 20iorder to enforce it by 31 December 2012.
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ordinary meeting, or other minimum amount set@pnsob.Ownership of the minimum
stake required for submission of the lists is dateed on the basis of the shares recorded
in the name of the shareholder on the date the &s¢ filed with the Companyhe
relevant prescribed certification may also be stifghisubsequent to the filing, provided
submission is made within the time limit prescrilfedpublication of the lists

for the purposes of the appointment of the diregtaccount is taken exclusively of lists
that have received at least half the votes estaaliby the bylaws for the submission of
lists;

candidates shall appear in the lists in progressider and equivalent to the number of
directors to appointShould more than one list receive at least halivtites as required by
the bylaws for submission of the listandidates appointed to the position of directatlsh
be those appearing in the list that has receivechiphest number of votes, except for the
last candidate appearing in the list and the catdidppearing on top of the list that has
received the second-highest number of votes thiat i® way, even indirectly, connected
with the shareholders that have submitted or vobedlist that has received the highest
number of votessubject to the possession of the requirementsdafiendence set forth in
art. 148, paragraphs 3 and 4 of the TUF and ohéurrequirements set forth in the
Corporate Governance Code of Borsa ltaliana S.pfailing which the appointed
candidate, in his/her place, shall be the firstdadate appearing in progressive order on the
list possessing the foregoing requirements of iedepnce. Should two or more lists reach
a tie, the prevailing list shall be the list poséeg the largest shareholding or, in the event
of a tie, the highest number of shareholders

each list must contain candidates possessing thereenents of independence referred to
in art. 147ter, paragraph 4, of the TUF, and further requiremeatdorth in the Corporate
Governance Code of Borsa ltaliana S.p.A., in thaeimmuim amount established by the
provisions of law and regulations, taking also iatzount the share listing segment

in order to be admitted to the votiregch list must be accompanied by detailed infomati
on the professional and personal qualificationsthaf candidates, by the statement on
possession of the requirements of independencecrfiyved by law and by further
requirements set forth in the Corporate Govern@wde of Borsa Italiana S.p.A., and by
indication of the identity of the shareholders whave submitted the lists and total

percentage of shares held

38



Mention must be made, for the purposes set fortarin123bis, paragraphl, letter (I) of the
T.U.F. that, pursuant to art. 21, paragraph 2 efttylaws, without prejudice to the competence
of the Shareholders at their Extraordinary Meetiwgp have the authority to decide on the
matter, pursuant to art. 2365 of the Civil Code, Board of Directors iauthorizedjnter alia

to adopt resolutions concerning merger, in the s£as¢ forth in articles 2505 and 2565 of

the Italian Civil Code, capital reduction in theeat of shareholder withdrawal, harmonization
of the bylaws to mandatory provisions of law, relti@n of the registered office to other

premises in Italy.

Succession planning

To date, the Board has not adopted any succeskina pgarding the executive directors.

4.2 Composition(pursuant to art. 123 bis, paragraph 2, lettef d),F.)
At their Meeting on 28 April 2011, the Sharehokier

- appointed the Board of Directors of the Companyafdhree-year period, until approval of

the financial statements at 31 December 2013, efaisis of the single list presented by the
majority shareholder, UT Communications S.p.A., rappd with a favourable vote by
76.017% of the share capital, composed of:
o three Executive Directors: the Chairman Urbano &allberto Fornara and Marco
Pompignoli,
o two Non-Executive Directors: Antonio MagnocavallwdeRoberto Cairo and
o three independent directors: Marco Janni, Maura 8atl Roberto Rezzonico.
To date, the Board has no general criteria in ptagarding maximum number of positions held
by a director and control in other companies thaty e considered compatible with the
effective performance of a director's functionstfo Issuer.
The directors of Cairo Communication hold no otpesition in companies listed on regulated
markets, financial companies, banks, insurance aomp or major companies, except fbarco
Janni, who is chairman of CO.MO.l. SIM S.p.A. andlatesa Lease SEC S.r.l. and board
member of Intesa SEC 3 S.r.l, companies that arpart of the Group of which the Issuer is part

of.
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Board of Directors Audit Remunera- Related Part
Committee| tion Committee
Committee
Role Members From until List Execu Non- Indep. Indep. (%) N. il *x wxx *x kk bl
(M/m) tive executi | asper | asper bl other | * *
* ve Code TUF position
s held
Chairman | Urbano Cairo 01/01 31/12 N A - - - 100 - - - - - -
CEO Uberto Fornara 01/01 31/12 M X - - - 100 - - - - - - -
Director Marco 01/01 | 31/12 M X - - - 10 - - - - - - -
Pompignoli
Director Roberto Cairo 01/01 31/12 M - X - - 1p0 - - - - - - -
Director | Antonio 01/01 | 31/12 M - X - - 10 - X | 100 | X | 100 | - -
Magnocavallo
Director Roberto 01/01 | 31/12 M - X X X 8§ - X | 100 [ X| 100 | X 100
Rezzonico
Director Mauro Sala 28/04 31/12 M - X X X 100 - X | 100 - - X 100
LID Marco Janni 01/01| 31/12 M - X X X 86 3 - - X 50 | X 100
N. of meetings held during the year: BoD: 7 | AC:2 CC:2 RPC: 3

Notes:
*This column shows M/m depending on whether the bremvas elected by the majority (M) or minority (fs}.
** This column shows the participation percentagedimectors in the BoD and various committees (obtimes present/no of

meetings held during their term).
***This column shows number of directorships ortstary auditor positions held in other companieselil on either national or
foreign stock exchanges, including finance comparbanks and insurance companies, or of major corepa

***¥|n this column, “X” indicates if the Directors also on the committee.

Urbano Cairds the founder of the Group and has led its groavtti development. A graduate
in business corporate administration from the Bactiiversity, he has significant experience
in the publishing and advertising segments. Hetesdaworking with Fininvest in 1982 as
assistant to Silvio Berlusconi. He went to work fublitalia '80 in 1985, where he was
appointed Deputy-General Manager in 1990. In 199 Whs appointed as managing director of
Mondadori Pubblicita. In December 1995 he foundedrcC Pubblicita, which initiated its
distributorship activity for a number of RCS Gromagazines. He has therefore been the main
leader behind Cairo Communication Group’s growthpge main phases are associated with
the 1998 acquisition of the company Telepiu Pulitlidollowed by Cairo TV, dedicated PAY
TV distributor, the February 1999 acquisition of itBdale Giorgio Mondadori, Cairo
Communication’s listing in 2000, the contract fbe texclusive rights for the sale of advertising
space on LAY at the end of 2002, the birth of C&iditore in 2003 and his subsequent activity
in developing successful new publishing initiatiyéise launch of “For Men Magazine” and
“Natural Style” in 2003, “Settimanale Dipiu” in 280“Dipiu TV”, “Diva e Donna” in 2005
and “TV Mia” in 2008).

Uberto Fornards a graduate in business administration fromBbeconi University, and has
worked within the Group since its inception, havprgviously gained significant experience in

the publishing segment with Publitalia ‘80 from 898nd then in Mondadori Pubblicita, of
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which he was appointed Director of Customer Seniitel994. He is also CEO of Cairo
Pubblicita S.p.A.

Marco Pompignoliwas appointed a€hief Financial Officerin June 2000 and is Financial

Reporting Manager of Cairo Communication S.p.A.i$le graduate in business administration
and has previously worked in leading audit firmsyihg gained experience in Italy and abroad.
Roberto Cairp Urbano Cairo’s brother, is an entrepreneur if-estate brokerage with the
company Il Metro Immobiliare, with offices in Milaand in Liguria.

Antonio Magnocavalldas been a professional civil and corporate lawyédilan since 1961

and is currently in a partnership (Magnocavallossdciati). He is currently board member of
Fondazione Gruppo Credito Valtellineaad chairman of a number of large foundations and
associations. Mr. Magnocavallo has provided legaistance and consultancy to the Cairo

Communication Group since 1998.

Marco Jannigraduated in civil procedural law in 1960 and wasistant to the chair of civil
procedural law at the University of Milan. Heascounsehlt the NCTM law firm, which deals

with civil, commercial and corporate law. He wadii@ctor in large banking groups.

Roberto Rezzonicochartered accountant, is currently Chairman &f Board of Statutory

Auditors or statutory auditor in a number of impart industrial groups (Nestlé Italiana S.p.A.,

Nespresso Italia S.p.A., Siemens Holding S.p.Ara®sS.p.A., Pirelli Labs S.p.A.).

Mauro Sala chartered accountant and auditor, judge in thgidRal Tax Commission of
Lombardy from 1996 to 2007, is currently Chairmaintioe board of statutory auditors,

statutory auditor and/or director of a number ahpanies.

4.3 Role of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors met 7 times during the ydde Board meetings lasted an average of 2
hours. Six meetings are planned for the current,y@@e has already taken place. To ensure
that the Directors be prepared, all the document$ iaformation on the facts taken into

consideration by the Board are sent to them via#imreasonable advance before the date of

the meeting.

The Board of Directors holds the power to (i) pa®d, sell or exchange company branches,
and companies for amounts in excess of Euro 5anitiind (ii) the power to furnish guarantees
and endorsements for amounts in excess of EurollmiThese powers, or the following

powers, cannot be delegated to individual directors
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a) examination and approval of company strategic,fmss or financial plans or those
relating to the Cairo Communication Group;
b) Group’s system of corporate governance or strugture
c) allocation or revocation of powers to managing ctives;
d) examination and approval of (i) extraordinary temi®ns, and (ii) transactions
involving a potential conflict of interest.
The Board of Directors has also identified the digant transactions o that may only be

approved by the Board.

Such transactions have been identified and defistagtting with the term “transaction” which

has been taken to mean:

i) disposals of intangible assets or property, pladt@juipment, even those with no

related cost or payment;

i) granting of either temporary or permanent rightkatieg to intangible assets

(trademarks, brands, copyrights, databases, etc.)

iii) providing work or services;
iv) granting or obtaining finance and guarantees (dinly letters of patronage);
V) any other action pertaining to property rights.

Significant transactions are those that must belalied to the market in accordance with art.
114 of the Consolidated Finance Act, by their matuprocedure or the nature of the
counterparty, or those with a value of over Eurf® million. The signing of advertising sales
contracts, the Company'’s typical activity, is neethed a significant transaction if it does not
involve cost commitments or other financial comngtits beyond the granting of a percentage

of the revenue generated by the contract to theéanmeher.

With regard to self-regulation, these transactiaresthe responsibility of the Directors and as
such are subject to prior approval by the Boar®ioéctors. If it is not possible for the Board

of Directors to meet, for reasons of time pressoreother particular circumstances, the
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Compaamg carry out the transaction pending the

approval of the Board of Directors which would threeet at the earliest possible opportunity.

Even significant related party transactions - ascdbed below in paragraph i2lated party
transactions” - are reserved to the exclusive competence ofBtba&rd of Directors of the

Company and cannot be delegated.
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During the year, the Board:

- evaluated the appropriateness of the organizatiaamhinistrative and general accounting
structure of the company and of its strategicathpartant subsidiaries (based on their
contribution to Group profits and revenue, Cairat@a S.p.A., Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A.
and Cairo Publishing S.r.l.), with particular refiace to the internal control system and the
management of conflicts of interest; such valuatisas undertaken on the basis of
information and evidence gathered through investiggperformed by the Internal Control

Committee and through contribution by Company Mamagnt and the control manager,

- after examining the proposals of the relevant catemiand having taken council of the
Board of Statutory Auditors, and prior to the naneling opinion of the Related Party
Committee, the Board of Directors determined remugtion to the managing directors and
the directors with specific responsibilities, andaddition, wherever not provided for at the
Shareholders’ Meeting, the division of total remati®n due to the members of the Board

of Directors,

- evaluated the general management trend, takingplant account of information received

from the bodies responsible, in addition to conmaresults achieved with forecasts.

During its meeting of 3 May 2011, the Board carred an evaluation on the size, composition

and role of the Board of Directors itself and afgommittees, noting that:

- the size of the Board of Directors (eight memberserms of the bylaws requirement of
between five and eleven members) appears reasorakieg into consideration the size

and nature of corporate activities;

- the composition of the Board of Directors, condiugithat the three executive directors,
with specific experience in company management,anghom in finance, are supported
by five non-executive directors, of whom three mrdependent, two are lawyers and two

are chartered accountants, is appropriate;

- the role of the Board of Directors and its Comneitteas shown in the above table, appears
consistent with the size and nature of corporatéesiies with sufficient delegation of

powers granted to the Chairman and to one othexutive director.

The Meeting did not authorize, generally or preivaty, derogations to the non-competition

clause provided for by art. 2390 of the Civil Code.
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4.4 Management

Given the size of the Group and Parent Companynifi@ executive and managerial powers,
except those to (i) purchase or relocate compaagdhres or companies for amounts in excess
of Euro 5 million and (ii) to provide guaranteeseekry kind to third parties and for amounts in
excess of Euro 2 million, without prejudice, in aogse, to the competences of the Board
regarding significant transactions as identifiedhsy Board and mentioned above, are entrusted
to the Chairman Urbano Cairo, who is the main perso charge of defining corporate

strategies and management.

Director Uberto Fornara is entrusted with the reseand development of activities regarding
the sale of advertising space and/or advertisirakdrage (except for initiatives requesting
commitments and obligations by the Issuer), managerof the development of advertising
sales, in accordance with the guidelines approwedhe Board or by the Chairman, and

management of staff and the sales network invoivedivertising sales.

Director Marco Pompignoli is responsible for ovelisg and supervising the Group’s
administration, finance and management controltfans, which include the power to manage
and coordinate the activities of staff working irese areas and to coordinate the activities of
the Issuer’s legal and tax consultants, in any,dasaccordance with the instructions given by

the Chairman and promptly informing the Board.
The Chairman is also the controlling shareholdeCa&fo Communication.

The delegated bodies provide appropriate and reguofiarmation every three months to the

Board and to the Statutory Auditors. There is necexive committee.

4.5 Other executive directors

There are no other executive directors.

4.6 Independent Directors

Marco Janni, Roberto Rezzonico and Mauro Sala magdependent directors, appointed as

mentioned earlier by the shareholders at their Mgedf 28 April 2011.

Following their appointment, during the meeting3®May 2011, the Board of Directors and
Board of Statutory Auditors verified that they ntké requirements to be deemed independent

directors, pursuant to art. 148, paragraph 3, l&tijie Decree no. 58 of 24 February 1998, and
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to the subsequent requirements of the Corporatee@amnce Code issued by Borsa Italiana
S.p.A.

Specifically, regarding the requirements of indegmce of directors Marco Janni and Roberto
Rezzonico (who have been directors of the companyriore than nine years out of the last
twelve) and of Mauro Sala (who has been statutadjtar of the company for more than nine
years out of the last twelve), formally acknowledgithe opinion expressed, upon the
Company’s request, by Professor Matteo Rescignib ffofessor of commercial law at the
University of Milan), with the abstention of therpens involved, given the persistence of the
requirement of independence under art. 148, pgohgda of the TUF, and non-recurrence of
the most typical cases regarding absence of indigmee listed in application criterion 3.C.1 of
the Corporate Governance Code (letters from a),texcept for sub €), given the non-binding
nature - for the purposes of attributing the reguients of independence — of the application
criteria, considering in general terms the abseofc®@bjective and unambiguous elements
proving the existence of particular relations witie Issuer or with subjects linked with the

Issuer (such as the majority shareholder, etc.) ianghrticular:

() the absence of commercial, professional or persoslations between Marco Janni,
Roberto Rezzonico and Mauro Sala, on the one sidd, the Issuer, and companies

belonging to the same group and the controllingnesy on the other, and

(i) the acknowledged professional and moral qualitidh@directors in question, renowned

professionals with their own businesses;

(iii)y the low incidence of remuneration decided by thar&holders to the Board of Directors,
which includes remuneration for the participatidncertain directors in the committees
as per law and the bylaws, with respect to the alvermount of the fees of these

directors;

(iv) given also the interest of the Company to stillilaitaelf of the directors’ specific
experience and in-depth knowledge of the Compainyisr workings gained during their

term in its various bodies,

confirmed the persistence of the requirement oérmthdence of the foregoing directors. The
Board of Statutory Auditors formally acknowledgeuk tdecision and verified the proper
application of the criteria adopted by the Boardirectors to assess the independence of its

members.
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The number of independent directors, and theirtfancare deemed appropriate in relation to
the size of the Board of Directors and the Compaagtivities, and to allow the establishment
of the Remuneration, Internal Control and RelatadyPCommittees (for further information,
see § 8 and § 10 and § 12 below).

During the year, the independent directors, in ti@lito meeting regularly as members of the
Related Party Committee, held informal discussimmsarious occasions without reporting any

situation requiring clarification or further dis&isn.

4.7 Lead Independent Director

Considering that the Chairman of the Board of Owet is, in effect, the main person
responsible for the management of the company f(etiiecutive officer) and in addition is the
controlling shareholder of the company, the BodrDicectors elected an independent director,
Marco Janni, as Lead Independent Director, to wimam-executive directors report, for an
increased contribution to the activities and rdidhe Board. The Lead Independent Director
cooperates with the Chairman to guarantee thalitbetors receive a complete and timely flow
of information. In addition, he has the power td,a@hether autonomously or on the request of
other directors, appropriate meetings of independiectors for the discussion of issues
deemed of being in the interest of the role of Bloard of Directors or of the management of

the company.

5 Treatment of privileged information

Under the provisions regarding treatment of prgéé information, the Company established a
register of persons (physical persons, legal estibr associations) who, through their work or
professional dealings or the function they carry oo behalf of the Issuer, have regular or
occasional access to privileged information (ab2-bis), which is constantly updated (art. 152-

ter). All relevant persons have been fully infornadmbut the establishment of this register.

The Company also enacted the regulations whichreplacement of the self-regulation
included in the Code of Conduct on Insider Dealiplgces strict disclosure obligations on
“relevant persons” of listed companies in relationshare trading carried out by them or
persons closely linked to them.

In addition, the Company banned “relevant persomsth binding effect, from trading in

Company shares or related financial instrumentsngbgurchase, sale, subscription or
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exchange, either directly or through a third padyring the 15 days ahead of any meeting

called to approve the financial statements for thetiod. The exercise of stock options or

option rights relating to financial instruments @ny case, currently not in progress) is not

included in the ban. The sale of shares deriveth fstock option plans, including sales carried

out as part of the exercise of options, is alsargteThe restrictions, however, do not apply to

exceptional situations which are subjectively neaeg and appropriately motivated in the

interest of the Company.

The Company also has a procedure in place fornatenanagement and the publication of

documents and confidential information, particylgotice sensitive information governed by

the following directives

a) Confidential information (Information) is taken teean every piece of information and

news which relates to Cairo Communication S.p.Be €ompany) and its subsidiaries,
both direct and indirect (the Cairo Group) whici@ in the public domain or is by its
nature confidential or of exclusive pertinencette €Cairo Group. Even if expressed as
a personal opinion, a piece of information whichuldoaffect the price of Group
company financial instruments if made public (ijgrice sensitive) is deemed

Information

b) The management of Information is the sole respdiigibf the Company Chairman. In
particular, the communication of Information to Goh, the Communications
Regulatory Authority (Agcom), Borsa Italiana S.p.the media, press agencies, public
relations consultants, financial analysts, joustaliand any other administrative or
regulatory authorities overseeing the activitieshaf Cairo Group must be carried out
exclusively by the Company Chairman directly orasionally through representatives
chosen by him. All Directors and members of the loaf Statutory Auditors must
show the utmost discretion in relation to Inforroatiacquired while carrying out their

duties and must respect Company procedures relatitinge publication of Information.

c) Directors are responsible for the secrecy of docuat®n given to them in advance of
meetings of the Company Board of Directors. In aage, Directors must exercise

discretion in relation to Information acquired vehlerforming their duties.

d) The Chairman takes all measures necessary to ethsurglanagement and other Cairo

Group employees do not transmit Information to dhparties if not by law or
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regulation, and in respect of market best practitesrder to ensure that discretion is

exercised in relation to Information acquired whgkrforming their duties.

e) Should a Director be bound to disclose a piecenfidrination by the civil or legal
authorities, he must communicate this to the Chairimmediately unless otherwise

bound by law or the relevant authority.

f) Further to the provisions relating to the publioatof Information, in order to transmit
any other information to third parties, or to pshlian interview to the media that
relates partially or completely to the Cairo Gro@mmpany Directors and Statutory

Auditors must obtain specific prior approval of tBeairman.
6 Board of Directors’ Committees

The Board of Directors has set up three commitigdsn the Board itself — the Remuneration
Committee, the Internal Control Committee and tldaked Party Committee (see section 12

below).
7 Appointment Committee

The Board of Directors has decided not to procedét the formation of an Appointment
Committee, optional under the Corporate Governa@iode, as it was confirmed that the
restricted composition of the Board of Directorinis position to carry out the functions of the

Nomination Committee.
8 Remuneration Committee

On 3 May 2011, the Board of Directors appointed afdhree-year period, until approval of the
financial statements at 31 December 2013, the memtfethe “Remuneration Committee”,
composed of non-executive directors Antonio Magmalta, Chairman, Roberto Rezzonico

(independent) and Marco Janni (independent). tistfans include:

- formulation of proposals to the Board of Directoegarding remuneration to executive
directors, of other directors with particular respibilities and of key management

personnel;

- to periodically evaluate the adequacy, overall txtaacy and application of the general
policy adopted for remuneration to executive dimest of other directors with

particular responsibilities and of key managemeetsgnnel, using for the latter
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information furnished by the managing directorsd darmulating proposals to the

Board of Directors on the matter;

- to formulate proposals to the Board of Directors femuneration to the managing
directors and to other directors with particulaspensibilities, and to set performance
targets related to the variable component of rematiog, by overseeing the application
of the decisions adopted by the Board, verifyimgparticular, actual achievement of

the performance targets;

- to periodically evaluate the criteria adopted femuneration to key management
personnel, in addition to overseeing the applicatibany stock option plans (there are
no plans underway to date), on the basis of inftionaprovided by managing
directors, and to provide the Board of Directorsthwirelevant general

recommendations.

The functioning of the Remuneration Committee ivegned by a policy approved by the
Board of Directors. The Board of Directors has mdidancial resources available to the

Remuneration Committee for the execution of itcfions.

In 2011, theRemuneratiofCommittee met twice, for about 1 hour and withnaiimbers present.
At least two meetings are scheduled this year. imare kept of every meeting. The secretary

of the Committee is Marco Bisceglia.

On 3 May 2011, the Board of Directors allocatedd=20 thousand as annual remuneration to

the Remuneration Committee and Euro 2 thousartuetgecretary.
9. Directors’ Fees

The general policy for directors’ fees is illusadtin the Remuneration Report, prepared
pursuant to art. 123-ter of the TUF, and will bérsitted to the Shareholders at their Meeting

held to approve the 2011 financial statements,lizhvreference is made for all the details.

At their meeting of 12 March 2012 the Board of Bigrs’ established a general remuneration
policy for the year 2012 (illustrated in Sectiomfl the Remuneration Report) for executive
directors, other directors with particular respbilgies and key management personnel, which

sets out, among other things, the guidelines fer th

a) balancing of the fixed and variable components wébard to strategic objectives and

company risk management policy, and ceilings foralde components,
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b) appropriateness of the fixed component for a dirgstduties, should the performance
targets indicated by the Board of Directors notrigt and the resulting variable component

not be paid,

c) measurability of performance targets and connecdtibthese targets to the creation of

value for shareholders in the medium-long-term,

d) deferral of part of the variable component, coesistvith the risk profiles associated with

the company's business.

Incentivized remuneration criteria have gradualy introduced over the years for executive

directors and key management personnel.

For financial year 2011, the Board of Directors, I May 2011, upon the proposal of the
Remuneration Committee, and with the favourableiiopi of the Related Party Committee,

decided, pursuant to art. 2389 of the Italian GBadlde, paragraph lll, on:

- fees to Chairman Urbano Cairo, CEO Uberto FornadhRirector Marco Pompignoli,
holding particular responsibilities, amounting resjpvely to Euro 480 thousand, Euro
60 thousand and Euro 90 thousand,

- an incentivized variable component mechanism foDQ@iberto Fornara.

The Board, instead, deemed not to decide on varitd#s to Urbano Cairo, Chairman and

holder of the main executive and management powesio Marco Pompignoli, who oversees

and supervises Group administration, finance andagmment control, since Urbano Cairo is

the controlling shareholder and, regarding Marcmpignoli, on account of the roles held. The

Board, upon proposal by the Remuneration Commitek with the favourable opinion of the

Related Party Committee, had, instead, deemed gtoppate to consider for these senior

figures a supplement to their annual salary decadegost based on the company’s business

results, for the most part achieved as a resuhlaif work.

In 2011, the variable component of fees to CEO WbEbrnara, amounting to 395 thousand
(approximately 45% of his total Group remuneratiams linked to the achievement of targets

regarding increase in advertising revenue and auntnt of variable costs.

Upon proposal by the Remuneration Committee, aitld thie favourable opinion of the Related
Party Committee, based on the overall quality &ssest of activities performed, the Board of
Directors, on 14 February 2012, established forl201
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- for Chairman Urbano Cairo, supplementary fees ammoginto Euro 200 thousand

(approximately 17% of his total Group remuneration)

- administrative and financial director Marco Pomgilijnsupplementary fees amounting

to Euro 110 thousand (approximately 20% of hisltGt@up remuneration).

Directors’ fees for the year 2011 are illustratedSection I, Part Il of the Remuneration

Report.
Marco Pompignoli is also the Financial Reportingridger.

There are no share-based incentive plans in ptadavour of executive directors and/or key

management personnel.

Remuneration to non-executive directors is not thase company performance. They do not

receive any share-based incentive plans.

There are no agreements in place between the Conapaththe directors for any indemnity in
the event of resignation or unjust dismissal, orthie event their employment relationship
ceases following a takeover bid.

Agreements are in place between the Company anddJBernara for payment of an annual
remuneration equal to 150% solely of his grossrgdta his capacity as director, which will

become effective upon termination of his relatiopgirior to non-competition commitments in

the year following termination of his employmentiwihe Company.

10. Internal Control Committee

On 3 May 2011, the Board of Directors appointedddhree-year period (until approval of the
financial statements at 31 December 2013) the memifethe Internal Committee, composed
of non-executive directors Roberto Rezzonico (imaeent), Chairman, Mauro Sala
(independent) and Antonio Magnocavallo. The Inte@antrol Committee, in accordance with
the Corporate Governance Code, is currently forragdnon-executive directors. Roberto
Rezzonico has appropriate experience in accouatidginancial issues.

The role of the Internal Committee is to assistBobard of Directors in the following matters:

i) define the guidelines of the internal control sgsteo that the main risks affecting

the Company and its subsidiaries are correctly tiied and appropriately
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measured, managed and monitored, identifying thenéxo which these risks can

be tolerated to assure sound and accurate managefitba company;

i) appoint an executive director to supervise the atpmr of the internal control

system;
the Committee also

iii) evaluates, together with the Financial Reportinghddger and with the auditors, the
proper application of accounting policies, andhia tase of groups, overall consistency

of the consolidated financial statements;

iv) upon request by the executive director in chargeexpress an opinion on specific
aspects relating to the identification of the maorporate risks and the planning,

implementation and management of the internal cbstrstem;

V) examines the action plan and reviews periodic tepmepared by the internal control
manager;
vi) evaluates the results illustrated in the auditoeport and, if applicable, in the

management letter;
vii) monitors the effectiveness of the audit process;

viii) reports to the Board of Directors, at least evéxynsonths, on the date of the approval
of the financial statements and half-year repamtstheir activities carried out and on

the appropriateness of the internal control system.

To ensure correct performance of their duties, Grmenmittee has the power to access all
necessary corporate information and to intervidmetessary corporate personnel, in addition
to make reference to external consultants, in @zoare with the terms established by the

Board of Directors. The secretary of the Commiiselglarco Bisceglia.

In 2011, the Internal Control Committee met twikknutes of the meetings, lasting for about 3

hours, were recorded. Five meetings are schedniggdar, and one has already been held.

The meetings were generally attended, upon ingitatby the Chairman of the Board of
Statutory Auditors, or another of its members, bgresentatives from the audit firm, by the
Executive Director in charge of the internal cohtsystem and by the internal control

manager.
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The operation of the Internal Control Committeeg®/erned by an appropriate regulation
approved by the Board of Directors. The Board ofebliors provides the Committee with

sufficient resources to fulfill its duties.

During the above activities, and based on the tepmgceived from the internal control
manager, no facts of particular relevance emerded heeded to be reported and the

Committee deemed the internal control system amlegipropriate.

On 3 May 2011, the Board of Directors allocatedd=20 thousand as annual remuneration to
the Internal Control Committee and Euro 2 thoudantie secretary.

11. Internal control system

Purposes and abjectives

The internal control system of the Cairo CommurndratGroup consists of a set of rules,
procedures and organizational structures, whictlroutfh an appropriate process of
identification, measurement, management and mongaf major risks, ensures that financial

information is fair, accurate, reliable and timely.

The reference model adopted by the Group for theeimentation of its internal control system
complies with domestic and international best pcastand with the indications set by the laws
and regulations Cairo Communication is requireccamply with as a company listed on a
regulated market, such as in particular law 2628280d consequent articles 154-bis and 123-
bis of the Consolidated Finance Act and Legislabeeree 195/07 (“Transparency Decree”) as

well as the Corporate Governance Code of Borsiatia) to which Cairo conforms.

The system has been designed and implemented folidive guidelines issued by a number of
sector bodies regarding the activities performed thg Financial Reporting Manager,

specifically:
- Position Paper Andaf “Financial Reporting Manager”;
- Position Paper AllIA “Law no.262 on the ProtectidrPoaiblic Savings”;

- Confindustria guidelines “Guidelines for the fuwets performed by the Financial

Reporting Manager pursuant to art. 154-bis TUF".

The Board of Directors, assisted by the Internait@d Committee, defines the policies of the

internal control system, so that the primary rigksvhich the Company and its subsidiaries are
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exposed are identified, evaluated, managed andtamedi correctly, identifying the extent to

which these risks can be tolerated to assure sandcccurate management of the company.

Over the past financial years, the Group has sepdiicy lines of the internal control system in
order to rationalize the overall system by mapm@ng classifying subjects involved, organize
the main reporting flows within the Group and ezpte the responsibilities and areas of

activities taking place.
The evaluation of the internal control system gutarly conducted to verify its ability:

- to react to significant situations of risk in a éily manner, ensuring appropriate control

mechanisms;

- in terms of corporate processes, to guarantee propqate degree of segregation of
duties between operating functions and control tions to avoid conflicts of interest

in the responsibilities assigned,;

- in terms of the operating activities and accountimgl administrative activities, to
guarantee systems and procedures that assure dheatecrecording of company and
management events, in addition to the provisiometible and timely information,

both internal and external to the Group;

- to provide for methods to ensure the timely commation of any significant emerging
risks and anomalies in control to the appropriateu Management, and to enable the

identification and timely execution of remedies.

Main characteristics of existing risk management and internal control systemsin relation to
thefinancial reporting process (pursuant to art. 123 bis, paragraph 2, letter b), T.U.F.)

Stages of the system of existing risk managemehninggrnal control systems in relation to the

financial reporting process

The risk management and internal control systemrelation to the Group's financial
information rests basically on the application amghitoring of relevant corporate procedures

for the purposes of the preparation and disclostifmancial information.
Specifically, the internal control system is spiit into the following stages:
a) Identification and evaluation of risks relatedihancial information;

b) Identification of controls upon identificatior sks;

54



c) Evaluation of controls upon identification ofks.

The evaluation procedures and instruments uselebstoup are periodically subject to review
processes aimed at the verification of their silitgland function as compared to the corporate
reality, which is by its very nature mutable. THere, where possible, an information flow has

been put in place in order to maintain, updateiammove system quality.

a) Risk identification and evaluation for financiapting: the identification of both the

scope of the entries and their “significant” pramssin terms of potential impact on
financial reporting, and of the risks consequerdng missed control objectives, comes
about by way of a quantitative analysis of the fiicial statement items and a

qualitative evaluation of the processes.

The quantitative analysis, aimed at the identifmatof the relevant entries, is
performed through the application of the concept‘'rofteriality” to the combined

items in the trial balance of the Cairo CommunimaiGroup. The materiality threshold
was determined as a fixed percentage in compliaiitbethe indications in article 2621
of the Italian Civil Code (replaced by Law no. 2828 December 2005).

Once the significant accounts have been identiftedugh the account-processes

combination, the significant processes are theiindisished.

The qualitative analysis, through the evaluationtls significance of the business
processes and of their level of complexity, intéggathe quantitative analysis,
determining the inclusion or the exclusion of thregesses in regard to the scope of

reference.

For each process identified as significant, theeetlaen also identified specific process
risks, which in the event of their occurrence, vdocbmpromise the achievement of the
objectives connected to the system: that is to #agse of accuracy, reliability,

credibility and timeliness of financial reporting.

The financial reporting manager reviews the definitof the scope of reference at least
annually and also, each and every time that eleggneritich might change the analysis

performed in a significant manner, are manifested.

b) Identification of the controls corresponding to ilentified risks the identification of

the controls necessary for the mitigation of theeasmined risks is performed

associating the risks identified to the relativatcol objectives, meaning the group of
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objectives that the financial reporting controlteys intends on achieving in order to

ensure a true and correct representation.

The controls established have been formalized énaidpecific matrix (“Matrix of risks

and controls”).

c) Evaluation of the controls corresponding to thentidied risks the evaluation of the

administrative and accounting control system isegerformed at least annually.

The valuation of the suitability of the actual dpgtion of the controls is performed
through specific verification activities, aimed gwaranteeing the programming and
implementation of the identified controls, uponigation and coordination on the part

of the financial reporting manager.

Each test, with its respective outcome, is docustebly way of the formalization of a

schedule and filing of the figures.

Based on the results of the verification work, fin@ncial reporting manager, with the
aid of the support staff, defines a remedy plaasto correct any deficiencies that may
impact negatively on the effectiveness of the msknagement and internal control

system in relation to financial reporting.

With at least annual frequency, the financial réipgr manager confers with the
internal control committee and the board of stajutuditors and communicates with
the company supervisory boards, regarding the ndetheith which the suitability
evaluation and the application of the controls aadministrative - accounting
procedures have been conducted, then expressirayhigvaluation on the suitability

of the administrative - accounting control system.

Roles and functions

Art. 154-bis of the Consolidated Finance Act pr@ddfor the presence, in the corporate
organization of listed companies, of the “FinandRéporting Manager”, appointed by the
Board of Directors in concert with the Managing dditor. The Manager is responsible for
planning, implementing and approving the accounting administrative control model, and
for assessing its application, issuing a certifaat half-year, annual and consolidated financial
statements.

The Manager is also responsible for preparing aatequadministrative and accounting
procedures for the formation of the separate ambaaated financial statements, and for
providing subsidiaries, considered as significantities for the preparation of the Group’s
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consolidated financial reporting, with instructioms how to perform an appropriate evaluation
of their accounting control system.

The risk management and internal control over figreporting also involves other subjects
typical of the Company’s Corporate Governance $stine¢ such as the Board of Directors, the
Internal Control Committee, the internal controlmager and the Board of Statutory Auditors.

Overall evaluation of the appropriateness of the internal control system

Based on the information and evidence gatheredviitlg an enquiry conducted by the Audit
Committee, supported by Management and by the niateaudit manager, the Board of
Directors deems the internal audit system to bea aghole, appropriate for allowing, with
reasonable assurance, achievement of the Compudnjgttives.

The evaluation, as it refers to the overall inteaadit system, is by nature limited. Although
well-structured and in operation, the internal auslistem is designed only to guarantee
accomplishment of corporate objectives with “readide assurance”.

11.1 Executive director responsible for the inékicontrol system

Marco Pompignoli, executive director, is resporsilibr overseeing the operation of the

internal control system. In 2011, he was respoaditn:

- identifying main corporate risks (strategic, opienadl, financial and compliance), taking
account of the nature of the operations carriedbguhe company and its subsidiaries, to

submit them for the review of the Board of Direstor

- executing the policies as identified by the BoafdDirectors, including their planning,
realization and their management by the internaltrob system, constantly monitoring

their overall appropriateness, effectiveness afidieficy,

- adapting the system to the dynamics of the opeyatonditions and to the legal and

regulatory framework.

11.2 Internal control manager

The role of internal control manager is carried bytan external professional, Ezio Micheli,
appointed at the end of 2007 on the proposal madbebexecutive director responsible for the
internal control system and taking account of th@mion of the Internal Control Committee,

who reports to the Internal Control Committee amthe Board of Statutory Auditors.
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The Board of Directors has assigned the internatrobmanager the responsibilities foreseen
by the Corporate Governance Code and has defireedemuneration, in line with corporate

policy, providing him with the appropriate meandutill his duties.

The Board of Directors has verified that this perpossesses the necessary professional and
independence requirements to perform such functioparticular, he is not in charge of any
operating area and is not subordinate to any peirsarharge of operating areas, including

administration and finance.

The internal control manager has been allowed daecess to all useful information for the
performance of his duties and has reported ondiigitées to the Internal Control Committee
and to the Board of Statutory Auditors and to tkecative director responsible for overseeing

the operation of the internal control system.

In 2011, the activities of the internal control ragar mainly focused on verifying the updating
and implementation process of corporate procedures.also performed internal control
functions and is member of the Supervisory Boanmymant to Legislative Decree 231/2001, as

indicated in section 11.3 below.

11.3 Organizational Model pursuant to Legislative Dec?81/2001

On 31 March 2008, the Board of Directors adoptédioalel for organization, management and
control pursuant to Legislative Decree 231/2001gébizational Model), thereby providing

itself with a set of principles of conduct and mrdares to comply with the requirements of
Legislative Decree 231/2001, both in terms of thevention of crime and illicit acts, and in

terms of control measures to ensure implementatfche Model itself. A similar model was

also adopted on 13 November 2008 by the subsidiati@ro Pubblicita S.p.A. and Cairo

Editore S.p.A.

As part of the activities for verifying the applizan and updating of its Organizational Model,
in 2009 the Supervisory Board deemed it approptiateropose the updating of the Model to
add, in the general and special sections, a spqaiit involving crimes regarding handling of
stolen goods and money laundering, and one inv@leimmputer crimes, which had been left

out in the original version.

On 30 July 2009, the Board of Directors approvea iew model, which acknowledges such
adjustments. A similar new organization model wdspaed on 13 November 2009 by the
subsidiaries Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. and Cairo &ditS.p.A.
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The Organizational Model adopted is made up oftaokerinciples, rules and organizational
hierarchies relating to the management and coofrobrporate activities and is presented in an

explanatory document which:
- identifies the activities in which crimes could tmmmitted;

- provides for specific rules directed at planning tarmation and performance of corporate

decisions relating to crimes to be prevented,;
- identifies methods for the management of finaneaburces directed at crime prevention;

- provides for the provision of information to thedyodeputized with oversight of the

operation and observation of the models (SuperyiBoard);

- introduces a disciplinary system directed at punigfailure to respect measures identified

by the Organization Model.

The Organizational Model adopted provides for thespnce of a corporate body responsible
for assuming the functions of a control body (Swuisery Board) with autonomous
responsibilities for the supervision, control amdtiative related to the Model, composed of
three members who must be selected from personsmdhgroven abilities in inspection,
management, administration and legal matters, ammb wnust also possess minimum

requirements of professionalism and integrity.

Specifically, the Supervisory Board verifies tha tompany has an appropriate Organizational
Model in place and ensures it is effectively catrot, certifying its own effectiveness whilst
carrying out its functions, ensuring the progressipdate, thus guaranteeing constant process

of adjustment to the above-mentioned operatingaratfanizational principles.

In 2011, the members of the Supervisory Board afacC&ommunication S.p.A. were Ezio

Micheli, internal control manager, Giacomo Leond duarco Bisceglia, Chairman.

11.4  Audit Firm

At their Meeting on 28 April 2011, upon proposal the Board of Statutory Auditors, the
Shareholders conferred the audit engagement fo2@d-2019 nine-year period to KPMG

S.p.A., approving the relevant fee.
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11.5 Financial Reporting Manager

The Board of Directors appointed Marco Pompign@lhief Financial Officer of the Cairo
Communication Group, as the Financial Reporting &fgm. He has the appropriate
professional requirements (graduate in businessnégtnation, previously working for a major
audit firm, gaining significant experience in ItaBnd abroad, and a certified accountant

registered in Forli).

Marco Pompignoli, as board member of the compasypriovided with executive and
management powers to oversee the administratioandie and management control functions

of the Group the Issuer is part of.

12. Related party transactions

Consob, through Resolution no. 17221 of 12 Marchi020amended through subsequent
Resolution no. 17389 of 23 June 2010, adopted,upntsto art. 239bis of the Italian Civil

Code, and to articles 118, 114, 115 and 15&r of the TUF, the regulations regarding
provisions pertaining to related party transactiadnswhich management bodies of issuers of

widely distributed securities must comply (tHeegulation”).

At its meeting of 11 November 2010, the Board ofebiors of Cairo Communication S.p.A.,
upon favourable opinion of the Independent Diresstadopted the procedures for related party
transactions (the “Procedures”), for the purposgudranteeingsubstantial and procedural
transparency and fairness of related party trangatt” carried outby the Company directly

or through its subsidiaries, establishing a Rel&ady Committee.

Pursuant to the Regulation, Cairo Communicationoissidered a “small company”, since its
assets and its revenue shown in the consolidateddial statements at 31 December 2010, are
lower than Euro 500 million, amounting respectivieyapproximately Euro 189 million and to
approximately Euro 244 million. For such companitise Regulation provides for the
possibility to “apply to transactions of greatemimntance, as a waiver to art. 8, a procedure

identified pursuant to art. 7 of the Regulatioraftsactions of lesser importance).

The procedures adopted by the Company, availablewsw.cairocommunication.it in the
Corporate Governancesection to which reference is made for more details, hals a
identified:

a) the definition of related parties and transactions;
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b) roles and responsibilities;

c) transactions of greater importance, being thosavhiich at least one of the ratios of
significance €quivalent value relevance ratio, assets and liaed relevance ratip set
out in the Regulation are higher than the threstlwl®%, or of 2.5% for transactions

whose purpose is the disposal of intangible asgetgategic importance;

d) the exemptions provided in the Regulation and optethe Company, mainly transactions
of smaller amounts (Euro 150,000), remunerationgfaursuant to art. 114-bis of the TUF
(which comply with the obligations regarding traasggmcy and substantial and procedural
correctness provided by the temporary provisionf®iioe), regular transactions concluded

under market-equivalent or standard conditions #ied transactions with and between

subsidiaries and/or associates

e) the procedures regarding the preliminary proceediagd approval of related party
transactions and the regulations in cases wherectimnepany examines or approves

transactions with subsidiaries;

f) the procedures and timing adopted to provide in&tiom on the transactions, and the
related documentation, to the directors or indepandirectors who express opinions on
related party transactions, as well as to the memagt and independent advisors, before

their approval, during and after their execution.

Related party transactions of greater importaneereserved to the exclusive competence of
the Board of Directors and may not be delegated. 8tecution of such transactions, as well as
those of lesser importance, is subject to a nodibgopinion of the Related Party Committee,

or of other bodies indicated in the procedures.

In the event one or more transactions are approwuetlyithstanding a negative opinion
expressed by the Committee and/or other bodie<C tinegpany draws up and makes available to
the public at its main registered office within dlays from the close of each quarter of the
financial year, a document containing indicatiorthed counterparty, of the object and counter
value of such transactions approved in the quafteeference, as well as the reasons why that
opinion has not been shared. Within the same tihig opinion is made available to the public

in attachment to the above document or on its vwelsivw.cairocommunication.it.

Regarding transactions of greater importance fallinder the competence of the Shareholders,
in the event the resolution proposal is approvetlyithstanding contrary advice by the Related

Party Committee (or by other bodies), the transacts not carried out if the majority of
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unrelated shareholders votes against the transacpimvided the unrelated shareholders
attending the Meeting represent at least 10% okhage capital with voting right (whitewash
mechanism). For such purpose, in the resolutiopgsal, the Board adds a provision that

specifies that the effectiveness of the transadti@ubject to the foregoing majority.

Related party transactions must comply with trarspey and substantial and procedural

correctness criteria and are executed in the eixelusterest of the Company:

- substantial correctness means correctness of dhedction from an economic point of
view when, for instance, the transfer price of godglin line with market prices and,
more in general, when the transaction has not liefimenced by the related party
relationship, or at least said relationship hasdsbermined the acceptance of conditions

that are unjustifiably penalizing for the Company;

- procedural correctness means compliance with puyesdaimed at ensuring the
substantial correctness of the transaction andefiie, observance of the rules through
which it is at least potentially ensured that retbparty transactions do not determine any

unjustified prejudice to the reasons of the Compamy its investors.

At the Board of Directors’ meeting called to reslen such related party transactions,
directors who have even a potential or indirectri@st in the transaction must provide prompt
and exhaustive information in person to the Boardhe existence of such interest and on the
circumstances thereof, abandoning the meeting eatmtbment of the resolution. Should the
directors’ presence be needed to maintain the sapesjuorum, the Board may decide, upon

the unanimous decision of the attendants, for ttextbrs not to abandon the meeting.

The Regulation also provides for a series of ohibge to inform the public on transactions of
greater importance, as well as for those of legsportance, at least every quarter in the latter

case.

The Committee for the approval of related partysections (hereinafter, th&®élated Party
Committe€”), regardless of the importance, is appointedh®yBoard of Directors and can be

composed of three members:

(i) otherwise than under the case indicated in thevatg point (ii), its members are
non-executive directors, the majority of whom ardependent. In such case, the

Committee may coincide, as it does today, withlthernal Control Committee;

(i) in the event at least three independent directave lbeen elected to the Board of

Directors, the members of the Committee are akpahdent directors.
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On 3 May 2011, the Board of Directors appointed thembers of the Related Party
Committee, composed of the three independent diredlarco Janni, Chairman, Roberto
Rezzonico and Mauro Sala, and allocated Euro 20stod as annual remuneration to the
Related Party Committee. The Board also allocate® B thousand as annual remuneration to
the secretary of the committee, Marco Bisceglia.

The Committee is required to perform all the tasidicated in the Regulation and in the
procedures. Specifically, its task is to releasenativated opinion on the interest of the
Company (or, if the case, of its subsidiaries) loa éxecution of related party transactions and
on the convenience and substantial correctneserafittons thereto. If required by the nature,
extent and characteristics of the transactionRékated Party Committee may also be assisted
by one or more independent experts of its choitmse fees are paid by the Company, through

the acquisition of specific reports and/or fairnasd/or legal opinions.

The Board of Directors may decide on remuneratarspecial responsibilities pursuant to art.
2389, paragraph 3, of the Italian Civil Code, te @ommittee members for each transaction it

is required to express an opinion on.

13. Appointment of the Board of Statutory Auditors

Under art. 26 of the company bylaws, the Boardtafusory Auditors is appointed on the basis

of lists submitted by the shareholders containinggaimum of five candidates
Specifically:

- members of the Board of Statutory Auditors are agppd on the basis of lists that must
be submitted at the registered office of the Compauthin 25 days prior to the
Shareholders’ Meeting called to decide on the agpmnt of the members of the Board
of Stattutory Auditors, made available to the pubét the registered office, on

www.cairocommunication.iand in accordance with the other procedures pealvioy

law and the regulations, at least 21 days befazedtite of the Meeting. Upon expiry of
the time limit of 25 days prior to the Meeting, ihe event only one list has been
submitted, or lists submitted by shareholders wigocannected, pursuant to applicable
provisions, lists may be submitted until the foudhy (as set forth in the bylaws)
subsequent to such date. In this event, the fonggdi5% threshold (or other minimum

amount set by prevailing laws) is reduced by half;
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- lists admitted to the voting are those submittegshgreholders who, either individually
or jointly with other shareholders, represent aste2.5% of the shares entitled to vote in
the ordinary meeting, or other minimum amount sgtGonsob.Ownership of the
minimum stake required for the submission of listddetermined on the basis of the
shares recorded in the name of the shareholdehemldte the lists are filed with the
Company candidates holding the position of statutoryismdn 5 (five) other listed
companies (excluding their subsidiaries, althougted) or holding a number of
positions exceeding the cumulative limit prescrilbbdaw and by Consob, or failing to
possess the requirements of integrity and profaatism established by prevailing laws,
shall not appear in the lists. Each list shall beoampanied a) by information regarding
the identity of the shareholders who have submittedist, indicating total percentage of
shares held, and by prescribed certification oneargmip of the stake, which may be
submitted also subsequent to filing, provided witttie time limit set for publication of
the lists; b) by a statement of the shareholddrerahan those who hold, also jointly, a
controlling or relative majority interest, declaginthey have no relationship of
connection, pursuant to applicable provisions; c)btailed information regarding the
personal and professional qualifications of thedidates, and a statement with which
each candidate accepts nomination and attestsy anaheresponsibility, that there are no
reasons for ineligibility or incompatibility witthe position, and confirms possession of

the requirements prescribed by law and the bylawghe respective positions.

- the chairman of the board of statutory auditdralisbe the candidate indicated on top of
the list that has received the second-highest numbeotes. The bylaws do not provide
for the appointment of more than one minority dtatyauditor, nor do they provide for
the possibility of drawing a number of alternatelitars from the minority list to replace

the minority member greater than the minimum resplisy Consob.

- should two or more lists reach a tie, the prevgilist shall be the list possessing the

largest shareholding or, in the event of a tie Highest number of shareholders.

14. The Board of Statutory Auditors (pursuant to at. 123 bis, paragraph 2, letter d),
T.U.F)
At their Meeting on 28 April 2011 the Shareholdeppointed the Board of Statutory Auditors

for a three-year period, until the approval of fimancial statements at 31 December 2013, on

the basis of a single list presented by the maf@reholder, UT Communication S.p.A.
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approved with the favourable vote of 75.791% of share capital. The Board of Statutory
Auditors comprises three standing auditors, Maraardvii, Chairman, Maria Pia Maspes and
Marco Giuliani and two alternate auditors, MarionBaand Enrico Tamborini, who have
certified that they know of no relative cause ofligibility or incompatibility, and that they

meet the requirements for the position under ctdegyislation, specifically, the requirements
of independence provided by art. 148, paragraphf he TUF, and the requirements of

independence provided by industry regulations ffliapble on account of business activities

performed.
Board of Statutory Auditors
Post Members From Until List (M/m)* | Independence as| ** Number of
per Code (%) | other posts ***

Chairman Marco Moroni 01/01 31/12 M X| 100 14

Standing auditor Marco Giuliani 28/04 31/12 M X | 100 9

Standing auditor Maria Pia 01/01 31/12 M X | 100 12
Maspes

Alternate auditor Mario Danti 01/01 31/12 M X | nla n/a

Alternate auditor Enrico 01/01 31/12 M X | n/a n/a
Tamborini

------------------ AUDITORS WHOSE POST HAS EXPIRED DURG THE YEAR --------cccmooooeee-

Chairman Mauro Sala 01/01 28/04 M X | 100

Alternate auditor Ferdinando 01/01 28/04 M X | n/a n/a
Ramponi

Quorumrequired for the submission of lists at previopp@ntment: 2.5%

No. meetings held during the year: 5

NOTES:

* This column shows M/m depending on whether thalme was elected by the majority (M) or minority) (ist

** This column shows the participation percentadestatutory auditors to the BoA meetings (n. ofes present/n. of meetings
held during their term).

***This column shows number of directorships ortatary auditor positions deemed relevant pursuantitt. 148 bis of the
TUF.

In 2011, five meetings were held each lasting agprately 2 hours. Five meetings are

scheduled for the current year, one has already belel.

The Board of Statutory Auditors assessed the imidgrece of its members following their
appointment and then on an annual basis. For #ssaments, it based itself, among other
criteria, also on those prescribed by the Corpd&eernance Code regarding independence of

directors.

The Board of Statutory Auditors also oversaw trdependence of the Audit Firm, verifying the
respect of relevant regulatory requirements in seahthe nature and overall service provided
other than the audit services provided to the Com@and its subsidiaries by the same Audit

Firm and the entities forming part of its network.
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In the performance of its duties, the Board of tl@8tay Auditors coordinated its activities with
the internal control manager and with the Inte@ahtrol Committee, also with the attendance
of its Chairman or other statutory auditor deledato the meetings of the Internal Control

Committee.

15. Investor Relations

Cairo Communication has set up an appropriate@eati its website, which is easy to find and
easily accessible, in which all important companfgiimation of interest to shareholders is made
available.

To put a communication flow in place with the gerlébody of shareholders, also taking
account of the size of the Company and Group, anogpiate “investor relations” function has
been set up, managed by Mario Cargnelutti, whaperted by top management, particularly

in relation to dealings with institutional invessor

16. Shareholders’ Meetings

The functioning of the Shareholders’ Meeting, itsimpowers, shareholders’ rights and terms
of their exercise are those prescribed by the prong of law and regulations applicable, as

recently amended by Legislative Decree 27/2010rddgg shareholders’ rights.

Shareholders’ attendance of meetings and theieseptation is governed by the provisions of
law and the regulations. Art 12 of the bylaws stade follows: “®areholders’ attendancef
meetings and their representatimgoverned by the provisions of law and the retjoites. In
particular, shareholders authorized to cast a votay send notice by electronic means of the
proxies issued pursuant to the prevailing laws, dpcessing a specific section on the
Company’s website according to the procedures toirukicated in the notice of call of

shareholders’ meetings.

Considering the current number of participants am@any ordinary and extraordinary
shareholders’ meetings, which has never posed iskyto the rights of expression of any
member in relation to matters discussed, no reiguiatrelating to the orderly and functional

operation of the Meetings have been proposed toagproval of the Shareholders.

Voting by correspondence, e-voting and/or votinggsudiovisual links is not envisaged.
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Shareholders’ Meetings are an opportunity for infation regarding the Issuer to be
communicated to shareholders, as part of the cbdeaotice relating to privileged information.
In particular, at Shareholders’ Meetings, the Boafr®irectors reports on activities completed
and planned, and ensures that shareholders havepaigpe information on all topics required

in order to make decisions at the meeting with Knbbwledge of the facts.

In order to meet this objective, the Board of Dioes makes available to shareholders all
company information they deem relevant, in a timagnner, in accordance with the code of
practice relating to privileged information. Forchupurpose, a dedicated section of the
Company website has been set up where this tyjpgaination is displayed, with particular

detail on attendance at Shareholders’ Meetingsexkecise of voting rights and documentation

relating to items on the agenda.

17. Further corporate governance practices

There are no corporate governance practices furdhttie ones mentioned above applied by the

Company, aside from the legal or regulatory reaquémsts.
18. Changes after year end

There have been no changes in the Corporate Gowrrstructure after year end.

Treasury shares

Movements in treasury shares are disclosed in ROt the separate financial statements of

the Parent Company.

Stock Option

Cairo Communication has no current stock optiompkt this time.

Shares held by directors, statutory auditors and geeral managers

Shares held directly by Directors, Statutory Auditand General Managers are illustrated in

the Remuneration Report prepared pursuant to 28ttdr of the TUF.
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Other information

Research and development activities

There are no research and development activitigggdort having a significant effect on the

performance of the Company or the Group.

Human resources

By the nature of the activities it carries out, fmmmresources form a critical factor for the

success of the Group. The evaluation of staff, degelopment of their abilities and the

recognition of their achievements and responsigdiaire the principles which govern personnel

management, from the selection phase, which idititeid by the high degree of the Group’s

visibility and its ability to attract personnel.

Staff turnover during 2011 and its composition a8k December 2011 can be analyzed as

follows:

Description 01/01/2011 Recruitme Terminatio Advancem 31/12/2011
nts ns ents

Open-ended contracts 258 23 (13) 268

Senior managers 15 - (1) 14

Managers 19 1 - 20

Employees 125 16 (8) 133

Journalists and

freelance 99 6 4) 101

Fixed term contracts 3 9 (5) 7

Senior managers - - - -

Managers - - - -

Employees 2 4 4) 2

Journalists and 1 5 (1) 5

freelance

Total 261 32 (18) 275

Personnel can also be analyzed by average agedigation and seniority:
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Senior Managers Employees Journalists

managers

Men (number) 14 13 38 42
Women (number) - 7 97 64
Average age 50 47 41 45
Seniority 10 9 9 10
Open-ended contracts 14 20 133 101
Fixed term contracts - - 2 5
Other - - - -
Graduates 11 8 34 54
Diploma holders 2 12 81 49
Middle school graduates 1 - 20 3

Most of the employees (200) work in the publishéegment. Two out of seven editors-in-chief
of Group publications are women.

The advertising segment draws on a sales force asetpof approximately 100 agents (direct
and indirect) who are coordinated by senior salanagers and staff who, together with their
staff, also ensure coordination with the editord e promotion of special incentives.

The Group is committed to pursue health and safiejtgyctives at the workplace.

There were no accidents in the workplace or chdigesccupational diseases during the year.

Environment
The Cairo Communication Group has outsourced iislyetion processes. There are no major
environmental aspects which could affect the fimangosition or results of operations of the

company.

Privacy
Regarding privacy regulations, Cairo Communicatamd Group companies updated the

Personal Data Policy Document, which establisheatrment followed, resources subject to
security measures, risks, rules (physical and &gmeasures, and security organizational
measures) and the relating training plan.

In previous years, both the technical and orgaiwizat measures and methods, relative to the

conservation of the identifying details of the gystadministrators and to the verification of the
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work performed by them, to guarantee the monitoahthe work of the same, were adopted -

adding to those that were already operative whecessary.

EVENTSAFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As mentioned earlier, in 2011, the short and mediemm economic uncertainty began to

deteriorate — starting especially from autumn -ewing the overall economic-financial

scenario.

To date, there remains uncertainty over the peraglired for a return to normal market

conditions. According to AC Nielsen figures, adignyg investments in Italy in 2011 amounted

to approximately Euro 8.6 billion, down 3.8% vershs previous year (in particular, -3.7% the

magazine advertising market, and -3.1% the TV dtbreg market versus 2010).

Against such a harsh backdrop, in 2011 the Groopésating results surged versus 2010, thanks

to the high quality of its publications and of timedia under concession, and to its corporate and

publishing strategy, which helped implement cosbowyg measures to increase the effectiveness
and efficiency of production, publishing and distion processes.

In 2012, the Cairo Communication Group will conerio develop its core businesses:

- publishing, led by Cairo Editore and Cairo Publighiwith efforts geared towards:

0 returning to a strategy of development throughstioely, planning and launch of new
publications, which had marked its strong growtlth@ 2003-2006 four-year period.
In October, Cairo Editore chose Riccardo Signoratidl Marisa Deimichei as the
editors-in-chief of two new weeklies. The first, élmanale Nuovo”, led by
Riccardo Signoretti, debuted on newsstands on d8akg 2012 at a launch price of
50 cents. The second, a women’s weekly, will bad¢aed in 2012;

o confirming the high circulation levels of the pwdations, pushing ahead with the
efforts to improve the efficiency levels achievedcurbing production, publishing
and distribution costs;

- advertising sales on TV, on the Group's publicatiand on Prima Comunicazione, on
the Internet and at the “Olimpico” stadium in Tufior Torino FC, with the aim of
increasing advertising revenue, thanks also tstlung rise achieved in audience shares
in 2011 by LA7, and to the significant circulatidavels boasted by the Group’s
publications, both in absolute terms and versuspadition in its areas of operation.

Looking at the publishing segment, the first 6 eswf “Settimanale Nuovo” posted average

sales of approximately 419 thousand copies.
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As for advertising, as mentioned earlier, in 20147laudience shares confirmed the trend that
had started in autumn 2010 and increased by 243482% average all-day share versus 3.07%
in 2010).

Based on the order book as at 9 March 2012 forréidivey aired and to be aired on LAY in the
January-March three-month period of 2012, amountimgEuro 50.4 million, the revenue
achieved in the same three-year period of 2011a(BAr6 million) has already been exceeded by
over 27%, with a consolidation, as at the same, dét@udience shares versus the same period of
the previous year.

Given the high quality of the Group’s publicaticarsd of the media under concession, and taking
also into account the costs incurred for launchivegtwo new publications, the target for 2012 to
increase the operating results of 2011 is considéeasible. However, the evolution of the

general economic situation could affect the fuhiagement of this target.
For the Board of Directors,

Chairman

Urbano Cairo
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Dear Shareholders,

At the meeting held on 12 March 2012, the Boardiéctors resolved to submit the financial

statements as at and for the year ended 31 Decetfithérto the approval of the Shareholders

and to propose the distribution of a dividend @&0OEuro per share inclusive of tax, Euro 0.15 of
which already distributed as an interim dividendiemthe decision of the meeting of the Board

of Directors of 30 November 2011.

Shareholders are invited:

- to approve the financial statements as at anchioyéar ended 31 December 2011,

- to resolve on the proposal to distribute to shddsrs, with the exception of treasury
shares held the evening prior to the detachmem, @datlividend of 0.30 Euro per share,
inclusive of tax, Euro 0.15 of which already distried as an interim dividend under the
decision of the meeting of the Board of Directdr8@ November 2011

= allocating for the dividend total profit for the ae of Euro 19,257,572,
considering the sum of Euro 11,695,811 alreadyridiged as an interim
dividend, hence distributing a further Euro 7,561,7

= drawing, for the difference, amounting to Euro 4,050, on the share
premium reserve, which may be lower or higher ddjpen respectively, on the
lower or higher amount of treasury shares, if dfd by the Company on the
evening prior to the detachment date, than tho$# & at 12 March 2012,
which were 371,326 shares.

If approved by the Shareholders, the balance oflttidend, amounting to Euro 0.15 per share,

will be distributed with detachment date on 7 M&L2 and payable on 10 May 2012.

For the Board of Directors,
Chairman

Urbano Cairo
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Consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December
2011

€ thousands 2011 2010
Revenue 1 281,549 243,560
Other revenue and income 2 2,567 2,871
Non-recurring income from Cairo-Telepiu arbitration 2 0 6,792
Changes in finished goods 3 (124) (35)
Raw materials, consumables and supplies 4 (24,501) (25,243)
Services 5 (192,988) (165,867)
Use of third party assets 6 (2,285) (2,422)
Personnel expense 7 (23,630) (21,753)
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impairment losses 8 (3,584) (3,738)
Other operating costs 9 (1,080) (1,078)
Operating profit 35,924 33,087
Loss on investments 10 (765) 1
Net financial income 11 1,327 349
Pre-tax profit 36,486 33,437
Income tax 12 (13,027) (12,640)
Profit from continuing operations 23,459 20,797
Loss from discontinued operations 13 (10) (67)
Profit for the year 23,44¢ 20,73(
- Owners of the parent 23,446 20,729
- Non-controlling interests - discontinued operations 0 0
- Non-controlling interests - continuing operations 3 1
23,449 20,730

Earnings per share (€)
- Earnings per share - continuing and discontinued operations 14 0.301 0.267
- Non-controlling interest - continuing operations 14 0.302 0.268

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010

Profit for the year 23,449 20,730
Loss on measurement of available-for-sale financial assets 17 8) (1,775)
Total comprehensive income for the year 23,44! 18,95¢
- Owners of the parent 23,438 18,954
- Non-controlling interests - from discontinued operations 0 0
- Non-controlling interests - continuing operations 3 1

23,441 18,955
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Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2011

€ thousands

Assets 31 December 2011 31 December 2010
Property, plant and equipment 16 2,724 2,656
Intangible assets 17 9,282 9,552
Investments 18 1,482 2,255
Non-current financial assets 58 64
Deferred tax assets 19 4,734 4,480
Total non-current assets 18,281 19,007
Inventories 20 3,389 2,952
Trade receivables 21 108,086 93,942
Receivables from parents 31 1,467 63
Other receivables and other current assets 22 7,521 14,792
Securities and other current financial assets 23 0 79
Cash and cash equivalents 24 54,701 58,260
Total current assets 175,164 170,088
Total assets 193,445 189,095
Equity and liabilities 31 December 2011 31 December 2010
Share capital 4,074 4,074
Share premium reserve 49,586 51,081
Prior years losses and other reserves (1,683) (5,700)
Interim dividend of Parent (11,696) 0
Profit for the year 23,446 20,729
Equity attribuible to the owners of the parent 63,727 70,184
Non-controlling inetersts and reserves 3 0
Total equity 25 63,730 70,184
Post-employment benefits 26 3,898 3,891
Provisions for risks and charges 28 2,182 2,124
Total non-current liabilities 6,081 6,015
Loans and borrowings 29 0 0
Trade payables 30 107,029 97,787
Payables to the parent 31 2,156 3,928
Tax liabilities 32 2,005 2,281
Other current liabilities 33 12,444 8,900
Total current liabilities 123,633 112,896
Total liabilities 129,714 118,911
Total equity and liabilities 193,445 189,095
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Consolidated statements of cash flows

€ thousands

2011 2010

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 58,260 43,741
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the year 23,449 20,730
- non-recurring 0 3,670
Amortization/Depreciation 842 975
Changes in intangible assets due to arbitration 0 3,152
- non-recurring 0 3,152
Impairment losses on investments 765 0
Net financial income (1,327) (350)
Income tax 13,027 12,622
- non-recurring 0 3,122
Change in post-employment benefits 7 78
Change in provisions for risks and charges 58 185
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital 36,822 37,392
(Increase) decrease in trade and other assets (6,872) (12,919)
- non-recurring 0 (5,941)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other liabilities 11,330 4,766
(Increase) decrease in current financial assets 79 0
(Increase) decrease in inventories (437) 1,359
TOTAL CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 40,921 30,598
Income tax paid (16,733) (8,052)
Financial expense paid (117) (21)
TOTAL NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 24,070 22,525
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(Acquisition) disposal net of PPE and intangible assets (641) (422)
Interest and financial income received 1,444 371
Dividends received from associates 0 0
Net increase in other non-current assets 6 19
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) 809 (32)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid (29,633) (15,515)
(Acquisition) disposal of treasury shares 1,200 0
(Increase) decrease in term bank deposits 0 7,543
- non-recurring 0 7,543
Other changes in equity (6) (2)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) (28,439) (7,974)
CASH FLOW OF THE YEAR (A)+(B)+(C) (3,559) 14,519
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1) 54,701 58,260
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Statement of changes in consolidated equity

€ thousands

Balance as at 31 December 2008
Allocation of profit

Dividend distribution

Purchase of treasury shares
Disposal of treasury shares
Other changes

Profit for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2009
Allocation of profit

Dividend distribution

Other changes

Profit for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2010
Allocation of profit

Dividend distribution

Interim dividend

Disposal of treasury shares
Other changes

Reclassification reserve for available-for-sale financial assets

Profit for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2011

Share capital Share premium Prior year Reserve for  Interim dividend Profit for the Equity Non- Total
reserve profit/(loss) and  available-for- year attributable to  controlling
other reserves sale financial owners of the interests share
assets parent capital and
reserves
1,074 57,661 (4,515) 0 0 12,922 70,142 ©) 70,136
12,922 (12,922) 0 0
(3,004) (12,448) (15,452) (15,452)
(409) (409) (409)
781 781 781
0 1 1
(349) 12,034 11,685 4 11,689
4,074 54,657 (3,669) (349) 0 12,034 66,747 (1) 66,746
12,034 (12,034) 0 0
(3,576) (11,939) (15,515) (15,515)
2 ()] [0))
(1,775) 20,729 18,954 1 18,955
4,074 51,081 (3,576) (2,124) 0 20,729 70,184 0 70,184
20,729 (20,729) 0 0
(1,495) (17,898) (19,393) (19,393)
(11,696) (11,696) (11,696)
1,200 1,200 1,200
(6) 6) ©)
(2132) 2,132 0 0
) 23,446 23,438 3 23,441
1,072 19,586 (1,683) 0 (11,696) 23,446 63,727 3 63,730
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Consolidated income statement pursuant to Consobd2olution no. 15519 of 27 July 2006

€ thousands
2011 Related parties % of total 2010 Related parties % of total
*)
Revenue 281,549 137 0,0% 243,560 122 0,1%
Other revenue and income 2,567 10 0,4% 2,871
Non-recurring income from Cairo-Telepiu arbitration 0 6,792
Changes in finished goods (124) (35)
Raw materials, consumables and supplies (24,501) (25,243)
Services (192,988) (1,748) 0,9% (165,867) (1,388) 0,8%
Use of third party assets (2,285) (2,422)
Personnel expense (23,630) (21,753)
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impairment loss (3,584) (3,738)
Other operating costs (1,080) (1,078)
Operating profit 35,924 33,087
Loss on investments (765) (765) 100,0% 1 1 100,0%
Net financial income 1,327 349
Pre-tax profit 36,486 33,437
Income tax (13,027) (12,640)
Profit from continuing operations 23,459 20,797
Loss from discontinued operations (10) (67)
Profit for the year 23,449 20,730

(*) Related party transactions are analyzed in Note 24
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Consolidated statement of financial position pursuat to Consob Resolution no. 15519 of 27 July

2006

€ thousands

Assets 31 December 2011 Related parties % of total 31 December 2010 Related parties % of total
) )

Property, plant and equipment 2,724 2,656

Intangible assets 9,282 9,552

Investments 1,482 1,471 99,2% 2,255 10 0,4%

Non-current financial assets 58 64

Deferred tax assets 4,734 4,480

Total non-current assets 18,281 19,007

Inventories 3,389 2,952

Trade receivables 108,086 356 0,3% 93,942 451 0,5%

Receivables from parents 1,467 1,467 100,0% 63 63 100,0%

Other receivables and other current assets 7,521 24 0,3% 14,792

Securities and other current financial assets 0 79

Cash and cash equivalents 54,701 58,260

Total current assets 175,164 170,088

Total assets 193,445 189,095

Equity and liabilities 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Share capital 4,074 4,074

Share premium reserve 49,586 51,081

Prior years losses and other reserves (1,683) (5,700)

Interim dividend of Parent (11,696) 0

Profit for the year 23,446 20,729

Equity attribuible to the owners of the parent 63,727 70,184

Non-controlling inetersts and reserves 3 0

Total equity 63,730 70,184

Post-employment benefits 3,898 3,891

Provisions for risks and charges 2,182 2,124

Total non-current liabilities 6,081 6,015

Trade payables 107,029 315 0,3% 97,787 239 0,2%

Payables to the parent 2,156 2,156 100,0% 3,928 3,928 100,0%

Tax liabilities 2,005 2,281

Other current liabilities 12,444 1,606 12,9% 8,900

Total current liabilities 123,633 112,896

Total liabilities 129,714 118,911

Total equity and liabilities 193,445 189,095

(*) Related party transactions are analyzed in Note 24
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Consolidated statement cash flows pursuant to ConsdResolution no. 15519 of 27 July 2006

€ thousands Year ended Year ended
31 December 2011 Related parties 31 December 2010 Related parties
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 58,260 43,741
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year 23,449 (2,366) 20,730 (1,265)
Amortization/Depreciation 842 975
Changes in intangible assets due to arbitration 0 3,152
Impairment losses on investments 765 0
Net financial income (1,327) (350)
Income tax 13,027 12,622
Changes in post employment benefits 7 78
Changes in provisions for risks and charges 58 185
Cash flow from operating activities beforechanges in working capital 36,822 (2,366) 37,392 (1,265)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other assets (6,872) (1,333) (12,919) 184
Increase (decrease) in trade and other liabilities 11,330 (90) 4,766 2,856
(Increase) decrease in current financial assets 79 0
(Increase) decrease in inventories (437) 1,359
TOTAL CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 40,921 (3,789) 30,598 1,775
Income tax paid (16,733) (8,052)
Financial expense paid (117) (21)
TOTAL NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 24,070 (3,789) 22,525 1,775
INVESTMENING ACTIVITIES
(Acquisitions) / disposals net in PPE and intangible assets (641) (422)
Interest and financial income received 1,444 371
Dividends received from associates 0 0
Net increase in other non-current assets 6 19
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) 809 0 (32) 0
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (29,633) (15,515)
(Purchase) disposal of treasury shares 1,200 0
(Increase) decrease in term bank deposits 0 7,543
Other changes in equity (6) (2)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) (28,439) 0 (7,974) 0
CASH FLOW OF THE YEAR (A)+(B)+(C) (3,559) (3,789) 14,519 1,775
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 54,701 58,260
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Main activities

Cairo Communication S.p.A. (the Parent) is a jaeitaek company enrolled with the Milan company
register.

The Cairo Communication Group operates as a pudlishmagazines and books (Cairo Editore — and its
division Editoriale Giorgio Mondadori — and Cairalfishing), as a multimedia advertising brokerisgll
advertising time and space on television, in pmiedia and in stadiums (Cairo Communication anddCair
Pubblicitda), and as an operator of Internet sil€Erévatore).

Its registered offices are at 56 Via Tucidide, Miladhome also to the administrative offices, the
advertising brokerage services and Il Trovatores pblishing business is located at Cairo Editat&5
Corso Magenta, Milan.

Figures are shown in thousands of Euro.

Basis of preparation

Structure, form and content of the consolidatedrfmal statements

The consolidated financial statements at 31 Dece@bgl have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
issued by the International Accounting Standardr8¢dASB”) and endorsed by the European Union, as
well as with the provisions arising from art. 9Lafgislative Decree no. 38/2005. The term IFRS exdus
mean all the international accounting standarda§”) and all the interpretations of the Internatibn
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IER, formerly the Standing Interpretations
Committee (“SIC”).

The consolidated income statements presented by nature, highlighting interim opiegaresults and
pre-tax results, and in order to allow a better snea of ordinary operating management performance.
Furthermore, cost and revenue components derivorg évents or transactions which, by their nature o
size are considered non-recurring, are also segppidentified in the financial statements and rloges in
accordance with the definition of non-recurring mgeand transactions held in Consob Communication
No. 6064293 of 28 July 2006.

The economic effect of discontinued operationshimas in a single line of the income statement lerttit
“profit/loss from discontinued operations”, undeRIS 5.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive incomalso reflects the changes arising from
transactions with non-ownéersseparately showing the relevant tax effectst thia

- profit and loss that could be directly recognibe@quity (for instance actuarial gains and logses
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- the effects of the measurements of derivativerunsents hedging future cash flows,

- the effects of the measurements of availableséde-financial assets,

- the effects arising from any change in accoungiragtices.

The consolidated statement of financial positiorpresents separately assets and liabilities brdiem

into current and non-current, indicating, on tweaate lines, “Assets held for sale” and “Liabdgi

associated with discontinued operations”, in acancg with IFRS 5. Specifically, an asset or a lighis

classified as current when it satisfies one offtitlewing criteria:

- it is expected to be realized or settled or iteipected to be sold or utilized in the normal
operating cycle of the company;

- it is held principally to be traded;

- it is expected to be realized or settled withtnnionths of the reporting date.

Otherwise, the asset or liability is classifiechas-current.

The consolidated statements of cash flowksas been prepared applying the indirect methodhich

operating performance is adjusted to reflect trati@as of a non-monetary nature, for whatever dafer

or accrual of previous or future operating receiptspayments and for revenue or cost components

connected to cash flows arising from investing ioaiicing activities. Income and expense relating to

medium or long-term financial operations and thidating to hedging instruments, and dividends paid

are included in financing activities.

The statement of changes in consolidated equishows the variations in equity relating to:

- allocation of profit for the year;

- amounts relating to transactions with ownersdcpase and sale of treasury shares);

and separately income and expense definédhasges arising from transactions with non-owneralso

shown in the consolidated statement of comprehernistome.

Furthermore in order to comply with Consob ResolutNo. 15519 of 27 July 2006 relating to financial
statements schedules, specific additional condelidancome statement, consolidated statement of
financial position and consolidated statement athclows have been added highlighting significant
related party transactions in order not to compsenthe overall readability of financial statements

schedules.

The consolidated financial statements are prepaned going concern basis. The Cairo Communication
Group believes that even in the presence of acdiffieconomic and financial situation, significant
uncertainties do not exist (as defined by paragreh and 26 of IAS 1) on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, given both the pifita outlook of Group companies and the Company’s

financial position.
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The main accounting policies adopted are unchamgexlis those used last year, and are explained/belo

Basis and scope of consolidation

The scope of consolidation includes consolidatdx$isiiaries (which are controlled as defined by &S

I.e. the financial and operational policies of tempany are under the control of the Parent inrotale
derive benefits from the company’s operations), andsolidated associates (over which significant
influence is exercised, pursuant to IAS 28).

The consolidated financial statements at 31 Decer@bé&l include the financial statements of the

Parent Cairo Communication S.p.A. and the followdingct or indirect subsidiaries.

Company Head Quota capital % Reporting Business Consolidation method
office  asat31/12/11 of investment date

Cairo Communication S.p.A. Milan 4,074 31/12 Advertising Full

Cairo Editore S.p.A. Milan 1,043 99.95 31/12 Publishing Full

Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidation Milan 2,000 60 31/12 In liquidation Full re assets and

liabilities (*)

Cairo Due S.r.l. Milan 47 100 31/12 Advertising Full

Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. Milan 2,818 100 31/12 Advertising Full

Cairo Publishing S.r.l. Milan 10 100 31/12 Publishing Full

Il Trovatore S.r.l. Milan 25 80 31/12 Internet Full

Edizioni Anabasi S.r.l. Milan 10 99.95 31/12 Publishing Full

Dmail Group S.p.A. Milan 15,300 10 31/12 E-commerce - Retail Single line

Publishing

(*) the income statement is consolidated on a sifige basis in profit/(loss) from discontinued G®ns

As in prior years, the financial statements of shbsidiary Cairo Sport S.r.l. have not been codatdid
as the company is not significant. The only chaitg¢he scope of consolidation compared with 31
December 2010 is the inclusion of the associateiD8@up S.p.A., consolidated using the single-line

method and previously classified under availabtestie financial assets.

The financial results of subsidiaries acquired ad -during the year are included in the consolidate

income statement from the actual acquisition datél uhe actual date of sale. Where necessary,
adjustments to subsidiary financial statementsraagle in order to harmonize them with the Group
accounting policies.

The consolidation method has been used for the otidation of subsidiary financial statements,

assuming the total of assets, liabilities, incomd axpense of individual companies, regardlesshef t

share owned, eliminating the carrying amount ofRheent investment against the subsidiary’s equity.
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Non-controlling interests in the net assets of otidated subsidiaries are disclosed separately &quity
attributable to owners of the parent. This stakeaisulated on the basis of the percentage stakteedir
value of the asset or liability on the original ghimse date and subsequent changes in equity after s
date.

The consolidation of the financial statements af tissociate was made on a single line basis, the
measurement of the investment being based on thityenethod.

Unrealized gains and losses, provided they aramwor, deriving from transactions between companies
included in the consolidation scope, are eliminatedare all significant transactions which givaero
intra-Group receivables and payables, income apeérese. These adjustments, like other consolidation
adjustments, where applicable, take account ofdlaed deferred tax effect.

Dividends distributed by consolidated companiesedirainated from the income statement and added to

prior year profits if and to the extent they weegdoout of such profit.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is recognized udimg acquisition method. The acquisition price is
calculated by the sum of current values, at thdamxge date, of the assets acquired, liabilitiearasd,
financial instruments issued by the Group in exgeafor the control of the acquired company. Stgrtin
from 2010, ancillary costs of the transaction a@gnized in profit and loss when they are incurred

The subsidiary’s assets, liabilities and identiigatontingent liabilities that meet the conditi@idFRS 3
are recognized at their current value on the agmqnsdate.

Goodwill arising from the purchase is recognizegasntangible asset and is initially measuredost,c
corresponding to that portion of the acquisitioic@mpaid by the Group exceeding the carrying amoéint
the recognized assets, liabilities and identifiaddatingent liabilities.

Equity attributable to non-controlling interestandae measured at fair value or in proportion toribe
assets recognized for the acquired company, aadhaisition date. The measurement method is chosen
based on type of transaction.

Non-controlling interests, investments in inactsugbsidiaries and investments in subsidiaries ofllsma

value are measured using the cost at the subearipethod, reflecting any impairment losses.

Here below is a summary of the most relevant adogipolicies adopted by the Group.

Investments
Associates
Associates are those over which the Group can eeesignificant influence through participation in

decisions regarding financial and operating podiciut holds neither control nor joint control.
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Using this method, investments in associates amegrézed in the statement of financial positiorcasdt,

The financial results, assets and liabilities ¢fogsates are consolidated using the equity method.

adjusted for changes subsequent to the acquisifitime net assets of associates, net of any imgeait
losses on individual investments. Any losses exiogetthe Group share therein are not recognizeassnl
the Group has a commitment relating to loss cowerddpe excess of acquisition cost over the Group
share of carrying amount of assets, liabilities atahtifiable contingent liabilities of the assdeiat the
acquisition date is recognized as goodwill. Evesgirygoodwill is tested for impairment.

With regard to transactions between Group compasmesassociates, unrealized profits and losses are
eliminated in a proportion equal to the Group intrent in the associate, except when unrealizee$oss

are evidence of an impairment loss on the busiaegsired.

Other investments (available for sale)

Other investments are measured at fair value &t year end.

With respect to measurement of available-for-safencial assets, the directors have chosen as
impairment indicators for the decline in fair valoelow cost of over 50%, or for a period exceedidg

months.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of a subsigiacorresponds to that portion of the acquisitiwite

paid by the Group that exceeds the Group sharkeofair value of the assets, liabilities and idabie
contingent liabilities of a subsidiary, at the aisition date. Goodwill is recognized as an intafgydsset
with an indefinite life and is not amortized. It isviewed annually to identify any impairment loss.
Impairment losses are recognized directly in prafid loss and are not subsequently reversed. In the
absence of a standard or a specific interpretatiothe subject, in the case of the acquisition aba-
controlling interest in an existing subsidiary, top31 December 2009, the difference between theafos
acquisition and the carrying amount of the assaddiabilities acquired is recognized as goodwill.

Goodwill arising from acquisitions carried out befdaransition to IFRS is maintained at the amounts

derived from the application of Italian GAAP at tlkate and is tested for impairment from that date.

Revenue and cost recognition

Revenue and cost and income and expense are reedg@nm an accruals basis, specifically:
* Revenue are recognized based on the probability witich the company will enjoy the economic
benefits and in the extent to which the amount lmameliably determined. Revenue is stated net of

any adjustments.
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e Advertising revenue is recognized at the moment ddeertisement is broadcast or published.
Revenue from publications is recognized at the dhpblication.

« Revenue from the sale of magazine subscriptionsed®gnized on the basis of the magazines
published and distributed during the period.

« Pre-publication and launch costs are recognizguldfit and loss when incurred.

« Interest income and expenses is recognized on@nas basis. Dividends are recognized when the
right of the shareholders to receive the paymeasiablished.

e Costincurred on behalf of third parties are reghdragainst the cost to which they relate.

Taxes

Taxes for the year correspond to the sum of cuardtdeferred taxes.

Current taxes are based on taxable income fordhe yaxable income differs from the results shawn
the income statement as it excludes both positive @egative entries which would be taxable or
deductible in other tax years and excludes compsnghich are not taxable or deductible at any time.
Current taxes are calculated using the rates oefat the reporting date.

Cairo Communication S.p.A. and its subsidiariesr@&ditore S.p.A., Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A., Dielés
S.p.A. in liquidation, Cairo Due S.r.I. and Cairolfishing S.r.I. adhered to the national tax coidgsdion
scheme of UT Communications S.p.A., in accordanitle art. 117/129 of the Consolidated Income Tax
Act.

The consolidation scheme, which regulates econaspects pertaining to the sums deposited or reteive
against the advantages or disadvantages arising tiie national tax consolidation scheme, also alow
for any increased costs or decreased benefitsradiny the companies, by adhering to this procedare
be repaid by the parent.

UT Communications S.p.A. acts as the tax parentdmtdrmines a single taxable base for the group of
companies that adheres to the national tax coraaiu scheme, which thereby benefits from the hbili
of offsetting taxable profits against taxable I@sgeone tax return.

Each company that adheres to the national tax tidasion scheme transfers its taxable profit oslts
the tax parent. For any such taxable profit rembrty a subsidiary, UT Communications S.p.A.
recognizes receivables equal to the IRES payaBlenversely, for any such taxable loss, reportec by
subsidiary, UT Communications S.p.A. recognizesyaple equal to IRES due on the loss that has been
contractually transferred at Group level.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized &ll taxable temporary differences, while defdrtax
assets are recognized to the extent of the protyatiiat there will be future taxable profits whig¥ill
allow for the utilization of the deductible tempoyalifferences. Deferred taxes are calculated erbtsis

of the tax rates that are foreseen will be in foatehe moment of realization of the asset or ef th
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liability, based on tax legislation in force at tteporting date. Where relevant, the effects of @mgnges
in tax rate or tax legislation are disclosed intoges. Deferred tax assets and liabilities arevatat their
net value when there is a legal right to offsetrenir tax liabilities against tax receivable assetd when

taxes relate to the same taxation authority.

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefit, mandatory for all Italleempanies under art. 2120 of the Civil Code, are
deferred remuneration and are directly relatedchéoemployee’s length of service in the company, tand
the employee’s actual remuneration received duheg period of service.

For Italian companies with at least 50 employe@stqpmployment benefits take the form of a defined
benefit plan, solely for the amounts accrued prod January 2007 (and not yet paid at the regprtin
date), whereas subsequent to such date, they evgniged as a defined contribution plan. For Italia
companies with less than 50 employees, post-emm@oyrnenefits are considered as a defined benefit

plan. All defined benefit plans are discounted.

Non-current assets

Intangible assets

Costs, including ancillary costs incurred for thogaisition of resources with no physical substamace,
recognized under intangible assets when the captastifiable and the asset is clearly identifiahel
controlled by the Group, and where the use of wmetawill generate probable future benefits to the
Group. These are valued at their acquisition odpetion cost, including related costs — to the mixte
which they are considered to have a finite lifend ghey are amortized to reflect their remainingfuk

economic lives. The amortization periods of intétgiassets of various types are as follows:

Concessions, licenses, trademarks 3 to 5 years for application software licenses
and similar rights

Other:

Software 3 to 5 years

Publication titles 20 years

Publication titles are amortized over a period @fy2ars from the date of their acquisition basedheir
remaining useful lives. This amortization periodrégularly reviewed to take account of the finahcia
performance of the subsidiaries that own the.title

The remaining useful life and the amortizationenid applied are reviewed on a regular basis aretevh

change is deemed necessary the amortization regstegted in accordance with the “prospective” méth
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Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are recognideszh their cost can be reliably determined and when

Property, plant and equipment

related future economic benefits can be enjoyethéyGroup.

They are recognized at acquisition price or pradactost, including directly associated expensas an
costs, plus the share of indirect costs which easanably attributed to the asset.

These assets are systematically depreciated amigldgtline basis each year at rates consistett thi

remaining useful life of the asset. Depreciatidesapplied are as follows:

Property 3%
General equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%-25%
Plant and machinery 10%
Office equipment and furniture 10%-12%
Electronic equipment 20%

Land is not depreciated.

The above PPE depreciation rates are reduced by difg their first year of use, this percentage
representing the weighted average of the entrysto af new assets, on an annual basis. Depreciation
begins when the asset is ready for use.

The remaining useful lives and the depreciatiotedd applied are reviewed on a regular basis ametev
change is deemed necessary the depreciation nastéded in accordance with the “prospective” méth
The remaining useful lives of assets are reviewadially and if incremental maintenance or otherkwor
has been carried out which changes the remainiefuluife of the investment, these are adjusted
accordingly.

Incremental and maintenance costs producing afiigni and tangible increase in the productive
capacity or security of assets, or lengthening tteehaining useful life, are capitalized and redogd as
an increase in the carrying amount of the asselin@ry maintenance costs are taken directly toitpaofl
loss.

Leasehold improvements are recognized as PPE edpattis of the cost incurred. The depreciatiorogeri

corresponds to the lower of the remaining usefeldf the asset and the term of the contract.

Impairment of assets

At least once a year, the Group reviews the reeabitety of the intangible assets with an indefinitseful
life, and of investments and publication titles,dawhenever there are potential indicators of an

impairment loss on PPE and intangible assets withite useful life, in order to determine whetlserch
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assets may have suffered an impairment loss. Wiemiedicators are present, the carrying amouthef
asset is reduced to reflect recoverable amountr@tmverable amount of an asset is the greates édir
value less costs to sell, and its value in use.falevalue of a listed investment is determinedoading

to its market price at the reporting date, in ctmee Stock Market price is considered to represkat t
effective value of the investment. In the absericearket values, estimates and valuation methoes ar
applied based on data which is in any case evigiettihe market. To determine an asset’s value intbse
Group calculates the present value of future estichaash flows, inclusive of tax, by applying a-tae
discount rate which reflects the current markeuatbn, including the time value of money and the
specific risks inherent to the asset.

Excluding goodwill, when the impairment loss on tladue of an asset no longer applies or is redubed,
carrying amount of the asset is increased up toé¢ineestimated recoverable amount, and may noteexce

the amount which would have been determined hadhpairment loss been recognized.

Current assets and liabilities

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of the pweeloa production cost, including all directly ditriable
expenses, net of discounts and allowances, cadcllasing the weighted average cost method, and
estimated realizable value. Estimated realizableevéakes into account any production and direlgssa
costs. Inventories are adjusted for obsolete apn# shoving items through a specific write-down

provision.

Receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized atéBgimated realizable value.

Financial assets

They are recognized and derecognized on the bb#igio trade date. They are initially measuredast,
including all direct expenses associated with thegquisition.

At the subsequent reporting date, the financiattashat the Group has the intention and abilitiydlal to
maturity (shares held-to-maturity) are recognizeamaortized cost, net of any impairment losses.
Investments other then those held to maturity Eesdied as held for trading or available for sahe are
measured at the end of each period at their fdirevdVhen financial assets are held for tradingygand
losses arising from fair value changes are receghia profit and loss. In the case of availabledale
financial assets, gains and losses arising fromvidue changes are taken directly to equity uhgly are
sold or are impaired; in this case the gains @degreviously taken to equity are recognized dfitpand

loss.
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Valuations are regularly carried out to check whetiere is any objective evidence that an investme
whether taken individually or as a group of investits, may have suffered an impairment loss. In the

existence of such evidence, impairment losseseaagnized in profit and loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
This item comprises cash, bank current accounts amdiemand, and other short-term highly liquid
financial investments which are easily convertitdecash and are not subject to the risk of sigaific

changes in value.

Borrowings, bank loans and bank overdrafts
Interest-bearing bank loans and bank overdraftsreacegnized based on the amounts cashed, net of

transaction costs, and subsequently measured atizaglocost using the current interest rate method.

Trade payables

These are recognized at their nominal amount.

Equity
Treasury shares
Treasury shares are measured at historical cosarmnrecognized in equity. The result of the subsag

sale of treasury shares is recognized directlyasage in equity.

Dividends paid
Dividends payable are recognized as a change iityéguhe year they are approved by the Sharehslde
Meeting or by the Board of Directors in the evehto interim dividend, pursuant to art. 2433 bidhe

[talian Civil Code.

Provisions for risk and charges

Provisions for risk and charges are recognized whenGroup has a legal or constructive obligation
resulting from a past event and for which a prolitgbéxists for the fulfillment of that obligationThe
provisions reflect the best estimate of costs basehformation currently available in order toffilithe

obligation at the reporting date, and are discalimtken the effect is significant.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements anchtites thereto, in application of IFRS, requirext the

Group carry out estimates and assumptions whiagttthe carrying amount of assets and liabilitied a
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disclosure about assets and contingent liabildtethe reporting date. Estimates and assumpticets are
based on experience and on other factors considégadicant. Actual results could differ from thees
estimates. Estimates mainly relate to provisions rfsks relating to receivables, obsolete inventory
publishing returns, investment measurements, apabitn, depreciation, impairment of assets, taxatio
provisions for risk and charges, and contingetiliizes.

Estimates and assumptions are reviewed reguladytremeffects of each variation therein are recaghi

in the profit and loss in the period in which tratimate was revised. The effects of such revisames
reflected in the periods on which they have effeet,both in the current period, and in futureipes, if
relevant. In this context, the uncertainty factiorghe short and medium economic term, which make i
hard to predict a return to normal market condgidmave led to the need to make assumptions regardi
future performance which are influenced by sigaific uncertainty, and the possibility of achieving
results different from those estimated cannot beuebed for the next year, and which could therefore
require adjustments to the carrying amount, ev@mifitant, although these are obviously neither
currently quantifiable nor foreseeable.

The items most susceptible to these uncertaintiesttee allowance for impairment, inventory write-
downs, non-current assets (intangible assets awestiments), deferred tax assets, post-employment
benefits and the provisions for risk and charges.

A summary follows of all critical measurement preses used and key assumptions made by management
regarding the future in the process of applyingpaating policies and that could have a significeiifiect

on the amounts recognized in the consolidated Giahrstatements and for which there is a risk that
significant adjustments to the carrying amount sdeds and liabilities could arise in the next fitiah

period.

Allowance for impairment

The allowance for impairment reflects managemeessmate regarding the losses on the portfolio of
receivables from end customers. The allowancetimated based on the losses expected by the Group,
according to past experience for similar receivabderrrent and past due dates, losses and reegigityy

from the careful monitoring of receivable managetmmmd from projections on market and economic
conditions.

The persisting uncertainty factors in the short amedliium economic term, along with the resultinglitre
squeeze, could result in a further deterioratiothef financial conditions of Group debtors compatieed

the deterioration already considered in the quiaatibn of the recognized allowance for impairment.
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Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extemthioh it is considered probable that future tagabl

Deferred tax assets

income will be generated to allow the utilizatidhdeductible temporary differences. The realizaklkie
of deferred tax assets is periodically reviewedoadiog to the future taxable income foreseen in the

Group’s most recent plans.

Recoverable amount of non-current assets (includmadwill)

Non-current assets include property, plant and mgent, intangible assets (including goodwill),
investments and other financial assets. Managepeiudically reviews the carrying amount of the hon
current assets held and used, and those of asddt$oh sale, as and when circumstances requirk suc
revision. This is performed by the comparison @ darrying amount of the asset and the greatdneof t
fair value, less costs to sell, and value in useé: ¥alue is determined according to market priteshe
absence of market value, estimates and valuatiaieln@re used based on data available on the market
Value in use is determined based on the estimagxmdcted cash flows from the use or sale of tBetas
and is discounted using appropriate discount ratésen the carrying amount of a non-current assgt ha
suffered an impairment loss, the Group recognizegngpairment loss equal to the positive difference
between the greater of carrying amount of the amsdtits recoverable amount from its use or sae, a
determined according to the Group’s most recemtyla

For the preparation of the consolidated finandialesnents at 31 December 2011, and in particultrén
performance of impairment tests on intangible ass@d property, plant and equipment, the different
segments of the Group have taken into accountxtpected 2012 performance, whose assumptions and
results are in line with the information disclogedhe section onévents after the reporting period date”

In addition, for the subsequent years of the phaeessary adjustments have been cautiously mddkeo
account of the deep market changes resulting frben durrent economic and financial crisis. No

significant impairment was required based on sigirés in the plan.

Provisions for risk and charges
The provisions for risk and charges relating totoment liabilities of a legal or fiscal nature anade on
the basis of estimates made by the Directors, erbésis of valuations made by the Company’s legdl a

fiscal advisors on the probable charge that caagsonably expected to fulfill the obligation.

Risk management

The main fiscal, legal and financial risks to whitle Cairo Communication Group is exposed, as well
as the policies put in place by Management forrth&anagement, are explained in notes 35 and 37.

Reference is made to the Directors’ Report for afi@nal and business risks.
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Accounting standards, amendments and interpretatios applied from 1 January 2011

The following accounting standards, amendmentsirstedpretations were applied for the first timetbhg
Group starting from 1 January 2011:
On 4 November 2009, the IASB issued a revised omrsf IAS 24 —Related party disclosures
which simplifies disclosure requirements for trasigms with government related entities and
clarifies the definition of related partieSpecifically, the definition of related parties@alncludes
companies controlled by parties on which the répgrientity exercises, either directly or
indirectly, significant influence. It also removése asymmetry of disclosures in the financial
statements of related parties, makes equal théigrosif persons and companies for the purposes
of determining related party relationships and nexpudisclosure also on commitments received
and granted to related parties. The amendmentsdinted with the revision are applicable from
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 20h#& adoption of the amendment produced no
effect in terms of measurement of financial stateéems and/or on the disclosure of related
party transactions provided in the consolidatedrfirial statements at 31 December 2011.
On 6 May 2010, the IASB issued a series of imprams to the IFRS applicable as from 1
January 2011; the following are those indicatedAyB as variations involving changes in the
presentation, recognition and measurement of fieargtatements, omitting those that will
involve mere changes in terminology or editoriahmepes with a minimum accounting effect, or
those that affect standards or interpretationsdtanot applied by the Group:
IFRS 3 (2008) Business Combinationthe amendment clarifies that the components of no
controlling interests that do not entitle owners raxeive a proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net assets must be measured at faie va under the requirements of applicable
accounting standards. Therefore, for instancepekstption plan granted to employees must
be measured, in the event of a business combinatioaccordance with IFRS 2 and the
equity share of a convertible debt instrument ningsineasured in accordance with IAS 32.
Furthermore, the Board has discussed the sharetpagenent plans that are replaced as part
of a business combination, by adding specific guigato clarify the accounting treatment.
IFRS 7 -Financial instruments: disclosurethe improvement emphasizes interaction between
qualitative and quantitative disclosures requirgdtiee standard regarding the nature and
extent of risks arising from financial instrumentbBhis should help users of financial
statements to evaluate an entity’'s exposure te iskfinancial instruments. Disclosure has
been deleted for financial assets past due whigle baen renegotiated or impaired and for

information regarding the fair value of collateral.
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IAS 1 - Presentation of financial statementhe improvement requires an entity to provide a

reconciliation of changes in each component oftggaoithe notes to the financial statements
or in the financial statements.
The following amendments and improvements, effecéig from 1 January 2011, govern circumstances
that are alien to the Group at the date of thesesalwated financial statements, but could have
accounting effects on future transactions or agesdsn
- Amendment to IAS 32 Financial instruments: Presentatioissued on 8 October 2009 and
applicable retrospectively as from 1 January 2011;
- IFRIC 14 —Prepayments of a minimum funding requiremésued on 26 November 2009 and
applicable as from 1 January 2011;
- IFRIC 19 —Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity itreiments issued on 26 November
2009 and applicable as from 1 January 2011,
- Amendment to IFRS 1 and IFRS Financial Instruments: disclosurekimited exemption from

comparative IFRS 7 disclosure for first-time adoptamendments to IFRS 1 and IFRS 7.

Accounting standards, amendments and interpretatios yet to apply and not adopted early by

Cairo Communication

On 7 October 2010, the IASB issued several amentimenFRS 7 -Financial instruments: improved
disclosuresto be applied for annual periods starting framafter 1 July 2011. The amendments were
issued to improve the understanding of transferfinahcial assets and the possible effects ariBimm
risks associated with the continuing involvementtioé entity that has transferred such assets. The
amendments require further information in the exsedisproportionate amount of transfer transactisns
undertaken around the end of the year.
Moreover, at the date of these consolidated firnsiatementsthe relevant EU bodies have yet to
complete the endorsement process for applicatidtheoAmendments and standards listed kielow
On 12 November 2009, the IASB issued IFRS %inancial instruments: recognition and
measurement of financial asseygplicable as from 1 January 2013, amended onc28b@r 2010.
The publication is the opening part of a process #ims to overhaul IAS 39. The new standard
uses a single approach and is based on how a cgmmamages its financial instruments and the
contractual cash flows of the financial assets @texnine the measurement methodology
replacing IAS 39. For financial liabilities, insthathe main change made regards accounting of
fair value changes of a financial liability desitgth as financial liability measured at fair value
through profit or loss, in the event these areilattable to changes in the credit risk of the
liability. Based on this new standard, changes rhaspresented in other comprehensive income

and expense and no longer in the income statement.
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On 20 December 2010, the IASB issued:

- a narrow amendment to IFRS 1 First-time adoption ofinternational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFR$) cancel reference to the date of 1 January 20®htained
and described as the date of transition to IFRS® #mn provide guidance on the
presentation of the financial statements in comgkawith IFRS following a period of
severe hyperinflation. These amendments will bdiegipe as from 1 July 2011,

- a narrow amendment to IAS 12lrcome taxaddressing the issue of measuring deferred
tax as arising from continuing operations dependingvhether the company expects to
recover the carrying amount of the asset through ois sale. As a result of the
amendment, SIC-21 lkhcome taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-Deprecisddetswill
no longer be applicable. The amendment is appkcablfrom 1 January 2012.

On 12 May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 1@Censolidated Financial Statementshich will

replace SIC 12 €onsolidation - Special Purpose Entitiesd parts of IAS 27 Consolidated and

Separate Financial Statementshich will be rename®&eparate Financial Statemerasd will

regulate the accounting treatment of equity invesii® in separate financial statements. The new

standard builds on existing standards, identifylmgy concept of control as the decisive factor for
the purposes of consolidation of a company in thesolidated financial statements of the parent.

It also provides guidance to determine the exigtasfccontrol when this is difficult to ascertain.

The standard is retrospectively applicable as ftalanuary 2013.

On 12 May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 1J3cint Arrangementswhich will replace IAS 31 —

Interests in Joint Ventureand SIC 13 —Jointly Controlled Entities— Non-Monetary

Contributions by VenturersThe new standard provides criteria for the idaaiion of joint

arrangements based on the rights and obligatiaem@rfrom such arrangements rather than on

their legal form, and establishes the equity metlasdthe sole method of accounting in
consolidated financial statements for joint vensurehe standard is retrospectively applicable as
from 1 January 2013. Following issue of the stadd&kS 28 —Investments in Associatésis
been amended to comprise, within its scope of agiitin, from the date it comes into effect, also
investments in joint ventures.

On 12 May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 1Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities new

standard which specifically envisages the disclesiar be provided on all types of interests,

including those in subsidiaries, joint arrangemeassociates, special purpose entities and other

unconsolidated special purpose vehicles. The stdnidaretrospectively applicable as from 1

January 2013.

On 12 May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 1%air Value Measurementvhich clarifies how to

calculate fair value for the purposes of finanagig@borting and is applicable to all IFRS that
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require or allow fair value measurement or disalesubased on fair value. The standard is

prospectively applicable as from 1 January 2013.

On 16 June 2011, the IASB issued an amendmentS3dllAPresentation of Financial Statements
requiring entities to group items presented in @Other Comprehensive Income) based on
whether they are potentially re-classifiable subeadly to profit and loss. The amendment is
applicable to annual periods beginning on or dftéuly 2012.

On 16 June 2011, the IASB issued an amendment$olA—Employee Benefitdhat eliminates
the option of deferring recognition of actuarialirgaand losses via the corridor approach,
requiring presentation, in the statement of finahpisition, of the fund’s deficit or surplus and
recognition in the profit and loss of cost compdeearlating to service and net financial expense,
and recognition of actuarial gains and losses siamiitom re-measurement of liabilities and
assets among Other income (expense). In additienreaturn on assets included in net financial
expense must be calculated on the basis of thewiscate for liabilities and no longer on the
basis of the rate of return expected for assetstly the amendment introduces new disclosures to
be provided in the notes to financial statemente @mendment is retrospectively applicable to
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

On 16 December 2011, the IASB issued amendment®\$032 — Financial Instruments:
Presentation to clarify the application of certain criteriarfoffsetting financial assets against
financial liabilities included in IAS 32. The amandnts are retrospectively applicable to annual
periods beginning on or after 1° January 2014.

On 16 December 2011, the IASB issued amendment$R& 7 — Financial Instruments:
Disclosures The amendment requires disclosures about thetaffgpotential effect of offsetting
of financial assets against financial liabilities an entity’s financial position. The amendments
are applicable to the annual periods beginningroafter 1 January 2013 and to interim periods
following such date. Disclosure is to be providettaspectively.

The following amendments and interpretations, ratapplicableare deemed irrelevant for the Group as

they govern circumstances that do not appear atfarting date:

IFRIC 20 -Stripping costs in the production phase of a swefaine.

96



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

1. Revenues

In order to provide a more complete view, and imsideration of the specifics of the sector, gross

revenue, agency discounts and net revenue arezadadg follows.

(€ thousands) 2011 2010
Gross revenue 316,635 271,456
Advertising agency discounts (35,086) (27,896)
Revenue, net 281,549 243,560

Revenue is realized exclusively in Italy and anlysia by geographical area is pointless. An analg$i
revenue by business segment is provided in note 14.

Gross revenue can be analyzed as follows:

2011 2010

TV advertising 201,768 155,058
Print media advertising 41,253 39,092
Stadium signage and electronic billboards 2,094 1,571
Internet advertising 1,332 1,120
Magazine sales 66,838 70,978
Subscriptions 3,126 2,883
Books and catalogues 1,377 1,970
VAT relating to publications (1,253) (1,303)
Other 100 87

Total gross revenue 316,635 271,456

As illustrated more in detail in the Directors’ Refy in 2011:

= TV advertising revenue (including La 7, La 7d, Sjtalia and the theme channels Cartoon Network,
Boomerang and CNN), totaling Euro 201.8 milliorerev up 30.1% overall on 2018 Nielsen
the TV advertising market in 2011 3.1% down on 208pecifically, advertising revenue on LA7,
amounting to approximately Euro 167.5 million, wags 32.5% on 2010 and greatly exceeded the
minimum annual contractual target of Euro (Euro hdilion) and the additional revenue target
related to the share increase of the channel asthiby TIMedia with respect to the 3% share. In
2011, LA7 audience shares confirmed the trend hidt started in autumn 2010 and increased by

24.4% (3.82% average all-day share versus 3.072010).
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= magazine sales, amounting to Euro 66.8 million,engown 5.8% on 2010, due also to the lower
amount of issues of “Settimanale Dipiu” on 2010 {B&ead of 53), causing a loss in revenue of
approximately Euro 0.5 million, the cut price (frdmEuro to 50 cents) of six issues of “Dipiu TV”,
with a loss in revenue of approximately Euro 1 imi| and the cut price (from 70 cents to 50 cents)
of three issues of “TV Mia”, with a loss in revenofeapproximately Euro 0.1 million;

= Group gross advertising revenue, which reached EOrb million, was up 5.3% on the same period
of 2010 (Euro 38.1 million), despite one issue l@&ssSettimanale Dipiu” ACNielsenthe magazine
advertising market in 2011 down 3,7% on 2010).

*k*k

2. Other revenue and income and non-recurring incom from Cairo-Telepiu arbitration

Other revenue and income

Other revenue can be analyzed as follows:

2011 2010
Paper 1,222 1,136
Technical services 155 44
Other revenue and prior year income 1,190 1,691
Total other revenue and income 2,567 2,871

“Other revenue and prior year income ” mainly irtds prior year income and not operating revenue.

Non-recurring income from Cairo-Telepiu arbitration

In the 2010 consolidated income statement, incorising from the Cairo-Telepiu arbitration, pending
from 2004 and amounting to Euro 6,792 thousand,desh shown separately owing to its non-recurring
nature and size, as illustrated in the 2010 anfimehcial report.

*%k*k

3. Changes in finished goods

Changes in finished goods amount to a negative E@dbthousand (a negative Euro 35 thousand in
2010), and arise from the use of the magazine saleag the ordinary course of business relating to
Cairo Editore S.p.A. and Cairo Publishing S.r.1.

*k%k

4. Raw materials, consumables and supplies

Raw materials relate to the activities of Cairot&di and Cairo Publishing, and include the maimge
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2011 2010
Paper 23,921 22,603
Equipment and sundry materials 1,141 1,317
Change in inventory of paper, equipment and suniterials (561) 1,323
Total raw materials, consumables and supplies 24,501 25,243

*k*k

5. Services
As shown in the following chart, this item mainlgroprises publishers’ fees, agents’ commissions and

general and administrative costs, and can be asdigz follows:

2011 2010

Publishers’ fees 133,146 108,476
Media center fees 5,580 3,763
Agents’ commissions 8,183 6,833
Technical costs 377 399

Administrative costs 5,227 5,425
Consultancies and collaborations 11,962 12,406
External processing 17,757 18,500
Advertising and promotion 6,124 5,333
Organizational costs and overheads 4,632 4,732
Total services 192,988 165,867

The variation in publishers’ fees is in line withetgrowth in TV advertising revenue. Such increase
basically related to “media center fees” and “agectmmissions”.

Publishers’ fees include those for Torino Footl@@lib related to the advertising concession agreemen
for the sale of stadium advertising space and afptional-advertising sponsorship packages, exocept
“main sponsor” positionings, amounting to Euro miflion.

The variation in “consultancies and collaboratioasid “external processing” is ascribable to thet-cos
cutting measures mentioned in the Directors’ Repamplemented starting from 2008 to increase the
effectiveness and efficiency of production, pukihghand circulation processes, which have alloved t

Group to save cash with respect to the previous yea

*k*k

99



6. Use of third parties assets

payments for property, office equipment and rogalfior copyrights.

*k*k

7. Personnel expenses

The item can be analyzed as follows:

2011 2010
Wages and salaries 17,542 16,166
Social security contributions 5,355 4,910
Post-employment benefits 724 645
Other expense 9 32
Total personnel expense 23,630 21,753

The increase in personnel expenses in the adveytiggment reflects the higher rate of contestdtzand

sales incentives sheets, in consideration of thepstise in revenue.

*%k%k

8. Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impaiment losses

These can be analyzed as follows:

2011 2010
Amortization of intangible assets 459 567
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 383 06 4
Allowance for impairment 2,438 2,641
Provisions for risk and charges 304 124
Total amortization, depreciation, provisions and
impairment losses 3,584 3,738

ok

9. Other operating costs
These can be analyzed as follows

2011 2010
Deductible and non-deductible taxes paid durirgytar 148 164
Prior years expenses 543 523
Other 389 391
Total other operating costs 1,080 1,078

*k%k

100

The item amount to Euro 2,285 thousand (Euro 2@22sand in 2010) and mainly includes lease



The loss of Euro 765 thousand refers to the impaitnioss on the investment in the associate Dmail

10. Loss on investments

Group, measured with the equity method, as illtstiéelow in Note 18.

*k*k

11. Net financial income

This item refers to financial income totaling Eur@44 thousand (Euro 458 thousand in 2010), net of

financial expenses of Euro 117 thousand (Euro h6@gand in 2010) analyzed as follows:

2011 2010
Interest income on bank and postal account 1,411 441
Other 33 17
Total financial income 1,444 458
Bank interest expense 3) (4)
Other (114) (105)
Total financial expense (117) (109)
Net financial income 1,327 349

Interest income includes interest on fixed-ternpa$#ts in current accounts and on treasury bank

accounts used to employ liquidity. The variationniat financial income is mainly ascribable to the

variation in interest rates on 2010 (1.19% avetagenth Euribor rate in 2011 versus 0.57% in 2010).
*k%

12. Income tax

This item can be analyzed as follows:

2011 2010
IRES for the year 10,854 10,091
IRAP for the year 2,408 2,355
Deferred tax income and expenses (235) 194
Total income tax 13,027 12,640

In accordance with relevant IFRS the deferred tawme of a number of Cairo Communication Group
companies relates mainly to the accrual of promigpertaining to the year, but having deferred tax
deductibility (allowance for impairment and prowss for risks and charges).

The reconciliation of the effective and theoretitzed charge can be analyzed as follows:
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2011 2010

Pre-tax profit 36,486 33,437
Theoretical income tax charge (27.5%) 10,034 9,195
Permanent tax variations 585 1,278
Net effect of tax release of reserves from mergerCairo Editore-

Editoriale Giorgio Mondadori - (190)
Irap 2,408 2,357
Income tax 13,027 12,640

For a clearer understanding of the reconciliatibrife effective and theoretical tax charge, IRAR h
not been taken into account as this is not basquetax profit, and this would generate a distayti
effect between one year and the other. Howevetthéharetical tax charge has been calculated ubkimg t
current IRES tax rate of 27.5%.

*%k*k

13. Loss from discontinued operations

This includes the results of Diellesei S.p.A. puidation, which can be analyzed as follows:

2011 2010
Other revenue and income 13 121
Services (10) (59)
Personnel expense - (48)
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impainnsses (14) (100)
Operating loss (EBIT) (12) (86)
Net financial income / (expense) - 1
Loss before tax (12) (85)
Income tax 1 18
Loss from discontinued operations (10) (67)

With regard to the financial situation, the effest Group liquidity of Diellesei in liquidation calme

analyzed as follows:

2011 2010

Net cash flow used in operating activities and the

liquidation process a7 (258)
Net cash flow used in investment activities - -
Net cash flow from (used in) financing activities - -

Net decrease for the year (17) (258)

*k*k
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For a clearer understanding of the Group’s econgraiformance, the analysis is focused on the sult

14. Segment reporting

achieved during the year by each business segmbit) has been identified, in compliance with IFRS
8 —Operatingsegmentsbased on internal reporting which is regularigreined by the directors.

The Group is organized in business urach in turn structured around specific products sarvices,
and has three reportable business segments:

- publishing, the Group operates as a publisher of magazinkédaoks through its subsidiaries
Cairo Editore, publisher of weeklies “Settimanaligild”, “Dipiu TV”, “Diva e Donna”, “TV
Mia” and supplements “Settimanale Dipiu e Dipiu Tdcina e Stellare” and monthlies “For
Men Magazine”, “Natural Style”, “Bell'ltalia”, “BdlEuropa”, “In Viaggio”, “Airone”,
“Gardenia”, “Arte” and “Antiquariato”, and Cairo Blishing, publisher of books;

- advertising, managed by Cairo Communication and Cairo Puli@jievhich work together in
advertising sales in print media for Cairo Editoemd Editoriale Genesis (“Prima
Comunicazione”), on TV for third-party publisheriMiedia (LA7 and LA7d), Sportitalia and
Turner Broadcasting (Cartoon Network, BoomerangNEMn the Internet and for the sale of
stadium advertising spaces at the Olimpico footbiath in Turin for Torino FC;

- Il Trovatore, which manages its owsearch engine and provides technological serviaalyn
within the group.

No combinations were made for the definition ofartgble business segments.

2011 Publi- Adverti-  Trovatore Unalloca- Elimina- Total

shing sing ted tions

operations

Revenue 70,321 211,190 38 - - 281,549
Inter-segment revenue 29,860 502 316 - (30,678) -
Other income 1,872 695 - - 2,567
Non-recurring arbitration income - - - - - -
Change in finished goods (124) - - - - (124)
Production cost (64,883) (155,697) (274) - - (220,854)
Inter-segment production cost (688) (29,968) (22) - (30,678) -
Personnel expense (16,746) (6,852) (32) - - (23,630)
Amortization, depreciation, provisions
and impairment losses (1,416) (2,170) 2 - - (3,584)
Operating profit (EBIT) 18,196 17,700 28 35,924
Loss on investments - (765) - - - (765)
Net financial income/(expense) 177 1,151 (2) 1,327
Pre-tax profit 18,373 18,086 27 - - 36,486
Income tax (6,451) (6,554) (22) - - (13,027)
Profit from continuing 11,922 11,532 5 - - 23,459
operations
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations - - (20) - (10)
Profit for the year 11,922 11,532 5 (20) - 23,449
Non-controlling interests - - 3 - - 3
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A client in the publishing segment (the publicatiatistributor) accounts for approximately 29% of ne

consolidated revenue.

2010 Publi- Adverti-  Trovatore Unalloca- Elimina- Total

shing sing ted tions

operations

Revenue 74,701 168,831 28 - 243,560
Inter-segment revenue 26,502 500 316 (27,318) -
Other income 1,958 913 - - - 2,871
Non-recurring arbitration income - 6,792 - - - 6,792
Change in finished goods (35) - - - (35)
Production cost (68,148) (126,203) (259) - - (194,610)
Inter-segment production cost (480) (26,838) - - 27,318 -
Personnel expense (16,194) (5,526) (33) - - (21,753)
Amortization, depreciation, provisions
and impairment losses (1,489) (2,247) (2) - - (3,738)
Operating profit (EBIT) 16,815 16,222 50 - - 33,087
Loss on investments - 1 - - - 1
Net financial income/(expense) 61 289 (1) - - 349
Pre-tax profit 16,876 16,512 49 - - 33,437
Income tax (5,701) (6,896) (43) - - (12,640)
Profit from continuing 11,175 9,616 6 - - 20,797
operations
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations - - - (67) - (67)
Profit for the year 11,175 9,616 6 (67) - 20,730
Non-controlling interests - - 1 - - 1

Management monitors the operating results of bgsingnits separately in order to decide on the
allocation of resources and the evaluation of tesulransfer prices between business sectors are

established based on market conditions applicabiiensactions with third parties.

Segment statement of financial position figuregcsprally, total assets for each reportable sednum
not represent amounts regularly provided to thefcbperating decision-maker. This detail, formerly
prescribed also without such condition, is not pdted in these explanatory notes in accordance tiveh
amendment of IFRS 8 Operating segmenteffective as from 1 January 2010.

*%k%k

15. Earnings per share

Earnings per share are calculated dividing thenfired results of the Group by the weighted averaige

outstanding shares, excluding the weighted aveshgeasury shares. Specifically:
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2011 2010
€ thousands:
Profit from continuing operations 23,459 20,797
Profit / (loss) from discontinued operations (10) (67)
Profit for the year 23,449 20,730
Weighted average number of outstandihgres as at 31 Decem 78,343,400 78,343,400
2011
Weighted average number of treasury shares (551,052 (771,326)
Weighted average number of shares used in the calation of
earnings per share 77,792,348 77,572,074
€ thousands:
Earnings per share attributable to continuing ajpmra 0,302 0,268
Earnings / (loss) per share attributable to disoaet operations (0,000) (0,001)
Net earnings per share 0,302 0,267

Diluted earnings per share are not calculatedex® thre no shares with a potential dilutive effect.

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Asset and liabilities by category are analyzedfbllowing notes:

16. Property, plant and equipment

The movements in PPE can be analyzed as follows:

Property Plant and Other assets Total
machinery

Carrying amount as at 1,450 128 1,078 2,656
31/12/2010

Additions - 83 399 482
Disposals - - (31) (31)
Depreciation (44) (26) (313) (383)
Carrying amount as at 1,406 185 1,133 2,724
31/12/2011

ok
17. Intangible assets

The movement in intangible assets can be analyzédlaws:
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Concessions,  Goodwill Titles Assets Total
licenses and under
trademarks const.
Carrying amount as at 284 7,198 2,070 - 9,552
31/12/2010
Additions 184 - - 5 189
Disposals - - - - -
Amortization (194) - (265) - (459)
Carrying amount as at
31/12/2011 274 7,198 1,805 5 9,282

Concessions, licenses and trademarks

As at 31 December 2011, this item mainly regarggalieation software.

Goodwill

This item refers to the excess of the purchasee mri@r the percentage attributable to the Grouhef
fair value of assets, liabilities and identifialdentingent liabilities of a number of subsidiaregstheir
date of acquisition, net of related accumulatedréiraiion at 30 September 2004, as the Group ctmse
adopt the exemption provided under IFRS 1 not foiyafi-RS 3 retrospectively to transactions which
took place prior to the date of transition to IFRS.

The movements in this item for each of the casleggimg units (CGU), which the Group has identified

for the business segments in which it operatesjeseribed below.

CGuU Balance Additions  Decreases Impairment Balance as

31/12/10 losses at 31/12/11
Publishing 4,746 - - - 4,746
Advertising 2,289 - - - 2,289
Trovatore 163 - - - 163
Total 7,198 - - - 7,198

As at 31 December 2011, goodwill underwent impairesting as required by IAS 36. This test, cdrrie
out at least annually, was performed at the leféh@® cash generating units (CGUSs) to which goodwil
allocated. The realizable value of goodwill wasedeiined by estimating value in use calculated as th

present value of the prospective cash flows frorarafions derived from the most recent company
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budgets and three-year plans. The main assumptiade for the calculation of value in use are

summarized as follows:

CGU Growth rate of Discount rate Growth rate of Discount rate
terminal values 2011 terminal values 2010
2011 2010
Publishing 1% 10.5% 1% 10.5%
Advertising 1% 10.5% 1% 10.5%
Trovatore 1% 10.5% 1% 10.5%

No evidence arose to indicate that the activit@sied out by the CGUs subject to impairment testin
could have suffered an impairment loss. Furthermitwe Group has developed a sensitivity analysis of
the realizable values allocated to the three CG&laguthe discount rate as the key parameter. No
significant evidence of potential impairment aréeen this analysis.

The estimates and the budget figures used for ¢bermination of the recoverable amount of goodwill
have been determined by Group management on tiedidmth past experience and on the expectations
of the development in the markets in which the @rayperates, also taking account of the specific
general economic environment. Management beliekias the use of these estimates will have no
significant impact in determining the carrying ambwf goodwill, especially in the publishing and
advertising sector, of which is already fully cox@iby the expected cash flows of 2012 alone.

Titles

Titles are made up as follows:

Balance 31/12/10 Additions Amortization Balance 312/11
Bell'ltalia 1,306 - (165) 1,141
Bell'Europa 717 - (88) 629
Other titles 47 - (12) 35
Total 2,070 - (265) 1,805

The time period deemed appropriate for the valunadiothe remaining useful life of these titles haen

set at 20 years for “Bell'ltalia” and “Bell’EuropaThe carrying amount of the other titles, primaril
“Arte” and “Antiquariato”, has also been amortized a straight line basis over a 20 year period. The
carrying amount of “Bell'ltalia” and “Bell’Europa™underwent impairment testing to evaluate any
impairment loss on realizable value, as definedhsjr value in use being cash flows based on the
expected results of the titles. No evidence of impent was identified. The main assumptions used in

the calculation of value in use are the same astilited in the previous paragraph.

* *
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18. Investments and non-current financial assets

The movement in this item can be analyzed as falow

(€ thousands) Carrying Reclassificatio  Effects of fair  mpairment  Carrying amount
amount as at n value losses as at 31/12/2011
31/12/2010
measurement

Cairo Sport Srl 0 - - - 0
Total subsidiaries 10 - - - 10
Dmail Group S.p.A. 0 2,234 (8) (765) 1,461
Total associates 10 2,234 (8) (765) 1,461
Dmail Group S.p.A. 2,234 (2,234) - - 0
Other 11 - - - 11
Total other 2,245 (2,234) - - 11
Total 2,255 - (8) (765) 1,482

Cairo Sport S.r.l. was measured at cost, which doegliffer much from the amount calculated using

the equity method.

In 2011, the investment held in the listed compBnyail Group S.p.A. (765,000 shares, or 10% of the

quota capital) was reclassified from “investments dther companies”“g@vailable for safg) to

“investments in associates”, with the resulting sugament using the equity method in the consoldiate

financial statements, and at cost net of any inpat losses, if any, in the financial statement€aifo

Communication. The reasons for the reclassificatrere the following:

- on 8 April 2011, Cairo Communication had jointlybsutted the lists of candidates with another
shareholder to renew the Board of Directors andBibard of Auditors, exercising, for the first
time ever since holding the investment (2005) rilets arising from the list vote;

- submission of the lists, therefore exercise of stghts, was consistent with the intention to
exercise greater influence in the management oB#seciate, whose new Board of Directors is
currently working on a long term business plan itkdstart and develop business activities and
pursue greater operational efficiency.

At their meeting of 9 May 2011, the Shareholdersthed Dmail Group appointed Fabio Tacciaria as

member of the Board of Directors, and Luca Bert&€hairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors, both

drawn from the minority lists jointly submitted Bairo Communication S.p.A. and Niteroi S.r.1.

The date taken as reference for reclassificatios 8vApril 2011 (date of submission of the listsjthva

carrying amount of Euro 2.91 per share (averagekstachange price 1 January 2011 - 8 April 2011).

“Fair value measurement effect€fers to theadjustment of the currying amount of the investirat 8

April 2011, with a balancing-entry of Euro 8 thondain the statement of comprehensive income and

equity.
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At 31 December 2011, the associate recognizedsaitoprofit and loss, reflected in the measurement
using the equity method.

An impairment test was conducted jointly with exirconsultants on the amount ideally allocable to
goodwill, by separately measuring the differentvties of Dmail Group. The methods used were based
on the discounting of expected results and on ntimearket multiples, drawing on recent research
carried out by independent professionals.

The application of this method resulted in the gedtion, in 2011, of an overall impairment losstbe
investment in Dmail Group, following the adjustmefitits recoverable amount, of Euro 765 thousand,
with a balancing-entry in profit and loss.

The main income statement figures of Dmail Groupwah from its interim financial statement as at 31
December 2011, gross of tax effects and excludiagiment of financial position figures other thha t
net financial position, from the consolidated finah statements at 31 December 2010 and the
consolidated interim report at 30 June 2011, anensarized in the following tables:

Income statement 12 months at 31 6 months at 30 June 12 months at 31
December 2011 2011 December 2010
Revenue and other income 76,723 38,261 77,502
Gross operating profit from continuing operations 2,915 2,046 3,634
Net operating profit (loss) from continuing opeoats (280) 577 153
Pre-tax profit (loss) from continuing operations 2,338) (415) (1,174)
Profit (loss) from discontinued operations (3,830) (101) (1,675)
Pre-tax profit (loss) (6,169) (516) (4,488)
Profit (loss) for the year/period nd (744) (3,083)

As mentioned earlier, the company is currently wagko implement a new long term business plan to

kick-start and develop business and pursue grepsrational efficiency.

Statement of financial position 30 June 2011 31 December 2010
Non-current assets 37,448 37,674
Current assets 9,682 5,758
Total assets 47,130 43,432
Non-current borrowings and provisions 6,635 6,444
Net financial position - continuing operations 27,397 27,039
Net financial position - discontinued operations (149) (4,143)
Equity attributable to the owners of the parent 12,091 12,821
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests 1,156 1,271
Total equity and liabilities 47,130 43,432
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Net financial position

31 December 30 June 2011

31 December

2011 2010
Net financial position - continuing operations 31) (27,397) (27,039)
Net financial position - discontinued operations 101 149 4,143
Total equity and liabilities (30,961) (27,248) (22,896)

*k%k

19. Deferred tax assets

These relate to the recognition, in the financiatesnents at 31 December 2011, of deferred taxsasse

on the temporary differences between the carrymgumts of recognized assets and liabilities and the

tax amounts, as follows.

31/12/2011 31/12/2010

Temporary Temporary

differences  Tax effect differences  Tax effect
Deferred tax assets
Taxed allowance for impairment 10,094 2,775 8,808 2,424
Tax losses carried forward 47 - 68 19
Taxed and returned provisions for risk and charges 1,002 311 1,055 327
Taxed provision for inventory write-down 741 233 643 202
Entertainment expenses deductible in future years - - 5 1
Directors’ fees 843 232 709 195
Consolidation entries for write-off of intra-grougadle relations 818 257 1,240 386
Consolidation entries for transfer of the intra-graale of
titles 2,614 821 2,876 903
Other temporary differences 571 179 408 131
Total deferred tax assets 16,730 4,808 15,812 4,588
Deferred tax liabilities
Different accounting treatment of post-employmesndfits (227) (49) (229) (63)
Different accounting treatment of land depreciation (86) (25) (143) (45)
Total deferred tax liabilities (313) (74) (372) (108)
Net deferred tax assets 16,417 4,734 15,440 4,480

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extay éine considered recoverable depending on the

presence of future taxable income in which tempomifferences will be reversed. Management

periodically reviews the estimates underlying theoverability of these amounts.

* %

20. Inventories

*

Inventory movements arise entirely in the publightompanies and can be analyzed as follows:
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31/12/11 31/12/10 Change
Raw materials, consumables and supplies 2,970 2,408 562
Work-in-progress and bordereau 238 256 (18)
Books 181 288 (107)
Total 3,389 2,952 437

+ Raw materials

Raw materials relate mainly to paper and are reizedrat the lower of purchase or production cost

and their estimated realizable value, based onehaerformance at year end.

*  Work-in-progress

Work-in-progress comprises purchase or productmtscincurred for publications to be invoiced by

Cairo Editore S.p.A. This item also includes boeder for services yet to be used, available for

future publications, and work in progress on footling editions.

* Finished products

Finished products include Cairo Editore and CaiublBhing S.r.l. inventories of books and

monographic issues, measured at the lower of cakestimated realizable value.

*k%k

21. Trade receivables

Trade receivables can be analyzed as follows:

31/12/11 31/12/10 Change
Trade receivables 119,038 103,476 15,562
Allowance for impairment (10,990) (9,534) (1,456)
Total trade receivables 108,048 93,942 14,106

Trade receivables are stated net of the allowancenfipairment that has been determined taking

account of both specific collection risks and aegahrisk of non-collectability based on the ordina

trend of company operations. This allowance alkeganto account the allocation to the Group’s medi

clients, in particular third-party clients, of arpentage of losses on receivables, equal to theeptrge

of revenue allocated, pursuant to advertising spatas contracts signed between the two parties.

The ageing of trade receivables by due date ad &e®ember 2011 versus 31 December 2010 is as

follows:
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31 December 2011 Current Past due Pastdue Past due Past due Total
between between 61 between91 over 180

30 and 60 and 90 days and 180 days days

days
Trade receivables 100,929 2,395 1,415 2,369 11,930 119,038
Allowance for impairment (890) (249) (263) (275) (9,313) (10,990)
Net trade receivables 100,039 2,146 1,152 2,094 2,617 108,048
31 December 2010 Current Past due Pastdue Past due Past due Total

between between 61 between 91 over 180
30 and 60 and 90 days and 180 days days

days
Trade receivables 84,876 2,290 1,002 2,331 12,977 103,476
Allowance for impairment (1,170) (226) (204) (292) (7,642) (9,534)
Net trade receivables 83,706 2,064 798 2,039 5,335 93,942

In terms of concentration, the top 10 customersesgnt roughly 16% (18% in 2010) of total
advertising sales, whilst the top 100 customersesamt 57% (58% in 2010). These ratios are bagicall
in line with prior years.

The publishing segment presents a limited exposuoceedit risk as publishing revenue is substégtia
generated by one sole party — the Group - whilstdistribution revenues, the distribution contract
provides for an advance payment equal to a sigmfigpercentage of the estimated sales of each
magazine.

In 2011, the allowance for impairment increasedelyo 1,456 thousand, with accruals of Euro 2,438

thousand and utilization of Euro 982 thousand.

Trade receivables due from Torino Football Club.A&.included: Euro 37 thousand to Cairo Pubblicita
for contractual relations as described in Note Béro 239 thousand to Cairo Communication for
administrative services provided, and Euro 19 thadgo Cairo Editore for various recharged expenses

*k*k

22. Other receivables and other current assets

These can be analyzed as follows:
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31/12/11 31/12/10 Change
Withholding taxes on interest 1 3 (2)
Prepaid IRAP 18t 20 16&
Tax assets 77C 967 a97
VAT credit 1,202 291 911
Total tax assets 2,15¢ 1,281 871
One-off payment Sportitalia 1,50(C 2,000 (500
Publishers’ advances 2,72 2,563 15¢
Other prepayment 687 769 (82)
Other assets 454 8,179 (7,725
Total other receivables and other current assets 7,521 14,792 (7,271

“One-off payment Sportitalia”, amounting to Eur®Q0Q thousand, included the residual amount of the
one-off payment made in December 2009 to the pudalisnteractive Group for the signing of the
exclusive advertising concession contract on ttgitali and satellite Sportitalia and Sportitalia 2
channels and on the www.sportitalia.com website.

“Publishers’ advances” included the residual amoohthe receivable which arose in 2010 from
Interactive Group and equal to the difference betwthe amount accrued and the advances paid in
2010.

In 2011, the accrued publishers’ amount exceededraes paid for such year.

As at 31 December 2010, other ass#t® included Euro 7.5 million, the credit balarficem Telepiu

arising from the arbitration award mentioned_in &l@ which Telepiu had argued it was entitled to
offset against the restricted deposit illustratedhie 2010 report, a right which Cairo had chalézhm
court.

In August 2011, the Court of Milan ruled agains taim filed by Cairo Communication SpA, and in
favour of Telepiu’s right to offset, up to the red@t amount, its liability arising from the arbificn
award issued on 27 January 2011 against the arhelthin the restricted deposit.

In the consolidated financial statements at 31 e 2011, the foregoing receivable was therefore
offset (i) against the amount payable to Telepid (6illion Euro) recorded in “trade payables” (args
from invoices issued by Telepiu following the cinestances that led to the termination of the
concession contract) and (ii) against “other liéiles” referring to the deferred interest accruédiro
557 thousand) on the foregoing restricted depaad kvith Telepiu SpA. The variation in trade and
other liabilities is, therefore, partly due to tbiésetting.

*%k%k
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23. Securities and other current financial assets

As at 31 December 2010, the item included Eurchd@dand referring to the current financial assets
disposed of during the year.

*k*k

24. Cash and cash equivalents

The item can be analyzed as follows:

31/12/11 31/12/10 Change
Bank and postal accounts 54,682 58,242 (3,560)
Cash 19 18 1
Total cash and cash equivalents 54,701 58,260 (3,559)

The Group’s net financial position can be analyagdollows:

31/12/11 31/12/10 Change
Cash and cash equivalents 54,701 58,260 (3,559)
Current financial assets - 79 (79)
Total 54,701 58,339 (3,638)

The Group continued to manage its cash and cadhadept prudently, investing for the most part in
interbank deposits.

As shown in the statement of cash flows, the negatariation of the net financial position, amouqgti

to approximately Euro 3.6 million, is mainly as@aiie to the positive cash flows from operating
activities netted against the distribution of oadyand interim dividends for Euro 31.1 million.

In the 2010 statement of cash flows, “net finalhcasid cash equivalents” did not include current

financial assets of Euro 79 thousand.

*k*k

25. Equity
As at 31 December 2011, consolidated equity was BE8/727 thousand, including profit for the year.

In 2011:
at their the meeting of 28 April 2011 the sharebaddapproved the distribution of a dividend of 0.25
Euro per share, inclusive of tax, for a total of&9.4 million;
the Board of Directors, on 30 November 2011, appdathe distribution of an interim dividend for
2011, amounting to Euro 0.15 per share (inclusiviax), for a total of Euro 11.7 million, Euro 10.2
million of which had been paid out at 31 Decemi@t12
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The share capital as at 31 December 2011 was EOi 4housand, subscribed and fully paid up,
comprising 78,343,400 ordinary shares to which oiminal amount is attributed.

In accordance with the bylaws, the shares aretexgis, indivisible and freely transferable. Theg ar
object to the requirements of representation, ilegiaition, circulation of the company investment
required for securities traded on regulated markedsh share has the right to a proportion of tioitp
which has been approved for distribution and t@dign of equity on liquidation and also has thghti

to vote, without limits other then those as defilgdthe Law. No securities having special rights of
control have been issued. No financial instruméatge been issued attributing the right to subsdnbe
newly-issued shares. No share incentive plansransaged involving share capital increases, inclgdi
bonus issues.

The reclassification of the investment in Dmail GudS.p.A from “investments in other companies” to
“investments in associates”, illustrated in Note [ to the reclassification of the negative eguit
reserve related to available-for-sale financialetsssamounting to Euro 2,124 thousand, to “retained
profit”.

The reconciliation between the number of outstag@imares at 31 December 2010 and at 31 December

2011 is as follows:

31/12/2010 Purchase of Sale of 31/12/2011

treasury shares treasury shares

Ordinary shares issued 78,343,400 - - 78,343,400
Less: treasury shares (771,326) - 400,000 (371,326)
Ordinary outstanding shares 77,572,074 - 400,000 77,972,074

In 2011, as part of the share buy-back plans, 400t@asury shares (0.511% of the share capitak} we
sold following entry of an institutional investof prominent standing in the shareholding strucaira
unit price of Euro 3.00 per share, equivalent total of Euro 1.2 million. At 31 December 2011, @ai
Communication held a total of 371,326 treasury etiaor 0.474% of share capital, subject to art7235
ter of the Italian Civil Code.

*k%k

26. Post-employment benefits

This item reflects the accruals made for all emp&syat the reporting date on the basis of the gtegje
unit credit method, using actuarial valuatiof$ie main assumptions used in this valuation are as

follows:
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Cairo Cairo Cairo Cairo
COMPANY Communication _ Pubblicita ___Editore Pubblicita
Agent
TYPE OF VALUATION SS SS SS termination
benefits

Mortality table Sim/f 1998 Sim/f 1998 Sim/f 1998 Sim/f 1998
Reduction of mortality table 20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00%
Advance request rate MANAGER 1.00% 0.50% 0.50% -
Advance request rate JUNIOR MANAGER 2.00% 0.50% 2.00% -
Advance request rate EMPLOYEE 2.00% 0.50% 2.00% -
Advance request rate JOURNALIST not present not present 2.00%

Salary increase rate MANAGER 5.00% 2.50% 0.00% -
Salary increase rate JUNIOR MANAGER 4.00% 2.50% 0.00% -
Salary increase rate EMPLOYEE 4.00% 2.50% 0.00% -
Salary increase rate JOURNALIST not present not present 0.00%

Fee increase rate AGENT - - - 4,00%
Future inflation rate 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Discount rate 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.50%
Resignation rate MANAGER 2.00% 0.50% 0.00% -
Resignation rate JUNIOR MANAGER 2.00% 0.50% 5.00% -
Resignation rate EMPLOYEE 7.00% 2.50% 6.50% -
Resignation rate JOURNALIST not present not present 5.00%

Resignation rate AGENT - - - 15,00%

The composition and movements of this item is bnodkewn as follows:

Balance as at 31/12/11

Balance as at 31/12/10

Opening balance 3,891 3,813
Increase 724 651
Profit (loss) from actuarial valuations 2 (6)
Utilization/other movements (719) (567)
Closing balance 3,898 3,891
The average headcount over the two years can lzadas follows:
31/12/2011 31/12/2010 Average

Managers 14 15 14
Junior Managers 20 19 20
Employees 135 127 131
Journalists / Freelance journalists 106 100 103
Total 275 261 268

*%k%k
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27. Non-current financial liabilities

The Group has none.

*k*k

28. Provisions for risks and charges

The provisions for risk and charges include:

31/12/11 31/12/10 Change
Pension and similar provision 1,159 956 203
Provision for publishing returns 474 697 (223)
Provision for liquidation 101 102 (1)
Provision for other risks and charges 448 369 79
Total 2,182 2,124 58

The composition and movements of this item canradyaed as follows:

Pension and Publishing Liquidation  Other risks Total

similar returns and charges
provision
Closing balance at 31/12/2010 956 697 102 369 2,124
Increases 203 - 14 100 317
Utilizations - (223) (15) (22) (259)
Closing balance at 31/12/2011 1,159 474 101 448 2,182

The provision for “pensions and similar provisiomgds accrued by Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. in respéct
the agents’ termination benefits as prescribedabydnd contracts, subject to actuarial valuatiassed

on the assumptions illustrated_in Note 26.

The “provision for publishing returns” relates teetoperations of the subsidiary Cairo Publishing.S.
the relating net provisions are deducted from reeegnom book sales.

The “provision for liquidation” refers to provisiermade to cover the liquidation costs of DielleSeil.

in liquidation; the related provisions are recogulizn profit / (loss) from discontinued operations.

The “provision for other risks and charges” inclsgeovisions that are considered prudently necegssar
for charges that could arise from current legalcpealings and contractual disputes that remain

unsettled.

*%k%k
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29. Current loans and borrowings

As at 31 December 2011, there were no “loans anwngs”.

*k*k

30. Trade payables

Trade payables amounted to Euro 107,029 thousarwledsing by Euro 9,242 thousand on 31

December 2010, and relate entirely to the currexdr.y The portion related to Diellesei S.r.l. in

liquidation amounted to Euro 69 thousand.

Trade payables include Euro 280 thousand due tagbeciate Torino Football Club S.p.A. for amounts

accrued for the advertising concession contraciesigvith Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A.

*k*k

31. Receivables from and payables to the Parent

Receivables from and payables to the parent of Hyd®7 thousand and Euro 2,156 thousand,

respectively, refer mainly to the parent UT Comnoatibns S.p.A. and arise from the national tax

consolidation scheme, under art. 117/129 of theRT(Tonsolidated income tax act), to which Cairo

Communication S.p.A. and its subsidiaries Cairadtdi S.p.A., Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A., Diellesei.5.r

in liquidation, Cairo Due S.r.I. and Cairo PublisfiS.r.l. agreed to adhere.

*k*k

32. Tax liabilities

Tax liabilities can be broken down as follows:

31/12/2011 31/12/2010 Change
Withholding taxes on employees 843 776 67
Withholding taxes on contract workers 387 424 (37)
IRAP payables 238 666 (428)
VAT payables 476 285 191
Other 61 130 (69)
Total tax liabilities 2,005 2,281 (276)

*k*k

33. Other current liabilities

These can be analyzed as follows:
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31/12/2011 31/12/2010 Change
Social security charges payables 1,855 1,554 301
Advances on subscriptions 1,867 1,818 49
Shareholders liabilities for dividends 1,456 - 1,456
Due to personnel (holidays, bonuses, etc.) 4,391 3,398 993
Accrued expenses and deferred income 369 695 (326)
Other liabilities 2,506 1,435 1,071
Total other current liabilities 12,444 8,900 3,544

Social security charges payables amount to Eurg51t8ousand and relate entirely to the current.year
The Group normally pays social security charges witbholding taxes in accordance with legally
defined due dates.

Advances relate to that portion of subscriptionmests received from customers to whom magazines
have not yet been issued, as well as prepaymenspéaially commissioned future editions.

As at 31 December 2010, “accrued expenses andreéficome” had also included interest accrued on
the current account already mentioned held withepiél S.p.A. Following the award issued on 27
January 2010, the deposit, including interest aatrwas released to Cairo Communication.

“Other liabilities” include Euro 0.5 million (Eur6.8 million as at 31 December 2009) related to the
rebilling of the share of print media bad debts, ldsses of which have not been fully ascertained.

*k*k

34. Commitments and risks

Main guarantees given by third parties in favouthef Cairo Communication Group are as follows:

- a bank surety of Euro 16.8 million, expiring on Jne 2012 issued by Banca Popolare di
Milano to Telecom ltalia Media S.p.A. (Telecom Gpdusecuring payment of minimum
guaranteed fees specified in its contract for tteusive sale of television advertising space
on LAY;

- other sureties totaling Euro 234 thousand by bawkiasurance institutes.

35. Other information
The arbitration proceeding started in July 2010 Gsiro Communication against Telepiu Srl was

concluded with the award rendered by the Boardrbitfators on 16 September 2011, In such procedure,
Cairo Communication was claiming that the breach Tfepiu (definitively acknowledged by the
arbitration award rendered on 27 January 2010hefl0 years exclusive concession for the advegtisin

sale on Telepiu channels granted to Cairo TV byepiel, implies also the breach by Telepiu of the
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contract for the sale of the shares of Cairo TVrn{fer Telepiu Pubblicita), being such contracts

contextual and related.

The Board of Arbitrators acknowledged the clainedilby Cairo Communication, limited to breach of
contract, but rejected Cairo’s claim for comperwatior damage arising from such breach by Telepiu.
The Board of Arbitrators - with the motivated dissrg opinion of Prof. Francesco Benatti — takea th
view that relevant damage was absorbed by the danfiaig loss of profit compensated to Cairo
Communication (as acquirer of Cairo TV) under thefoing award of 27 January 2010.

The outcome of the arbitration had no consequencth® financial statements as at 31 December 2011,

with the exception of the legal expenses paid, Wwhiere recognised in profit or loss.

In 2011, the three-year contractual target (Eur® Bifllion) securing Cairo a three-year renewal 01
2014) of the advertising concession contract, wadmeaed; in October 2011, Cairo Communication and
TIMedia acknowledged that the agreement enter@dant19 November 2008 was to be deemed renewed
for the further three-year period of 2012-2014aatordance with the terms and conditions estalalishe
under the contract and under the additional agratsméhereto. The advertising concession contract
regarding LA7 sets minimum annual gross advertisiegenue in 2012 of Euro 126 million, with
minimum annual guaranteed fees for Telecom Italeid of Euro 88.2 million (70%).

In December 2010, Telecom lItalia Media and Caimeed to revise the advertising concession contrfact
19 November 2008. Specifically, for 2011 and foe 8012-2014 three-year period , both set additional
annual advertising revenue targets (unguarantedth) wespect to the minimum annual revenue,
proportional to the achievement by Telecom ltaliadid of annual targets of share higher than thengiv
3% for LA7’s share. Cairo’'s achievement of thedditional targets, or payment to Telecom lItalia lded
of equivalent dues, will entitle Cairo to renew tantract up to 31 December 2019. Otherwise, Teteco
Italia Media is authorized to withdraw from the t@at.

The contract regarding the LA7d digital channe seinimum gross advertising revenue in 2012 of Euro
8 million for a 0.2% share of the channel, with miom guaranteed fees for Telecom Italia Media of
Euro 5.6 million, paid as per the contract on a thlyrbasis. A result higher or lower than the 0.88&re

will produce a corresponding increase or decreasminimum annual revenue and in the guaranteed

minimum fee.

As the result of a VAT audit performed on Cairo Goumication S.p.A., in its report, the Guardia di
Finanza (the Italian Tax Police) identified sonmadings for 2002 and subsequent years (2003, 2004
and 2005) relating to the application if any of VAR dealing rights charged to media centres, which
were subsequently included in the final audit rép@sued in January 2008 (for 2002), in June 2008
(for 2003, 2004 and 2005), and on 24 November Z8dr12006), which the company has challenged.
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Regarding 2006, at the date of writing of theseesothe hearing for the appeal has yet to be stdubdu
For all the periods in question (2002, 2003, 2064 2005), the Provincial Tax Commission of Milan

has ruled in favour of the Company’s appeals. Thgenxia delle Entrate (Tax Authority Agency) has
filed an appeal with the Regional Tax CommissiomMifan against these decisions. In April 2010, the
Regional Tax Commission of Milan ruled in favour the Agency’s appeal regarding 2002, and in
October 2011 also regarding the years 2003, 2004l 2005, on questionable grounds. Cairo
Communication has already appealed to the Cou@askation against judgement regarding 2002, for
which the tax claim amounts to Euro 41 thousanagdadition to penalties of Euro 51 thousand, andl wil
appeal to the Court of Cassation also for the sy years 2003, 2004 and 2005, for which the tax
claim totals Euro 247 thousand, in addition to f#®m of Euro 272 thousand and interest. The tax
claim for 2006 amounts to Euro 63 thousand, intamdto penalties of Euro 79 thousand and interest
Based also on the advice of its tax consultanesDinectors believe there are fundamental reasnds a

rights to oppose the relevant findings.

The Agenzia delle Entrate (ltalian Tax Authoritiefallenged Cairo Communication for using excess
IRES from the 2006 tax return to offset 2007 rpagts. While not challenging the relevant credit to
Cairo Communication, the Italian Tax Authoritieshrafuted its use for offsetting purposes on grsund
of non-compliance of procedures (specifically, ttadian Tax Authorities claim that use of the ctedi
would have required a formal credit transfer frdra Company to the Company). On 6 July 2010, the
Company received a tax bill, substantially for paytnof Euro 28 thousand as interest, and Euro 145
thousand as penalties, since the credit has not bemllowed. Cairo Communication has filed an
appeal with the Provincial Tax Commission. As a& dlate of the writing of these notes, the hearimg f
the appeal has yet to be scheduled. Based aldweamdvice of its tax consultants, the Directorselvel

there are fundamental reasons and rights to ogpeselevant findings.

A previous shareholder of the subsidiary Il Trovat&.r.l.,, who did not sell its shares to the ptaren
company, had risen a claim against the current nitinehareholder, involving Cairo Communication
S.p.A. indirectly, questioning the validity of trentract under which he had sold the quota in the
limited partnership Il Trovatore and the transfotiom of this company from a limited partnershipato
limited liability company (S.r.l.), and requestitige annulment of the subsequent acquisition of the
company by Cairo Communication. The requests otctheterparty were rejected in the first instance,
although the counterparty has filed an appeal. adso on the advice of its legal counsels, the
Directors believe that the grounds of these clainessuch as not to request a specific accrual.

In its hearing on 18 October 2010, the Provinciak Tommission of Milan acknowledged the appeal
filed by Cairo Editore S.p.A. regarding the asses#motice for tax year 2004, illustrated in theéesao
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the financial statements at 31 December 2010. Tien Tax Authorities has filed an appeal with the

Regional Tax Commission of Milan against the ruliAg the date of writing of these notes, the hearin
for the appeal has yet to be scheduled. Basedaasighe advice of its tax consultants, the Directors

believe there are fundamental reasons and righdpose the relevant findings.

Immobiledit S.r.l., the subsidiary merged into ©@altditore in 2009, is party to a lawsuit regardang
property purchase. In 2004, the Court of Milanthe first instance, had rejected the adverse arty’
claims, ordering the adverse party to pay damagesettle in separate proceedings, and to repa} leg
expenses. The Court of Appeal has partly reverseduling of first instance, ordering Immobiledit t
pay for the expenses of first and second instanegegting the adverse party’s claim for damageschvh
has appealed to the Court of Cassation againstejeetion. Based also on the advice of its legal
consultants, the Directors believe that the advpesty’'s appeal does not require any relevant atcru
against it.

It is also noted that:

- the consolidated financial statements at 31 Dece2®¥l do not include any receivables or
payables with a residual term exceeding five years.
- no company within the scope of consolidation hastabzed any financial expenses.

*k*k

36. Related party transactions

Transactions between the parent and its consofidautibsidiaries, which are its related parties, have
been eliminated from the consolidated financiaiesteents and are therefore not shown in this note.

The Group holds relations with the parent (UT Comivations S.p.A.) and with the latter's
subsidiaries at conditions deemed normal in thespective relevant markets, taking into account the
nature of services offered. Below is a summary h&f statement of financial position and income
statement balances deriving from the transactiomslemin 2011 with these related parties. The
identification and disclosure regarding relatediparwere made in accordance with the IAS 24 Revise
Based on this Standard, related parties were fikohths the subsidiaries and associates of thepgGasu
shown in the list attached to this Annual Repoltigt' of investments of the Group at 31 December
2011"). The Ultimate Parent of the Group is U.Tn@ounications S.p.A.

The Group holds investments in the subsidiary C8port (Euro 10 thousand) and in the associate
Dmail Group (Euro 1,461 thousand).

The effects of these transactions on the 2011 didased income statement of the Cairo
Communication Group are as follows:
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Revenues and costs
(€ thousands)

Financial
income

Revenue Costs

Financial
expense

Parent

UT Communications S.p.A.

Jointly-controlled companies

Torino FC S.p.A.

147 (1,748) -

Mp Service

Total

147 (1,748) -

The effects of these relations on the consolidadtatement of financial position of the Cairo

Communication Group as at 31 December 2011 arellasvé:

Receivables and financial assets Trade Other Receivables  Other current

(€ thousands) receivables receivables and tax consolidation financial
current assets scheme assets

Parent

UT Communications S.p.A. 61 - 1,467 -

Jointly-controlled companies

Torino FC S.p.A. 295 - - -

Mp Service 24 - - -

Total 380 - 1,467 -

Payables and financial liabilities
(€ thousands)

Trade payables Other payables
and current
liabilities

Payables tax
consolidation
scheme

Other current
financial
liabilities

Parent

UT Communications S.p.A.

- - 2,156

Jointly-controlled companies

Torino FC S.p.A.

315 150 -

Other

Dividends to shareholders

1,456

Total

315 1,606 2,156

Transactions made during the year with relatedigmrincluding intra-group transactions, are quedif

as neither atypical nor unusual, as they are cersildpart of the ordinary business conducted byisro

companies. These transactions are settled at meokelitions, taking into account the nature of good

and services offered.

In 2011, the relations and transactions with thempal.T. Communications and with its subsidiades

be analyzed as follows:

- the concession contract signed with Torino F.C./S,@ subsidiary of UT Communications, for the

sale of advertising space at the Olimpico footpélth and promotional sponsorship packages. This

contract resulted in the payment in 2011 of Eu rhillion to the concession holder against total

revenue of Euro 2.1 million, net of agency disceutairo Pubblicita earned further commissions of

Euro 37 thousand. As part of the advertising camti@airo Pubblicita also purchased football tisket

worth Euro 27 thousand and recharged Torino F.€ajpéng costs of Euro 10 thousand;
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- the contract signed by Cairo Communication S.p.Ad arorino F.C. for the provision of

administrative services such as bookkeeping, whpickiides for an annual consideration of Euro 100
thousand,;

- the agreement relating to the purchase of adwvegtispace at the Olimpico football pitch between
Cairo Editore and Torino FC., for an annual consitien of Euro 100 thousand,

- the purchase by Cairo Pubblicita of receivables twu€orino F.C. S.p.A. from Dahlia TV S.p.A;
specifically, the transaction involved the salehwigcourse from Torino FC to Cairo Pubblicita of
receivables accrued by Torino FC to Dahlia TV faotal of Euro 300 thousand, under a sponsorship
contract signed on 5 October 2009, promoted byoCRibblicita, entitling a fee from Torino FC.

- as already mentioned, Cairo Communication and ltissigiaries Cairo Editore S.p.A., Cairo
Pubblicita S.p.A., Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidatio@airo Due S.r.l. and Cairo Publishing S.r.l. adlder
to the national tax consolidation scheme of UT Camitations S.p.A. The consolidation scheme,
which governs the financial aspects of amounts paideceived in return for the advantages or
disadvantages resulting from the tax consolidatgmecifically provides that any greater charges or
minor benefits that may accrue to the Company tiesufrom adhesion to the scheme, be suitably
remunerated by the parent. In relation to this,dbesolidated financial statements at 31 December
2011 include receivables from and payables to #verp UT Communications S.p.A. of Euro 1,467
thousand and Euro 2,156 thousand, respectively.

Fees paid to directors in 2011 are analyzed in N@t&Board of Directors’ and Board of Statutory

Auditors’ fees”

During the year, no transactions were carried oitih 'wmembers of the Board of Directors, general

directors and/or with key management personnel, imeesnof the Board of Statutory Auditors, and the

financial reporting manager, further than the feaisl and already shown in this Note.

The procedures adopted by the Group for relatedy pmansactions, to ensure transparency and

substantial and procedural fairness, made by thep@ay either directly or through its subsidiarias

illustrated in the Directors’ Report in the sectmmthe“Report on Corporate governance”.

*k*k

37. Risk management

Liquidity risk

The Cairo Communication Group is not exposed taidify risk, in that on one hand, significant
financial resources are held with a net availalusitive financial position of Euro 53.8 million wi,

on the other hand, the Group attempts to ensure ahaappropriate ability to generate cash is

maintained, even under the current market condition
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An analysis of the company’s equity structure showth liquidity, or the ability to maintain finaradi
stability in the short term, and solidity, or thigily to maintain financial stability in the medilong
term.

It is Group policy to invest available cash in amwhnd or very short-term bank deposits, properly
spreading the investments, essentially in bankimglycts, with the prime objective of maintaining a
ready liquidity of the said investments. Countetiparare selected on the basis of their credingati

their reliability and the quality of the servicendered.

Currency and interest rate risks

The Cairo Communication Group is not exposed tedhesks, in that on one hand, there is no loan
finance, whilst on the other hand Group operatiares carried out exclusively in Italy and revenue is
generated entirely within the country and main £@se incurred in Euro.

The interest rate risk only affects the yield orailable cash. Specifically, with reference to thet n
financial position at 31 December 2011, a one pgacge point reduction in the interest rate would
result in a reduction in annual financial incomepproximately Euro 0.5 million.

Movements in the cash flows and the liquidity ob@s companies are centrally monitored and managed
by Group Treasury in order to guarantee effective efficient management of financial resources

Given the limited exposure to both interest ratd &OREX risk, the Group does not use financial

derivative and/or hedging instruments.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk, primarily @lation to its advertising sales activities. Thikrns
however mitigated by the fact that the exposurdiviled across a large number of customers and that
credit monitoring and control procedures are irceldn terms of concentration, the top 10 customers
represent approximately 16% (18% in 2010) of tetdés, whilst the top 100 customers represent 57%
(58% in 2010). These ratios are basically in linggrior years.

The uncertainty factors in the short and mediumtealong with the resulting credit squeeze, may of
course impact negatively the quality of credit gederal payment terms.

The publishing segment, on the other hand, predanteed exposure to credit risk as publishing
revenues are basically generated by one singlg padine Group - whilst for distribution revenueket
distribution contract provides for an advance paynegual to a significant percentage of the esthat
sales of each magazine

The Group’s maximum theoretical exposure to craslits at 31 December 2011 is given by the carrying

amount of trade receivables and other recognizetkbru assets totaling Euro 117.1 million (108.8
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million at 31 December 2010), and by the nominabam of guarantees given on third-party debts or
commitments as indicated in Note 34.

The credit risks associated with cash and cashvalgmts, with a maximum theoretical exposure of
Euro 54.7 million (Euro 58.3 million at 31 Decemb20®10), are considered irrelevant as they are

deposits spread across various banks.

38. Board of Directors’ and Board of Statutory Audiors’ fees

The following information refers to fees paid in14Q to Directors, Statutory Auditors, General
Directors and key management personnel, also isidialies, analyzed in detail in the Remuneration

Report, prepared pursuant to art. 123 ter of th&:TU

Name and Position  Term of office  Term expiry Fees Benefitsin  Bonuses and Other fees **
surname date kind other
* incentives
Urbano R. Chairman  Jan.-Dec. 31/12/2011
Cairo BoD 2011 700 16 - 505
Uberto Fornara CEO Jan.-Dec. 31/12/2011
2011 475 4 - 384
Roberto Cairo  Director Jan.-Dec. 31/12/2011
2011 20 - - -
Marco Janni Director Jan.-Dec. 31/12/2011
2011 33 - - -
Antonio Director Jan.-Dec. 31/12/2011
Magnocavallo 2011 33 - - -
Marco Director Jan.-Dec. 31/12/2011
Pompignoli 2011 220 4 - 279
Roberto Director Jan.-Dec. 31/12/2011
Rezzonico 2011 40 - - -
Mauro Director Jan.-Dec. 31/12/2011
Sala 2011 33 - - -
Key N/A  Jan.-Dec. N/A - 8 - 763
management 2011
personnel

Marco Moroni Chairman  Jan.-Dec. 31/12/2011

Board of 2011 30 - - 16
Statutory
Auditors
Maria Pia Standing ~ Jan.-Dec. 31/12/2011
Maspes auditor 2011 20 - - 10
Marco Giuliani Standing  Jan.-Dec. 31/12/2011
auditor 2011 20 - - -

* Other fees, in addition to fees for the role ofdior (Euro 20 thousand), refers to:
. Urbano Cairo: fees pursuant to art. 2389, paragraph 3, ItaliawviCCode(Euro 680 thousand).
. Uberto Fornara: fees pursuant to art. 2389, paragraph 3, ItaliaviCCode(Euro 455 thousand).
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. Marco Janni: fees for attendance in meetings of the Remuner&@nmittee and Related Party CommittEero 13 thousand);

. Antonio Magnocavallo: fees for attendance in meetings of the Remuner&@nmittee and the Audit Commit{€aro 13 thousand);

. Marco Pompignoli: fees pursuant to art. 2389, paragraph 3 ItalianiC8ode (Euro 200 thousand);

. Roberto Rezzonico: fees for attendance in meetings of the Audit Coteenénd Related Party Committ@giro 20 thousand).

. Mauro Sala: fees for attendance in meetings of the Remuner&immmittee, Audit Committee and Related Party Gusen(Euro 13
thousand);

** Other fees refers to

. Urbano Cairo: fees for his duties performed for Cairo Edit@Eeiro 500 thousand) and other companies of the Gro(furo 5 thousand).

. Uberto Fornara: gross fees as senior manager payable by Cairo Conmation (Euro 279 thousand) and fees for his duties performed
for Cairo Pubblicita(Euro 100 thousand) and other companies of the Gro(uro 5 thousand).

. Marco Pompignoli: gross fees as senior manager payable by Cairo Cariwation (Euro 184 thousand) and fees for his duties performed
for Cairo Pubblicita(Euro 90 thousand) and other companies of the Gro(furo 5 thousand).

*  Key management personnel: gross fixed annual Group fees for a total of Euro 629 thousand (comprising gross remuneration as manager)
and variable incentive components amounting to 134 thousand.

On 28 April 2011, the Shareholders of Cairo Comroation S.p.A. had resolved on annual fees of Euro
220 thousand, which the meeting of the Board oé@ors on 3 May 2011 had split up in, respectively,
Euro 20 thousand as fees for the Remuneration Ctieanithe Internal Control Committee and the
Related Party Committee. The remaining Euro 160ghod was split up among the eight directors.
On 12 May 2011, the Board of Directors, on the psgp of the Remuneration Committee and the
favourable opinion of the Related Party Commitfesuant to art. 2389, paragraph 3 of the Italiauil C
Code, resolved for:
- fees to Chairman Urbano Cairo, CEO Uberto Forremd, Director Marco Pompignoli, who hold
particular responsibilities, amounting respectivilyEuro 480 thousand, Euro 60 thousand and
Euro 90 thousand,
- a variable fee mechanism for CEO Uberto Fornaraedbanainly on advertising revenue growth
targets.
Under the decisions adopted by the Board of Dirsabo 12 May 2011 and on 14 February 2012, on the
proposal of the Remuneration Committee and theuialme opinion of the Related Party Committee,
further fees were established for 2011, specifycall
= for the Chairman — based on overall quality assessson results achieved - Euro 200 thousand.
= for CEO Uberto Fornara — based on the variablenfeehanism defined by the Board on 12 May
2011 based mainly on advertising revenue growthetar- Euro 395 thousand,
= for Director Marco Pompignoli — based on overalblify assessments on duties performed - Euro
110 thousand.
Moreover, under Consob Communication n. DEM/110#26824 February 2011, point 2.3, letters (a)
and (f) it should be noted that
= there are no agreements in place between the Congrehthe directors for any fee in the event of
resignation or unjust dismissal, or in the evemirttemployment relationship ceases following a
takeover bigl
= there are agreements in place between the Compahylaerto Fornara, subject to non-competition

commitments in the year following termination o$ lemployment with the Company, for payment of
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a gross monthly fee of 150% solely of the grosstiigrsalary in his capacity as manager, which will

become effective upon termination of his relatiopsh

Moreover, there are no succession plans regardiecuéive directors.

At 31 December 2011, the key management personihé¢heo Cairo Communication Group was
composed of:

e Giuseppe Ferrauto (board member, General Managemanager of Cairo Editore);

e Giuliano Cesari (executive board member and Geméaalager of Cairo Pubblicitd) and manager of

Cairo Communication.

To date, Cairo Communication has no stock optiampin place.

39. Transactionsderiving from atypical and/or unusual transactions
Pursuant to Consob Communication of 28 July 200®0BEM/6064296, we note that in 2011, Cairo

Communication did not perform any atypical and/owsual transactions as defined by the above
Communication. Moreover, there are no cost and méeecomponents deriving from events or
transactions which by their nature or size are idemed non-recurring.

As explained in Note,adn the 2010 consolidated income statement, incdening from the arbitration
pending from 2004 between Cairo Communication S.amd Telepiu S.r.l. has been shown separately

owing to its non-recurring nature and size.

For the Board of Directors

Chairman Urbano Cairo
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Cairo Communication S.p.A.
Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2011

- Appendices
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APPENDIX 1

CAIRO COMMUNICATION GROUP COMPANIES

As requested by Consob, the following table ligksCairo Communication Group companies, showing
the company name, registered office, quota capital,shares held, whether directly or indirectlythe
Parent Cairo Communication S.p.A. and by each didyi the consolidation method and the list of

investments, measured using the equity method.

Companies Registered Quota % Reporting Business object Consolidation method
office capitalat ~ Ownership date
31/12/11

Cairo Communication S.p.A. Milan 4,074 31/12 Advertising Full

Cairo Editore S.p.A. Milan 1,043 99.95 31/12 Publishing Full

Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidation Milan 2,000 60 31/12 In liguidation Full re assets and

liabilities (*)

Cairo Due S.r.l. Milan 47 100 31/12 Advertising Full

Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. Milan 2,818 100 31/12 Advertising Full

Cairo Publishing S.r.l. Milan 10 100 31/12 Publishing Full

Il Trovatore S.r.l. Milan 25 80 31/12 Internet Full

Edizioni Anabasi S.r.l. Milan 10 99.95 31/12 Publishing Full

Dmail Group S.p.A. Milan 15,300 10 31/12 E-commerce - Retall Single line

Publishing

(*) the income statement is consolidated in a sifigle in profit/(loss) from discontinued operaton
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APPENDI X
Information pursuant to Article 149-duodecies of Cmsob Issuers’ regulations
The following statement, prepared pursuant to38#9-duodecies of Consob Issuer’ regulations, shows

the fees for the current year for auditing serviaed non-audit services provided by the independent
auditors.

€ thousands Services provided Fees for the year

Audit services

Audit of separatefinancial statements, consolide
financial statements, quarterly checks and cheaks

minor companies KPMG S.p.A. 67
Subsidiaries

- Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. KPMG S.p.A. 34
- Cairo Editore S.p.A. Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. 61

Attestation services

Parent company KPMG S.p.A* 20
Subsidiaries
- Cairo Editore S.p.A. Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. 3

* Fairness opinion on the distribution of interim dividends pursuant to art. 2433 bis, paragraph 5 of the Italian Civil Code
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DECLARATION ABOUT THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO

ARTICLE 81 TER OF CONSOB REGULATION 11971 OF 14 MAY 1999 AND SUBSEQUENT

MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS

1. The undersigned Urbano Roberto Cairo, as Chaiwhdéime Board of Directors, and Marco Pompignoli,
as Financial Reporting Manager of Cairo Communacets.p.A., also in accordance with art. 154 bis,
paragraphs 3 and 4 of Leg. Dec. February 24, 1988 58, confirm:

« the suitability of the characteristics of the gany and

* the effective application of administrative anct@unting procedures for the preparation of thel201
consolidated financial statements

2. We also confirm that

2.1 the consolidated financial statements at 3lebéer 2011:

a) have been prepared in compliance with InternatiGii@hncial Reporting Standards endorsed by
the European Union, pursuant to EEC Regulation 802 of the European Parliament and
Council, of 19 July 2002;

b) are consistent with the accounting records and $obkne Company;

c) give a true and fair view of the financial positiand results of operations of the Issuer and the
companies included in the scope of consolidation;

2.2 the Directors’ Report contains a reliable asiglyn performance and operating results, as wetina
the position of the Issuer and on the companiekided in the scope of consolidation, together vaith

description of the principal risks and uncertaisitie which they are exposed.

Milan, 12 March 2012

For the Board of Directors Financial Reportingridger
Chairman
(Urbano Roberto Cairo) (Marco Pormpig
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Report of the Board of Auditors to the Shareholders Meeting of Cairo
Communication S.p.A., pursuant to art. 153 of Legisitive Decree 58/1998 and to
art. 2429 of the Civil Code

Shareholders,

pursuant to art. 2429 of the Civil Code and to Hs8, paragraph 1, of Legislative Decree n. 58 of
24 February 1998, we hereby inform you that dutimg year ended 31 December 2011, we
performed the oversight duties prescribed by layvatiicle 148et seq. of the abovementioned
Legislative Decree, by the instructions provided@NSOB communications, taking also into
account the standards of conduct recommended bialiesn Association of Public Accountants

and Accounting Professionals.

The above being stated, the results of the presgtridversight duties performed during the year
ended 31 December 2011 are the following:

« we attended all the Shareholders’ Meetings andettodthe Board of Directors and Audit
Committee held during the year, overseeing compéamvith the laws, bylaws and
regulations governing the functioning of Companylies, and receiving from the Directors,
according to the disclosure obligations to the Baair Auditors under art. 150, paragraph 1
of Legislative Decree n. 58/1958mely and appropriate information on activitiesformed
and on transactions of relevance, for their sizé mature, made by the Company and its
subsidiaries; we also ensured that actions de@deédaken by the Directors complied with
the laws and bylaws, and were made in a perspeofiygofitability, and that they were
neither imprudent nor reckless, or in potential fianof interest or in contrast with the
resolutions adopted by the Shareholders’ Meetingsgugh as to jeopardize the integrity of
corporate assets;

« to the extent of our responsibilities, we gathénédrmation and oversaw the appropriateness
of the Company's organizational structure and c@npé with the principles of proper
governance, and the timely execution of instrudigiven to subsidiaries; all these activities
were conducted through direct observation, thraafifrmation gathered from the managers
of the department concerned and through meetings ttve Audit Firm as part of a regular
exchange of important data and information withhsoiedies;

« to the extent of our responsibilities, pursuantatb 19 of Legislative Decree 39/2010, we
gathered information and oversaw the adequacy fiectizeness of the audit system, and the
activities conducted by the manager in charge, elbas the reliability of the administrative-
accounting system to properly illustrate operatiomaents, through information received
from the managers of the departments concerneexdmining company documents and the

activities conducted by the Audit Firm, by attergliine meetings of the Audit Committee



and the meetings with the managers charged witlersiging the operations of the audit
system, as well as with the Financial Reporting &tgan;

during the year, we issued our opinion as presdribg law on the determination of
compensation to managers holding strategic reshitities (art. 2389 of the Civil Code); we
verified compliance with the Group's current congadion policy and with the proposals set
forth by the Compensation Committee;

pursuant to art. 19 of Legislative Decree 39/2046,conducted oversight duties provided
therein on: a) the disclosing of financial inforioat b) effectiveness of the internal control,
internal audit and risk management systems; cytdteitory audit of annual and consolidated
financial statements; d) independence of the Audim, through direct observation,
information gathered from the managers of the depats concerned, and analysis of the
results of the activities conducted by the Audiinkiln such context, we took note of the
guarterly audits performed by the Audit Firm to wmesthat the accounts were kept on a
regular basis; from the Audit Firm, we received Reports prescribed by art. 14 and by art.
19, paragraph 3, of Legislative Decree n 39/2080wall as the “Annual confirmation of
independence” pursuant to art. 17, paragraph 8, dgtof Legislative Decree n. 39/2010;
pursuant to art. 17, paragraph 9, lett. a) of $2édree, we analyzed the risks regarding
independence of the Audit Firm and the measuraddpted to constrain such risks;

during the regular meetings held with the Auditkipursuant to the provisions of art. 150,
paragraph 3, of Legislative Decree 58/1998, no@speEmerged regarding issues within our
responsibility;

we controlled the proper functioning of the audistem on Group companies and the
appropriateness of instructions given to them, yanms also to art. 114, paragraph 2, of
Legislative Decree n. 58/1998;

we controlled the activities being undertaken tolatp the Organization, Management and
Control Model under Legislative Decree n. 231/2001order to implement the recent
changes in legislation on “liable offences” prowdder under the Decree;

we oversaw compliance of the Procedure for Rel&ady Transactions adopted by the
Company through specific Regulations;

we verified the appropriateness of information rdgey transactions with related parties or
intra-group companies, held in the explanatory :iotethe IAS/IFRS consolidated financial
statements of the Cairo Communication Group andh® IAS/IFRS separate financial
statements of Cairo Communication S.p.A., considerine size and structure of the
Company;

we controlled the implementation processes of aatgogovernance rules prescribed by the
Code of Conduct of listed companies issued by Bdta&éna S.p.A., as adopted by the

Company;



* we oversaw the disclosing of financial informatemd verified compliance with the laws and
regulations on the preparation and layout of thpasse and consolidated financial
statements, as well as the documents attachedtdaheBpecifically, the separate and
consolidated financial statements are accompanigdthe prescribed statements of
conformity signed by the Chairman of the Board akBtors and by the Financial Reporting
Manager, pursuant to art. 81-ter of Consob Regulatino. 11971 of 14 May 1999 and
subsequent amendments and supplements thereto;

e we assessed appropriateness, in terms of methdte dmpairment testing put in place to

verify the existence of a loss in value, if anythe booked investment in Dmail Group S.p.A.

The specific indications to provide with this Repare listed below, in accordance with the
provisions of the above-mentioned CONSOB Commuinnadf 6 April 2001 and subsequent

amendments:

1.  We gathered information on the transactionsgoitg and financial relevance made during
the period, also through subsidiaries, to verifyt ttney were made in compliance with the
laws and bylaws and that they were neither imprudesuch as to jeopardize the integrity
of corporate assets. We certify that, to the béstuo knowledge, these transactions were
based on principles of proper governance and ligaissues regarding potential or possible

conflicts of interest were carefully assessed.

2.  We received no report of atypical and/or unudsmahsactions made during the year,
including intra-group transactions or transactiongth related parties. Intragroup
transactions or transactions with related partfesncordinary nature, as well as their main
financial effects, are illustrated in the DirectoReport on Operations and in the
explanatory notes to the separate and consolidatedcial statements. The Board of
Auditors assessed that such transactions comply thvé laws and bylaws, are in keeping
with the Company’s interest, and are not likelgiee rise to doubts regarding the accuracy
and completeness of the disclosure provided infittencial statements, the existence of
conflicts of interest, safeguarding of company #ssand protection of minority
shareholders.

3. In our view, the information provided by the @&itors in their Report, pursuant to art. 2428
of the Civil Code (Report on Operations), regardialyo atypical and/or unusual
transactions and ordinary operations, under thevigue point, is to be considered
exhaustive and complete.

4.  the Audit Firm, KPMG S.p.A., with which we helégular meetings during the year,
assigned the task of carrying out statutory auglitinday issued the audit reports under art.
14 of Legislative Decree n. 39/2010, on the sepamatl consolidated financial statements

as at 31 December 2011, including the audit opipunsuant to art. 14, paragraph 2, lett. e)



10.

11.

of Legislative Decree n. 39/2010 and to art. 128 di Legislative Decree n. 58/1998.

These reports do not contain any issues of no¢g@anatory paragraphs.

there were no omissions, reprehensible facisr@gularities reportable to the competent

authorities or to the supervisory bodies, or wodhynention in this Report.
no complaints were received pursuant to art8 2@he Civil Code.
no opinions were issued pursuant to the law.

During the year, the Company, in compliance wiith laws, assigned KPMG S.p.A. the
additional task, besides statutory auditing, ofeasig and issuing an opinion on the

distribution of an interim dividend, pursuant to. &433-bis of the Civil Code.

There are no reports of tasks assigned to sulifeatsare part of the “network” of the Audit
Firm KPMG S.p.A.

During the year, seven meetings of the Board ok@ars were held, two of the Audit
Committee and five of the Board of Auditors.

The Compensation Committee met twice during 2011.

The Parent Company Financial Statements and thedlidated Financial Statements are
prepared in accordance with the international acting standards (IFRS) issued by the
International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) aapproved by the European Union,
and in accordance with the provisions issued inlémgntation of art. 9 of Legislative

Decree no. 38/2005.

All the above being stated, the Board of Auditagsldres, to the extent of its responsibilitiest tha

there are no reasons for impeding the approvaheffinancial statements as at 31 December

2011, and that there are no observations on thgopab to allocate profit for the year, including

the proposal for dividend distribution held in tidrectors’ Report on Operations to the

IAS/IFRS separate financial statements of Cairo @amication S.p.A. prepared by the Board of

Directors.

Milano, 3 April 2012

Statutory Auditors

Marco Moroni (Chairman)

Marco Giuliani

Maria Pia Maspes



The following page provides a list of the positimisadministration and supervision held by the

members of the Board of Auditors in other compariest the issue date of the Report (Annex

pursuant to art. 144 quinquiedecies of the IssltRegjulations).

ANNEX TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF AUDITORS OF CAI RO COMMUNICATION SPA
DRAWN UP PURSUANT TO ART. 153 OF LEGISLATIVE DECREE 58/98

List of positions held in Companies as per Book Vlitle V, Chapters V, VI and VII of the Civil Code,
as at the issue date of the Report
(art. 144-quinquiesdecies Consob Regulations 11999)

Until approval of the

N. Company Name Position fi .
inancial statements
Dott. Marco Moroni ( Chairman of the Board of Auditors)
1 Aerotecnica Star Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2013
2 Aston & Cooper Srl Statutory Auditor 31/12/2013
3 Betfair Italia Srl Statutory Auditor 31/12/2012
4 Cairo Communication Spa Chairman of the Board adifass 31/12/2013
5 Cairo Editore Spa Chairman of the Board of Auditors 31/12/2013
6 Cairo Pubblicita’ Chairman of the Board of Auditors 31/12/2012
7 Dataprocess Holding Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12R01
8 Elettrodelta S.P.A. in liquidation Statutory Audito 31/12/2011
9 Locauto Rent Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2012
10 Locauto Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2012
11 Publicitas International Spa Statutory Auditor 2012
12 Revicom Srl Chairman of the Board Until revocation
13 Sony Music Entertainment Italy Spa Statutory Audito 31/12/2013
14 Tec ltalia Srl Chairman of the Board of Auditors 31/03/2013
15 Ut Communications Spa Chairman of the Board of fardi 31/12/2013

Number of positions held in issuing companies
Total number of positions held

15

1

Until approval of the financial

N. Company Name Position
statements
Dott.ssa Maria Pia Maspes Statutorv Auditor )
1 Cairo Pubblicita Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2012
2 Caminetti Montegrappa Srl Chairman of the Boarduaditors 31/12/2012
3 G.B.H. Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2012
4 Cairo Communication Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12201
5 Cairo Editore Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2013
6 Ut Communications Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2013
7 Alto Partners SGR Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2012
8 lItalholding Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2012
9 Immobiliare Andronica Spa Statutory Auditor 31/112
10 Torino Fc Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2013
11 Eurofly Services Statutory Auditor 31/12/2013
12 CRE - Centro ricerche ecologiche Statutory Auditor 31/12/2012

Number of positions held in issuing companies
total number of positions held




Until approval of the

N. Company Name Position p .
inancial statements
Dott. Marco Giuliani (Statutorv Auditor)
1 Banca Mediolanum Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2011
2 Rothschild Italia Spa Statutory Auditor 31/03/2013
3 Marsh Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2011
4 Cairo Communication Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/r01
5 Orient —Express Hotels Italia Srl Chairman of theaBl of Auditors 31/12/2011
6 Yara ltalia Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2011
7 Banca Esperia Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2011
8 Ali Spa Statutory Auditor 31/08/2012
9 Mediolanum GESTIONI Fondi Spa Statutory Auditor P012
10 Hotel Cipriani Srl Chairman of the Board of Audsgor 31/12/2013

Number of positions held in issuing companies

Total number of positions held

10
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(Translation from the Italian original which remains the definitive version)

Report of the auditors in accordance with articles 14 and 16 of
Legislative decree no. 39 of 27 January 2010

To the shareholders of
Cairo Communication S.p.A.

1 We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Cairo Communication
Group as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011, comprising the consolidated
statement of financial position, consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in consolidated equity, consolidated
statement of cash flows and notes thereto. The parent’s directors are responsible for the
preparation of these financial statements in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards endorsed by the European Union and the Italian regulations
implementing article 9 of Legislative decree no. 38/05. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

2 We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards recommended by
Consob, the Italian Commission for Listed Companies and the Stock Exchange. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement and are,
as a whole, reliable. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by directors. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Reference should be made to the report of other auditors dated 4 April 2011 for their
opinion on the prior year consolidated financial statements, which included the
corresponding figures presented for comparative purposes.

3 In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Cairo Communication Group
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011 comply with the International Financial
Reporting Standards endorsed by the European Union and the Italian regulations
implementing article 9 of Legislative decree no. 38/05. Therefore, they are clearly stated
and give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Cairo Communication Group
as at 31 December 2011, the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Societa per azioni
Capitale sociale
Euro 7625.700,00 i.v.

Ancona Aosta Bari Bergamo Registro Imprese Milano e
Bologna Bolzano Brescia Cagliari Codice Fiscale N. 00709600159
Catania Como Firenze Genova REA Milano N. 512867
Lecce Milano Napoli Novara Partita VA 00708600159
KPMG Sp.A. & una societa per azioni di diritto italiano e fa parte del Padova Palermo Parma Perugra VAT number [TO0709600159
network KPMG di entitd indipendenti affiliate a KPMG International Pescara Roma Torino Treviso Sede legale: Via Vittor Pisani, 25

Cooperative {"KPMG International”), entita di diritto svizzero Trieste Udine Varese Verona 20124 Mitano MI ITALIA



Cairo Communication Group
Report of the auditors
31 December 2011

4 The directors of Cairo Communication S.p.A. are responsible for the preparation of a
directors’ report on the financial statements in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consistency of the
directors’ report and its specific section on corporate governance and ownership
structure, to the extent of the information required by article 123-bis.1.c/d/f/l/m and
article 123-bis.2.b of Legislative decree no. 58/98 with the financial statements to which
they refer, as required by the law. For this purpose, we have performed the procedures
required by the Italian Standard on Auditing 001 issued by the Italian Accounting
Profession and recommended by Consob. In our opinion, the directors’ report and the
information required by article 123-bis.1.c/d/f/l/m and article 123-bis.2.b of Legislative
decree no. 58/98 disclosed in the specific section of such report are consistent with the
consolidated financial statements of the Cairo Communication Group as at and for the
year ended 31 December 2011.

Milan, 3 April 2012

KPMG S.p.A.
(signed on the original)

Francesco Spadaro
Director
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Income statement for the year ended 31 December 2D1

Euro

Revenue

Other revenue and income

Non-recurring income from Cairo-Telepiu arbitration
Services

Use of third party assets

Personnel expense

Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impainnesses
Other operating costs

Operating profit

Net financial income

Income from investments

Pre-tax profit

Income tax

Profit from continuing operations

Loss from discontinued operations

Profit for the year

Statement of comprehensive income for the year end&1

December 2011

Profit for the year
Loss on measurement of available-for-sale finarasakets

Total comprehensive income for the year
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2011 2010
140,487,266 137,472,305
260,844 528,493
0 9,944,302
(126,176,301) (128,587,898)
(638,184) (627,532)
(2,773,199) (2,468,951)
(218,226) (221,842)
(310,347) (255,923)
10,631,853 15,782,954
951,918 236,767
11,673,787 7,462,017
23,257,558 23,481,738
(3,989,989) (5,515,766)
19,267,569 17,965,972
(9,997) (67,459)
19,257,572 17,898,513
2011 2010
19,257,572 17,898,513
(7,650) (1,774,800)
19,249,922 16,123,713




Statement of financial position

Euro
Assets

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Property, plant and equipment 10 375,508 351,258
Intangible assets 11 124,066 151,717
Investments 12 15,168,926 15,941,310
Receivables from subsidiaries 13 386,457 386,457
Other non-current financial assets 13 12,420 12,420
Deferred tax assets 14 805,773 905,363
Total non-current assets 16,873,150 17,748,525
Trade receivables 15 1,563,959 1,656,058
Receivables from parents 24 1,336,407 61,355
Receivables from subsidiaries 16 78,116,823 85,590,005
Other receivables and other current assets 17 2,286,229 8,947,842
Securities and other current financia assets 18 0 78,543
Cash and cash equivalents 19 37,475,789 32,663,459
Total current assets 120,779,207 128,997,262
Total assets 137,652,357 146,745,787
Equity and liabilities 31 December 2011 31 December 2010
Share capital 20 4,073,857 4,073,857
Share premium reserve 20 48,287,813 49,782,318
Retained earnings 20 494,693 521,695
Other reserves 20 1,056,508 1,056,509
Treasury shares 20 (1,131,942) (2,351,293)
Interim dividend 20 (11,695,811) 0
Profit for the year 20 19,257,572 17,898,512
Total equity 60,342,690 70,981,598
Post - employment benefits 21 760,918 667,996
Provisions for risks and charges 22 149,178 169,181
Total non-current liabilities 910,096 837,177
Trade payables 23 69,711,657 58,049,893
Payables to parents 24 0 2,781,404
Payables to subsidiaries 25 2,085,621 10,400,616
Tax liabilities 26 212,308 615,551
Other current ligbilities 27 4,389,985 3,079,548
Total current liabilities 76,399,571 74,927,012
Total liabilities 77,309,667 75,764,189
Total equity and liabilities 137,652,357 146,745,787
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Statement of cash flows

€ thousands

2011

2010

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the year
- non-recurring

Amortization/ depreciation
Impairment losses on investments
Net financial income

Income tax
- non—recurring

Change in post-employment benefits
Change in provisions for risks and charges

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital

(Increase) decrease in trade and other assets

- non-recurring

Increase (decrease) in trade and other liabilities
(Increase) decrease in other assets

TOTAL CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Income tax paid

Financial expense paid

TOTAL NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of PPE and intangible assets

Interest and financial income received

Dividends received

Net increase in other non-current assets

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease (Increase) in term bank deposits

- non—recurring

(Acquisition) disposal of treasury shares

Dividends paid

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C)
NET CASH FLOW OF THE YEAR (A)+(B)+(C)

CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
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32,663 17,832
19,258 17,899
0 6,822

218 222

765 0
(13,391) (7,699)
3,990 5,516

0 3,122

93 73

(0) 51
10,913 16,061
14,227 (1,860)
0 (5,941)

3,200 5,766
79 0
28,419 19,968
(8,350) (4,816)
(57) (78)
20,012 15,074
(15) (68)
1,009 315
12,439 7,462
0 21
13,234 7,730
- 7,543

- 7,543

1,200 -
(29,633) (15,515)
(28,433) (7,972)
4812 14,831
37,476 32,663



Statement of changes in equity

€ thousands
Share capital Share premium Earnings Other reserves  Treasury shares Reserve for  Interim dividend  Profit for the year Equity
reserve available-for sale-
financial assets

€ thousands

Balance as at 31 December 2008 4,074 56,965 5,540 1,057 (3,193) 0 0 9,499 73,942

Allocation of profit 9,499 (9,499) 0

Dividend distribution shareholders' meeting apptefdinancial

statements at 31/12/2008 (3,608) (11,844) (15,452)
Movements in treasury shares (471) 842 371
Gains/(Losses) from available-for-sale financisets (428) (428)
Profit for the year 11,940 11,940
Balance as at 31 December 2009 4,074 53,357 2,724 1,057 (2,351) (428) 0 11,940 70,373
Allocation of profit 11,940 (11,940) 0

Dividend distribution shareholders’ meeting approfdinancial

statements at 31/12/2009 (3,575) (11,940) (15,515)
Losses on available-for-sale financial assets (1,775) (1,775)
Profit for the year 17,899 17,899
Balance as at 31 December 2010 4,074 49,782 2,724 1,057 (2,351) (2,203) 0 17,899 70,982
Allocation of profit 17,899 (17,899) 0

Dividend distribution shareholders' meeting apptefdinancial

statements at 31/12/2010 (1,494) (17,899) (19,393)
Movements in treasury shares (19) 1,219 1,200
reserve for available-fc l@finial assets (2,211) 2,211 0
Losses on available-for-sale financial assets 8) (8)
Interim dividends 2011 (11,696) (11,696)
Profit for the year 19,258 19,258
Balance as at 31 December 2011 4,074 48,288 494 1,057 (1,132) 0 (11,696) 19,258 60,343
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Income statement pursuant to Consob Resolution n5519 of 27 July 2006

Euro

Revenue

Other revenue and income

Non-recurring income from Cairo-Telepiu arbitration
Services

Use of third party assets

Personnel expense

Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impainnipsses
Other operating costs

Operating profit

Net financial income

Income from investments

Pre-tax profit

Income tax

Profit from continuing operations

Loss from discontinued operations

Profit for the year

(*) Related party transactions are analyzed in NSte

<)

2011 Related parties % of total 2010 Relatedapties % of total
@]
140,487,266 140,447,287 100,0% 137,472,305 137,452,409 100,0%
260,844 528,493
0 9,944,302
(126,176,301) (113,324) 0,1% (128,587,898) (26,609,769) 20,7%
(638,184) (627,532)
(2,773,199) (2,468,951)
(218,226) (47,299) 21,7% (221,842) (47,229) 21,3%
(310,347) (255,923)
10,631,853 15,782,954 5,599,361
951,918 2,784 0,3% 236,767 18,001 7,6%
11,673,787 11,673,787 100,0% 7,462,017 7,462,017 100,0%
23,257,558 23,481,738 13,867,019
(3,989,989) (5,515,766)
19,267,56 17,965,97 10,439,89
(9,997) (9,997) 100,0% (67,459) (67,459) 100,0%
19,257,572 17,898,513 11,419,892
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Statement of financial position pursuant to ConsolResolution no. 15519 of 27 July

2006

Er
A:::ls 31 December 2011 Related parties % of total 31 December 2010 Related parties % of total
) (W]
Property, plant and equipment 375,508 36,906 9,8% 351,258 49,124 14,0%
Intangible assets 124,066 8,000 6,4% 151,717 16,000 10,5%
Investments 15,168,926 15,168,926 100,0% 15,941,310 13,707,510 86,0%
Receivables from subsidiaries 386,457 386,457 100,0% 386,457 386,457 100,0%
Other non-current financial assets 12,420 12,420
Deferred tax assets 805,773 905,363
Total non-current assets 16,873,150 17,748,525
Trade receivables 1,563,959 239,300 15,3% 1,656,058 103,800 6,3%
Receivables from parents 1,336,407 1,336,407 100,0% 61,355 61,355 100,0%
Receivables from subsidiaries 78,116,823 78,116,823 100,0% 85,590,005 85,590,005 100,0%
Other receivables and other current assets 2,286,229 8,947,842
Securities and other current financial assets - 78,543
Cash and cash equivalents 37,475,789 32,663,459
Total current assets 120,779,207 128,997,262
Total assets 137,652,357 146,745,787
Equity and liabilities 31 December 2011 31 December 2010
Share capital 4,073,857 4,073,857
Share premium reserve 48,287,813 49,782,318
Retained earnings 494,693 521,695
Other reserves 1,056,508 1,056,509
Treasury shares (1,131,942) (2,351,293)
Interim dividend (11,695,811)
Profit for the year 19,257,572 17,898,512
Total equity 60,342,690 70,981,598
Post - employment benefits 760,918 667,996
Provisions for risks and charges 149,178 149,178 100,0% 169,181 169,181 100,0%
Total non-current liabilities 910,096 837,177
Trade payables 69,711,657 16,553 0,0% 58,049,893
Payables to parents - - 2,781,404 2,781,404 100,0%
Payables to subsidiaries 2,085,621 2,085,621 100,0% 10,400,616 10,400,616 100,0%
Tax liabilities 212,308 615,551
Other current liabilities 4,389,985 1,455,750 33,2% 3,079,548
Total current liabilities 76,399,571 74,927,012
Total liabilities 77,309,667 75,764,189
Total equity and liabilities 137,652,357 146,745,787

(*) Related party transactions are analyzed ineNa&
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Statement of cash flows pursuant to Consob Resoloti no. 15519 of 27 July 2006

€ thousands

2011 related parties 2010 related parties

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 32,663 17,832
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year 19,258 151,953 17,899 118,207
Amortization/ depreciation 218 47 222 47
Impairment losses on investments 765 765 0
Net financial income (13,391) (12,442) (7,699) (7,480)
Income tax 3,990 5,516
Change in post-employment benefits 93 73
Change in provisions for risks and charges (20) (20) 51 51
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital 10,913 140,303 16,061 110,825
(Increase) decrease in trade and other assets 14,227 6,063 (1,860) 2,589
Increase (decrease) in trade and other liabilities 3,200 (9,624) 5,766 1,836
(Increase) decrease in other assets 79 0
TOTAL CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 28,419 136,742 19,968 115,250
Income tax paid (8,350) (4,816)
Financial expense paid (57) (78)
TOTAL NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 20,012 136,742 15,074 115,250
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of PPE and intangible assets (215) (68)
Interest and financial income received 1,009 315
Dividends received 12,439 12,439 7,462 7,462
Net increase in other non-current assets 0 21
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) 13,233 12,439 7,730 7,462
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease (Increase) in term bank deposits 0 7,543
(Acquisition) disposal of treasury shares 1,200 0
Dividends paid (29,633) (15,515)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) (28,433) 0 (7,972) 0

0 0
CASH FLOW OF THE YEAR (A)+(B)+(C) 4,812 149,180 14,831 122,712
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 37,476 32,663
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AN D FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Main activities

Cairo Communication S.p.A. is a joint-stock companyolled with the Milan Company Register.
The Cairo Communication Group operates as a pulishmagazines and books (Cairo Editore -
and its division Editoriale Giorgio Mondadori — a@giro Publishing), as a multimedia advertising
broker selling advertising time and space on tslew in print media and in stadiums (Cairo
Communication and Cairo Pubblicita) and as an apedd Internet sites (Il Trovatore).

Its registered offices are at 56 Via Tucidide, Mijldtaly, home also to the company administrative
offices, advertising brokerage services and Il ‘&tove. The publishing business is located at Cairo
Editore, at 55 Corso Magenta, Milan.

Figures are shown in thousands of Euro.

The separate financial statements of Cairo Commatinit S.p.A. are prepared in euro (€), the
currency of the economy in which the company osrat

The income statement and the statement of finarpmaltion are presented in euro, whilst the
statement of cash flows, the statement of changesquity and the amounts in these notes are
presented in thousands of euro.

As the Parent, Cairo Communication S.p.A has alepgred the consolidated financial statements of

the Cairo Communication Group at 31 December 2011.

Basis of preparation

Structure, form and content of the financial sta&pta

The separate financial statements of Cairo Commatinit S.p.A. at 31 December 2011 have been

prepared in accordance with IFRS issued by theratmnal Accounting Standard Board (“IASB”)

and endorsed by the European Union, as well asthdthprovisions arising from art. 9 of Legislative

Decree no. 38/2005. The term IFRS is used to mdathe international accounting standards

(“IAS”), and all the interpretations of the Intetimaal Financial Reporting Interpretations Comnatte

(“IFRIC”), formerly the Standing Interpretations @Qmittee (“SIC”).

For completeness of information, the following axe® are supplied as an integral part of these

Notes:

- Annex 1: List of investments pursuant to art. 24#tagraph 5 of the Italian Civil Code;

- Annex 2 and 3: Summary figures of the draft finahctatements of subsidiaries at 31
December 2011;
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- Annex 4 and 5: Summary figures of the most receafiyproved financial statements of
subsidiaries.
The main accounting policies adopted are unchafrged those used for the previous year, and are

detailed below.

The separate financial statements are preparedjoing concern basis. The Company believes that
even in the presence of a difficult economic amdvicial situation, significant uncertainties do not
exist (as defined by paragraphs 25 and 26 of IA&sljo the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, also given both the profitabilitytloak of the Company and the Group and of its

financial position.

Financial statements schedules

The Income Statementis presented by nature, highlighting interim ofiataresults and pre-tax

results, and, in order to allow a better measur@rdfnary operating management performance.

Furthermore, cost and revenue components derivioigp fevents or transactions which, by their

nature or size, are considered non-recurring, lare separately identified in the financial statetaen

and the notes. These transactions also fall unker definition of non-recurring events and

transactions as per Consob Communication No. 654228 July 2006.

The economic effect of discontinued operationshigwa in a single line of the income statement

entitled “Profit/loss from discontinued operationsider IFRS 5.

Thestatement of comprehensive incomalso reflects thechanges arising from transactions with

non-owner% separately showing the relevant tax effectst thra

- profit and loss that could be directly recognizedequity (for instance, actuarial losses),

- the effects of the measurement of derivativerimsents hedging future cash flows,

- the effects of the measurement of availablestde financial assets,

- the effects arising from any change in accoungiolicies.

Thestatement of financial position presents separately assets and liabilities brdkem into
current and non-current, indicating, on two sepaliats, “Assets intended for sale” and
“Liabilities associated with discontinued operatigrin accordance with IFRS 5.
Specifically, an asset or a liability is classifigsl current when it satisfies one of the
following criteria:

- it is expected to be realized or settled or ieXxpected to be sold or utilized in the normal
operating cycle of the company;

- it is held principally to be traded;

- it is expected to be realized or settled withithmionths of the reporting date.

Otherwise, the asset or liability is classifiechas-current.
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The Statement of cash flowshas been prepared applying the indirect methodhich operating
performance is adjusted to reflect transactionsaafion-monetary nature, for whatever
deferral or accrual of previous or future operatiageipts or payments and for revenue or
cost components connected to cash flows arisingn fiavesting or financiary activities.
Income and expense relating to medium or long-temancial operations and those relating
to hedging instruments and dividends paid are deduin financing activities.

Thestatement of changes in equitghows the variations in equity relating to:

- allocation of profit for the year;

- amounts relating to transactions with ownersdcpase and sale of treasury shares);

and separately income and expense definédhasges arising from transactions with non-owners”

also shown in the statement of comprehensive income

For each significant item detailed in the above-tiomed schedules, reference is made to the

following notes in which relevant information isoprded, with details also on composition and

variations on the previous year.

Furthermore, in order to comply with Consob ResgoiutNo. 15519 of 27 July 2006 relating to

financial statements schedules, specific additistetement of comprehensive income and statement

of financial position have been prepared, showirggemal balances or related party transactions

separately for each item.

Revenue and cost recognition

Revenue and cost and income and expense are reedgm an accruals basis, specifically:

* Revenue is recognized on the probability with whible company will enjoy the economic
benefits and in the extent to which the amount lwameliably determined. Revenue is stated net of
any adjustments.

* Advertising revenue is recognized at the momentatheertisement is broadcast or published or
provision of services offered.

e Cost is recognized using the same criteria formagaecognition and on an accruals basis.

* Interest income and expense payable are recogaimbdn an accruals basis.

« Dividends are recognized only as from when theedf@ders’ right to the dividend payment has
been established, and only when resulting fromdditpaistribution following the acquisition of the
investment; in the case, however, of a profit distion prior to the acquisition of their relevant
shares, such dividends are treated as a reduntibe icost of the relevant investment.

« The recharges of costs incurred on behalf of thindies are recognized as a reduction in the cost

to which they relate.
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Taxes

Taxes for the year correspond to the sum of cuardtdeferred taxes.

Current taxes are based upon taxable income foydhe Taxable income differs from the results
shown in the income statement because it excluogiye and negative items that will be taxable or
deductible in other periods and because it excltadefree or tax deductible items.

Cairo Communication and its subsidiaries Cairo d&ditS.p.A., Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A., Diellesei
S.r.l. in liquidation, Cairo Due S.r.I. and Cairalfishing S.r.I. have adhered to the national tax
consolidation scheme of UT Communications S.p.Aspant to art.117/129 of the Consolidated
Income Tax Act (TUIR).

The consolidation scheme, which regulates econ@gjects pertaining to the sums deposited or
calculated against the advantages or disadvantagsing from the national tax consolidation
scheme, also allows for any increased costs oredeed benefits incurred by the Companies, by
adhering to this procedure, to be repaid by themdd. T. Communications S.p.A.

UT Communications S.p.A. acts as the tax parentdatermines a single taxable base for the group
of companies that adheres to the national tax d¢olasion scheme, which thereby benefits from the
ability of offsetting taxable profits against tay@abosses in one tax return.

Each company that adheres to the national tax ddaon scheme transfers its taxable profit and
loss to the tax parent. For any such taxable prefiorted by a subsidiary, UT Communications
S.p.A. recognize a receivable equal to the IRESapley Conversely, for any such taxable loss,
reported by a subsidiary, UT Communications reczgai payable equal to IRES due on the loss that
has been contractually transferred at Group level.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized dll taxable temporary differences, while defdrre
tax assets are recognized to the extent of theapiiitly that there will be future taxable profitdigh

will allow for the utilization of the deductiblergporary differences. Deferred taxes are calculated
the basis of the tax rates that are foreseen wilhiforce at the moment of realization of the tisse
settlement of the liability, based on tax legiglatin force at the reporting date. Where relevidm,
effects of any changes in tax rate or tax legishatifter the reporting date are disclosed in thesio
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reportetheit net value when there is a legal right teeff

current tax liabilities and assets and when thedaglate to the same taxation authority.

Post-employment benefits

For ltalian companies with at least 50 employeast-pmployment benefits take the form of a

defined benefit plan, solely for the amounts acdrpeor to 1 January 2007 (and not yet paid at the
reporting date), whereas subsequent to such diegte are recognized as a defined contribution plan.
For Italian companies with less than 50 employgest-employment benefits are considered as a

defined benefit plan. All defined benefit plans discounted.
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The Company has less than 50 employees. Only arfamagers have opted for the Mario Negri
Fund.

Non-current assets

Intangible assets

Costs, including accessory costs incurred for tgusition of resources with no physical substance
are recognized among intangible assets when the isoquantifiable and the asset is clearly

identifiable and controlled by the Company, and mehime use of the asset will generate probable
future benefits.

These are valued at their acquisition or productiost, including related costs — to the extent to
which they are considered to have a finite lifend @hey are amortized to reflect their remaining

useful economic lives.

The amortization periods of intangible assets oious types are as follows:

Concessions, licenses, trademarks From 3 to 5 years

and similar rights

Software From 3 to 5 years

The remaining useful life and the amortizationesiéd applied are reviewed on a regular basis and
where change is deemed necessary, the amortizaditen is restated in accordance with the

“prospective” method.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are recognidesh their cost can be reliably determined and
when related future economic benefits can be edjbyethe Company.

They are recognized at acquisition price or praduactost, including directly associated expenses
and costs, plus the share of indirect costs whachreasonably attributed to the asset.

These assets are systematically depreciated taighs-line basis each year at rates consistettt wi

the economic and technical useful life of the ad3epreciation rates applied are as follows:

Property 3%

General equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%-25%
Plant and machinery 10%
Office equipment and furniture 10%-12%
Electronic equipment 20%
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The above PPE depreciation rates are reduced bydb@ivtg their first year of use, this percentage
representing the weighted average of the entryséoai new assets, on an annual basis. Depreciation
begins when the asset is ready for use.

The remaining useful lives and the depreciatiotedd applied are reviewed on a regular basis and
where change is deemed necessary, the depreciatenis restated in accordance with the
“prospective” method.

The remaining useful lives of assets are reviewsatually and if incremental maintenance or other
work has been carried out which changes the renminseful life of the investment, these are
adjusted accordingly.

Incremental maintenance and other costs producirgigaificant and tangible increase in the
productive capacity or security of assets, or leaging its remaining useful life, are capitalizedi a
recognized as an increase in the carrying amoutiteossets. Ordinary maintenance costs are taken
directly to profit and loss.

Leasehold improvements are recognized as PPE,eohasis of the cost incurred. The depreciation

period corresponds to the lower of the remainirgfuldife of the asset and the term of the contract

Impairment of assets

At least once a year, the company reviews the myatwlity of the carrying amount of its intangible
assets with an indefinite useful life, and of itgdstments and whenever there are potential iraticat
of an impairment loss on PPE and intangible assitsa finite useful life, in order to determine
whether such assets may have suffered an impairimesnt When such indications are present, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to reflambverable amount. The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair value less castsetl, and its value in use. The fair value ofstet]
investment is determined according to its markitepin the absence of market values, or when the
market value is not considered to represent thecede value of the investment, estimates and
valuation methods are applied based on data whichany case evident on the market.

To determine an asset’s value in use, the Compaltylates the present value of future estimated
cash flows, inclusive of tax, by applying a pre-@izcount rate which reflects the current market
valuation of the time value of money and the spedsks inherent to the asset.

Excluding goodwill, when the impairment loss of asset no longer applies or is reduced, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased up to¢heestimated recoverable amount, which may not

exceed the amount which would have been deternfiaddo impairment loss been recognized.

Investments

Subsidiaries and associates

Investments in subsidiaries and associates aregmexaml at purchase or subscription cost and

adjusted for any impairment loss.
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Any excess in value between the purchase prideedirne of acquisition and the company’s share of
equity at current values is therefore includechim ¢arrying amount of the investment.

Investments in subsidiaries and associates areduigj impairment testing at least once a year, or
more frequently if deemed necessary. Whenever tigerevidence that such investments have
incurred an impairment loss, the impairment losseasognized in profit and loss. Should the

company’s share of losses in an investment exdeeddrrying amount of the investment, and the
company is obliged to reflect those losses, thaeval the investment is written off and the shdre o

any such losses is shown as a provision in ligslitWhenever an impairment loss is reduced or

cease to exist, the loss is reversed up to thénatigarrying amount through profit and loss.

Other investments (available for sale)
Other investments are measured at fair value &t ysar end.
With respect to measurement of available-for-salgets, the directors have chosen as impairment

indicators for the decline in fair value below cosbver 50%, or for a period exceeding 24 months.

Receivables from subsidiaries and associates
Non-interest bearing loans granted to subsidiasied associates are recognized as non-current

financial assets.

Current assets and liabilities

Receivables

Trade and other current assets are recognizeéiatgtimated realizable value.

Financial assets

They are recognized and derecognized on the ba#eio trading date. They are initially measured
at cost, including all direct expenses associated their acquisition. At the subsequent reporting
dates, the financial assets that the Company leaisitdntion and the ability to hold to maturity ighe
to-maturity investments) are recognized at amattizest, net of any impairment losses.
Investments other then those held to maturity &assified as held for trading or available for sale
and are measured at the end of each reportingdperitneir fair value. When financial assets ald he
for trading, gains and losses arising from faiugathanges are recognized in profit and loss.dn th
case of available-for-sale financial assets, gainlosses arising from fair value changes arentake
directly to equity until they are sold or are inmaal. In this case the gains or losses previouglsma
to equity are recognized to profit and loss.

Valuations are regularly carried out to check whetkthere is any objective evidence that an

investment, whether taken individually or as a groof investments, may have suffered an
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impairment loss. In the existence of such evidemopairment losses are recognized in profit and

loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
This item comprises cash, bank current accountslapdsits on demand, and other short-term highly
liquid financial investments which are easily comide to cash and not subject to the risk of

significant value changes.

Borrowings, bank loans and overdrafts
Borrowings, interest-bearing bank loans and bandrdrafts are recognized based on the amount
cashed net of transaction costs, and subsequemisured at amortized cost using the current

interest rate method.

Trade payables

These are recognized at their nominal amount.

Provisions for risks and charges

Provisions for risks and charges are recognizednwhe company has a legal or constructive
obligation resulting from a past event and for vihi probability exists for the fulfillment of that
obligation. The provisions reflect the best estanbased on information currently available to the
Directors of the costs required to fulfill the aation at the reporting date, and are discounteghwh

the effect is significant.

Treasury shares
Treasury shares are recognised as a reductiogquityeThe effects of any subsequent transactions

are also recognized directly in equity.

Dividends paid
Dividends payable are recorded as a movement iitye@quthe year they are approved by the

Shareholders’ Meeting or by the Board of Direciarthe event of interim dividend.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements anchtites thereto, in application of the IFRS, reciire
that the Company carry out certain estimates asdnagtions which affect the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities and disclosures about ass®tscontingent liabilities at the reporting date.
Estimates and assumptions used are based on exqeedad on other factors considered significant.

Actual results could differ from these estimatestirBates mainly relate to provisions for risks
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relating to receivables, investment measuremergredetion, amortization, impairment of assets,
taxation, provisions for risks and charges, andingant liabilities.

Estimates and assumptions are reviewed regulartly the effects of each variation therein are
recognized in profit and loss in the period in white estimate was revised. The effects of such
revisions are reflected in the periods on whicly thave effect, i.e. both in the current period, and
future periods, if relevant.

In this context the uncertainty factors in the staoxd medium economic term, which make it hard to
predict a return to normal market conditions, hbag to the need to make assumptions regarding
future performance which are influenced by sigaific uncertainty, and the possibility of achieving
results different from those estimated cannot baduebed for the next year, which could therefore
require adjustments to the carrying amount, evgnifgtant, although these are obviously neither
currently quantifiable nor foreseeable.

The items most susceptible to these uncertainteshe allowance for impairment, inventory write-
downs, non-current assets (intangible assets, gyop#ant and equipment and investments), post-
employment benefits and deferred tax assets.

A summary follows of all critical measurement preses used and key assumptions made by
Management regarding the future in the procesgpliyang accounting policies and that could have a
significant effect on the amount recognized in to@solidated financial statements and for which
there is a risk that significant adjustments to¢hgying amount of assets and liabilities couldear

in the next period.

Allowance for impairment

The allowance for impairment reflects Managemeassmate regarding the losses on portfolio of
receivables from end customers. The allowance tisnated based on the losses expected by the
Company, based upon past experience for similaivable, current and past due dates, losses and
receipts arising from the careful monitoring of eeables management and from projections on
market and economic conditions. The persisting dacey factors in the short and medium
economic term, along with the resulting credit ®p#e could result in a further deterioration of the
financial conditions of Company debtors comparedht® deterioration already considered in the

quantification of the recognized allowance for ifnpeent.
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Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recorded to the extentiohwt is considered probable that future taxable
income will be generated to allow the utilizatiohdifferent deductible temporary differences. The
realizable value of deferred tax assets is peradigiceviewed according to the future taxable ineom

foreseen in the Company's most recent plans.

Recoverable amount of non-current assets

Non-current assets include investments, propelnt @nd equipment, intangible assets, deferred tax
assets and other financial assets. Managementdpedly reviews the carrying amount of the non-
current assets held and used, and those of assdtgon sale, as and when circumstances require
such revision. This is performed using the estichatesh flows expected from the use or sale of the
asset and suitable discount rates to calculatepreslue. In the absence of market values or ghoul
the Stock Market price not be considered repretieataf the real value of the investment, estimates
and valuation models are used based on data aeatlatihe market. When the carrying amount of a
non-current asset has suffered an impairment fbesCompany recognizes an impairment loss equal
to the positive difference between the greatehefdarrying amount of the asset and its recoverable
amount from its use or sale, as determined acagtdithe Company’s most recent plans.

For the preparation of the financial statements3htDecember 2011, and in particular in the
performance of impairment tests on intangible assets and property, plant and equipment, the
different sectors of the Cairo Communication Grdwgve taken into account the expected 2012
performance, whose assumptions and results armeeinwith that disclosed in the section avénts
after the reporting period” In addition, for the subsequent years of the pfetessary adjustments
have been cautiously made to take account of tee dearket changes resulting from the current
economic and financial crisis. No significant immpaént was required based on such figures in the

plan.

Provisions for risks and charges

The provisions for risks and charges relating totiogent liabilities of a legal or fiscal naturesar
made on the basis of estimates made by the Diseaborthe basis of valuations made by the
Company'’s legal counsels and fiscal advisors orptbbable charge that can be reasonably expected

to fulfill the obligation.
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Risk management

The main fiscal, legal and financial risks to whichiro Communication S.p.A. is exposed, as well
as the policies put in place by Management for timreinagement are explained in notes 28 and 30.

Reference is made to the Directors’ Report regardperational and business risks.

Accounting standards, amendments and interpretatios applied from 1 January 2011

The following accounting standards, amendmentsraedpretations were applied for the first time
by Cairo Communication starting from 1 January2201
On 4 November 2009, the IASB issued a revised omrsif IAS 24 —Related party
disclosures which simplifies disclosure requirements for gactions with government
related entities and clarifies the definition ofated parties Specifically, the definition of
related parties also includes companies contrdifegbarties on which the reporting entity
exercises, either directly or indirectly, signifitanfluence. It also removes the asymmetry of
disclosures in the financial statements of relgtadies, makes equal the position of persons
and companies for the purposes of determining e@lgtarty relationships and requires
disclosure also on commitments received and grattelated parties. The amendments
introduced with the revision are applicable frormaa periods beginning on or after 1
January 2011. The adoption of the amendment praduceffect in terms of measurement of
financial statements items and/or on the disclosfinelated party transactions provided in
the separate financial statements at 31 Decentlidr. 2
On 6 May 2010, the IASB issued a series of impraams to the IFRS applicable as from 1
January 2011; the following are those indicatedAfyB as variations involving changes in
the presentation, recognition and measuremennahdial statements items, omitting those
that will involve mere changes in terminology oritedal changes with a minimum
accounting effect, or those that affect standamd@terpretations that are not applied by
Cairo Communication:
IFRS 7 -Financial instruments: disclosureshe improvement emphasizes interaction
between qualitative and quantitative disclosuregired by the standard regarding the
nature and extent of risks arising from financra@tiuments. This should help users of
financial statements to evaluate an entity’s expoga risks to financial instruments.
Disclosure has been deleted for financial assedsdage which have been renegotiated or
impaired and for information regarding the fairuabf collateral.
IAS 1 - Presentation of financial statementhe improvement requires an entity to
provide a reconciliation of changes in each compobra equity in the notes to the

financial statements or in the financial statements
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The following amendments, improvements and intégbiens, effective as from 1 January 2011,

govern circumstances that are alien to the Caimmr@onication Group at the date of the separate

financial statements, but could have accountingotsfon future transactions or agreements:

- Amendment to IAS 32 Financial instruments: Presentatioasued on 8 October 2009 and
applicable retrospectively as from 1 January 2011;

- IFRIC 14 —Prepayments of a minimum funding requiremésued on 26 November 2009
and applicable as from 1 January 2011,

- IFRIC 19 - Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity itrements issued on 26
November 2009 and applicable as from 1 January;2011

- Amendment to IFRS 1 and IFRS Financial Instruments: additional disclosutdsimited
exemption from comparative IFRS 7 disclosure fatfiime adopters, amendments to IFRS
1land IFRS 7.

Accounting standards, amendments and interpretatiog yet to apply and not adopted early by

Cairo Communication
On 7 October 2010, the IASB issued several amenthmen IFRS 7 —Financial instruments:

improved disclosuresto be applied for annual periods starting fromafter 1 July 2011. The
amendments were issued to improve the understamafingansfers of financial assets and the
possible effects arising from risks associated whth continuing involvement of the entity that has
transferred such assets. The amendments requirefunformation in the event a disproportionate
amount of transfer transactions is undertaken ard@ end of the year.
Moreover, at the date of these separate finantaémmentsthe relevant EU bodies have yet to
complete the endorsement process for applicatidheohmendments and standards listed kelow
On 12 November 2009, the IASB issued IFRS Birancial instruments: recognition and
measurement of financial asseigplicable as from 1 January 2013, amended onc28o@er
2010. The publication is the opening part of a psscthat aims to overhaul IAS 39. The new
standard uses a single approach and is based onahowmpany manages its financial
instruments and the contractual cash flows of theantial assets to determine the
measurement methodology replacing IAS 39. For fir@nliabilities, instead, the main
change made regards accounting of fair value clsaofe financial liability designated as
financial liability measured at fair value througinofit and loss, in the event these are
attributable to changes in the credit risk of tlability. Based on this new standard, changes
must be presented in other comprehensive incomegmehses and no longer in the income
statement.
On 20 December 2010, the IASB issued:
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- a narrow amendment to IFRS 1Fist-time adoption ofinternational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSD cancel reference to the date of 1 January 2004
contained and described as the date of transitidfRS, and to provide guidance on
the presentation of the financial statements inpl@amce with IFRS following a
period of severe hyperinflation. These amendmeiitdw applicable as from 1 July
2011,

- a narrow amendment to IAS 12lrcome taxaddressing the issue of measuring
deferred tax as arising from continuing operatialepending on whether the
company expects to recover the carrying amourti@asset through use or sale. As a
result of the amendment, SIC-21Ilrcome taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-
Depreciable Assetwill no longer be applicable. The amendment is iapple as
from 1 January 2012.

On 12 May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 1Censolidated Financial Statementghich will

replace SIC 12 €onsolidation - Special Purpose Entitiasd parts of IAS 27 Consolidated

and Separate Financial Statementghich will be renamed&eparate Financial Statements
and will regulate the accounting treatment of gguitvestments in separate financial
statements. The new standard builds on existingdatas, identifying the concept of control
as the decisive factor for the purposes of conatiid of a company in the consolidated
financial statements of the parent. It also provideidance to determine the existence of

control when this is difficult to ascertain. Tharstlard is retrospectively applicable as from 1

January 2013.

On 12 May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 1loint Arrangementswhich will replace 1AS 31

— Interests in Joint Ventureand SIC 13 —Jointly Controlled Entities— Non-Monetary

Contributions by VenturersThe new standard provides criteria for the idiatiion of joint

arrangements based on the rights and obligatiosim@ifrom such arrangements rather than

on their legal form, and establishes the equityhaetas the sole method of accounting for
joint ventures in consolidated financial statememtse standard is retrospectively applicable
as from 1 January 2013. Following issue of thedsesh IAS 28 -Investments in Associates
has been amended to comprise, within its scopeication, from the date it comes into
effect, also investments in joint ventures.

On 12 May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 1Disclosure of Interests in Other Entitjes new

standard which specifically envisages the disclsarbe provided on all types of interests,

including those in subsidiaries, joint arrangemeassociates, special purpose entities and
other unconsolidated special purpose vehicles. staiedard is retrospectively applicable as

from 1 January 2013.
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On 12 May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 18&air Value Measurementwhich clarifies how

to calculate fair value for the purposes of finahoeporting and is applicable to all IFRS that
require or allow fair value measurement or disalesitbased on fair value. The standard is
prospectively applicable as from 1 January 2013.

On 16 June 2011, the IASB issued an amendment $% I1A-Presentation of Financial
Statementsequiring entities to group items presented in Q@her Comprehensive Income)
based on whether they are potentially re-classdianbsequently to profit and loss. The
amendment is applicable to annual periods beginmingr after 1 July 2012.

On 16 June 2011, the IASB issued an amendment $ 18 —Employee Benefitthat
eliminates the option of deferring recognition cotuarial gains and losses via the corridor
approach, requiring presentation, in the statemgfimancial position, of the fund’s deficit or
surplus and recognition in the profit and loss astccomponents relating to service and net
financial expense, and recognition of actuarialngaand losses stemming from re-
measurement of liabilities and assets among otbempoehensive income (expense). In
addition, the return on assets included in netfoiedl expense must be calculated on the basis
of the discount rate for liabilities and no longer the basis of the rate of return expected for
assets. Lastly the amendment introduces new dig@ssto be provided in the notes to
financial statements. The amendment is retrospeygtiapplicable to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

On 16 December 2011, the IASB issued amendmenk&8S3032 —Financial Instruments:
Presentationto clarify the application of certain criteriar foffsetting financial assets against
financial liabilities included in IAS 32. The amendnts are retrospectively applicable to
annual periods beginning on or after 1° January201

On 16 December 2011, the IASB issued amendmentiSR8 7 —Financial Instruments:
Disclosures The amendment requires disclosures about theteffie potential effect of
offsetting of financial assets against financiabllities on an entity’s financial position. The
amendments are applicable to the annual periodariag on or after 1 January 2013 and to

interim periods following such date. Disclosuréase provided retrospectively.

The following amendments and interpretations, nett gpplicable are deemed irrelevant for the

Company as they govern circumstances that do petaaat the reporting date:
IFRIC 20 -Stripping costs in the production phase of a swefatne.
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NOTES TO THE INCOME STATEMENT

1. Revenue
Revenue was Euro 140,487 thousand (Euro 137,47%sanol in 2010). Its composition, versus
2010, is shown below:

Revenue 2011 2010

(€ thousands)

Print media advertising space sales 39 45
Cairo Pubblicita TV sub-concession 134,867 104,63¢
Cairo Pubblicita print media sub-concession 1,023 28,381
Cairo Pubblicita Web sub-concession 956 819
Group services 3,502 3,502
Other revenue from associates 100 87
Gross revenue 140,487 137,472

Revenue is realized exclusively in Italy and anlysia by geographical area is pointless.

In 2011, Cairo Communication continued to operateh® TV advertising sales market (LA7, LA7d
and theme channels Cartoon Network, Boomerang, GNN) and on the Internet through its
subsidiary Cairo Pubblicita, which operates on larsncession basis, invoicing advertising spaces
directly to its clients and returning to the subsgor Cairo Communication a share of revenue
generated by resources managed on a sub-concessisn

Starting from January 2011, Cairo Pubblicita hateren directly with Cairo Editore into an
exclusive advertising concession contract on itslipations. Until December 2010, print media

advertising sales had been governed by a sub-cainnesgreement.

The drop in revenue of Cairo Communication fromnprinedia is attributable to this new
contractual framework, which was however more tladiiset by the surge in TV advertising
revenue, as illustrated in the Directors’ Report.

Specifically, advertising revenue on LA7, amountingapproximately Euro 167.5 million, was up
32.5% on 2010 and greatly exceeded the minimummes 12-month contractual target (Euro 120
million), and the additional revenue target relaiedhe share increase of the channel achieved by
TIMedia with respect to the 3% share.

In 2011, operating revenue included the sub-commestees billed to the subsidiary Cairo
Pubblicita S.p.A.:
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- for TV advertising sales, amounting to Euro 134,8&sand,

- print media advertising sales, on “Prima Comunigaal and “Uomini e comunicazione” of
Editoriale Genesis Srl, amounting to Euro 1,023ifamd,

- Internet advertising sales, amounting to Euro $6isand.

Apart from providing advertising services, Cairo n@ounication also provides services in

administration, auditing, financial analysis, det@nagement and collection and marketing, to other

Group companies. Such services are subject toamiatwhich are revised annually. Sales to Group

companies deriving from these activities duringythar were as follows:

Group services 2011 2010
(€ thousands)

Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. 3,000 3,000
Il Trovatore S.r.l. 22 22
Cairo Editore S.p.A. 480 480
Total 3,502 3,502

Other revenue from associates (Euro 100 thousaeid)erto administrative services provided to
Torino FC S.p.A., arelated party in that it israhtely controlled by UT Communications S.p.A.

2. Other revenue and income and non-recurring incomefrom Cairo-Telepiu

arbitration

Other revenue and income

Other revenue and income were Euro 261 thousamd 28 thousand in 2010) and can be

analyzed as follows

Other revenue and income 2011 2010

(€ thousands)

Other revenue 115 1
Prior year income 146 527
Total 261 528

Non-recurring income from Cairo-Telepiu arbitration

In the schedules of the income statement of 20t@nie arising from the Cairo-Telepiu arbitration
pending from 2004 between Cairo and Telepiu, aniogrio Euro 9,944 thousand, had been shown
separately owing to its non-recurring nature, lastitated in the 2010 annual financial report.
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3. _Services, use of third party assets and otheperating costs
Costs for services were Euro 126,176 thousand (E@8588 thousand in 2010). Such costs are

detailed as follows versus 2010:

Services 2011 2010

(€ thousands)

Publishers’ fees 1,053 27,440
TV publishing fees 120,401 97,158
Web publishing fees 847 747
Consultancies and collaborations 541 697
Cairo Communication Board of Directors’ fees 1,556 1,057
Cairo Communication Board of Satutory Auditors’ fees 58 58
Other administration and general expenses 1,720 1,431
Total 126,176 128,588

The decrease in “Publishers’ fees” is ascribabl¢hto new contractual framework under which,
starting from January 2011, Cairo Pubblicita haterel directly with Cairo Editore into an
exclusive advertising concession contract on itblipations, instead of operating under a sub-
concession agreement as previously.

“TV publishing fees” in 2011 increased paralletite growth in TV advertising revenue.

Use of third party assets amounted to Euro 638stod (Euro 628 thousand in 2010) and refer
mainly to lease payments for property and oféigaipment.

Other operating costs amounted to Euro 310 thaeugaaro 256 thousand in 2010) and refer to
prior year expense of Euro 267 thousand and attets of Euro 43 thousand.

4. Personnel expense

This item can be analyzed as follows:

Personnel expense 2011 2010

(€ thousands)

Wages and salaries 1,945 1,728
Social security contributions 721 648
Other expense 3 2

Post-employment benefits 104 91
Total 2,773 2,469
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5. Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impairment losses

These can be analyzed as follows:

o L - : . 2011 2010
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impairment losses
(€ thousands)
Amortization of intangible assets 80 93
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 138 129
Total 218 222

6. Net financial income
Net financial income amounts to Euro 952 thousdfurq 236 thousand in 2010) and is broken

down as follows:

Net financial income 2011 2010
(€ thousands)

Interest income on bank accounts 1,007 287
Interest income from Cairo Editore - 16
Interest income from Cairo Publishing 3 2
Other 26 8
Total financial income 1,036 313
Interest expense and other financial expense (84) (77)
Total financial expense (84) (77)
Net financial income 952 236

The variation in financial income is mainly duette variation in interest rates on 2010 (1.19%
average 1-month Euribor in 2011 on 0.57% in 20i®Yhe increase in positive spreads granted by
banks from reference interest rates, given als@to@aomic climate particularly in the last quaér
the year, and to the increase in the average matdial position.

* %

7. Income from/(losses) on investments

This item mainly includes:

- dividends received during the year from the subsiels Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. (Euro 2,273
thousand) and Cairo Editore S.p.A. (Euro 10,166¢had).
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Euro 765 thousand, for the impairment loss on iivestment in Dmail Group, as illustrated
in Note 12.

At 31 December 2010, the item mainly included divids received from the subsidiaries Cairo
Pubblicita S.p.A. (Euro 713 thousand) and CairddtdiS.p.A. (Euro 6,751 thousand).

* *

8. Income tax

Income tax for the year amounted to Euro 3,990gh0d. In accordance with IFRS the deferred tax
assets, relating mainly to the accrual of provisiavhose fiscal deductibility is deferred, were

recognised.

Tax 2011 2010
(€ thousands)

Current tax

Ires 3,326 4,405
Irap 565 734
Deferred tax assets 99 377
Total 3,990 5,516

The reconciliation of the effective and theordtiea charge can be analyzed as follows:

2011 2010
23,258 23,415
Pre-tax profit
6,396 6,439
Theoretical income tax charge (27.5%)
(3,250) (1,950)
Tax effect of dividends received
279 293
Tax effect of other permanent differences
565 734
Irap
3,990 5,516

Income tax for the year

For a clearer understanding of the reconciliabbreffective and theoretical tax charge, IRAP has
not been taken into account as this is not basegrertax profit, and this would generate a

distorting effect between one year and the othberdfore, the theoretical income tax charge has
been calculated using the IRES rate in force dd@&ember 2011, equal to 27.5%.
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As the chart shows, the lower income tax in 201asisribable to the sharp increase in dividends
received (Euro 12.4 million versus Euro 7.5 million2010), 5% of which are subject to income
tax.

* o
9. Loss from discontinued operations
This includes the allocation of Euro 10 thousanttlie loss of the year incurred by the subsidiary

Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidation.

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

10. Property, plant and equipment

As at 31 December 2011, this item amounted to Bdfthousand, increasing by Euro 25 thousand
on 31 December 2010. Movements can be broken dsviollows:

Historical Revalua- Accumulated Carrying Net change Carrying
cost tion depreciation amount amount
31/12/2010 31/12/2011
Motor vehicles 343 0 (287) 56 85 141
Plant (various) 67 0 (67) 0 0 0
Furniture and fittings 337 0 (176) 161 (12) 149
Communication
equipment 70 0 (62) 8 3) 5
Electronic office 947 0 (837) 110 (38) 72
equipment
Equipment (various) 124 0 (120) 4 (2) 3
Mobile phones 19 0 (15) 4 1 5
Leasehold 192 0 (184) 8 (8) 0
improvements
Total other assets 2,099 0 (1,748) 351 25 376

The net change in the year is broken down asvistlo
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Additions Disposals Depreciation Net change
Motor vehicles 157 (28) (44) 85
Plant (various) 0 0 0 0
Furniture and fittings 0 0 (12) (12)
Communication equipment 4 (7) (3)
Electronic office equipment 26 (64) (38)
Equipment (various) 0 0 Q) (2)
Mobile phones 3 0 2) 1
Leasehold improvements 0 0 (8) (8)
Total 190 (28) (138) 25

Property, plant and equipment have not been sutgj@evaluation.
The item also includes leasehold improvementseségted over the term of the lease.

* *

11. Intangible assets
As at 31 December 2011, intangible assets amouat&diro 124 thousand, decreasing by Euro 28
thousand on 31 December 2010. Movements in intémgissets during the year are as follows:

(€ thousands) Historical ~ Accumulated Carrying Net change Net value as at
cost depreciation amount 31/12/2011
at 31/12/2010

Software programs 2,320 (2,184) 136 (26) 110
Total concessions, licenses and 2,320 (2,184) 136 (26) 110
trademarks
Website design costs 169 (153) 16 (8) 8
Assets under development 0 0 0 6 6
Total other 169 (153) 16 2) 14
Total intangible assets 2,489 (2,337) 152 (28) 124

The net change in the year is broken down as fellow
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(€ thousands) Additions Disposals Amortization Net change

Software 46 0 (72) (26)
Total concessions, licenses and 46 0 (72) (26)
trademarks

Website design costs 0 0 (8) (8)
Assets under development 6 0 0 6
Total other 6 0 (8) 2)
Total intangible assets 52 0 (80) (28)

Website design costs include the residual amoumto(B thousand) on the costs billed in 2007 by
the subsidiary Il Trovatore.
Expenses incurred for procedures and softwareracetaed over 3 and 5 financial years.

* *

12. Investments

* Investments in subsidiaries, associates and otdmpanies

At 31 December 2011, investments amounted to EGr@69 thousand, decreasing by Euro 772
thousand on 31 December 2010.

(€ thousands) Carrying Reclassificatio ~ Effects of fair  Impairment ~ Carrying
amount at ns value losses amount at
31/12/2010 measurement 31/12/2011
Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidation 0 - - - 0
Cairo Sport S.r.l. 10 - - - 10
Cairo Due S.r.l. 132 - - - 132
Il Trovatore S.r.l. 357 - - - 357
Cairo Editore S.p.A. 6,273 - - - 6,273
Cairo Publishing S.r.l. 1,595 - - - 1,595
Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. 5,340 - - - 5,340
Total subsidiaries 13,707 - - - 13,707
Dmail Group S.p.A. 0 2,234 (8) (765) 1,462
Total associates 0 2,234 (8) (765) 1,462
Dmail Group S.p.A. 2,234 (2,234) - - -
Total other companies 2,234 (2,234) - - -
Total investments
15,941 - (8) (765) 15,169
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Subsidiaries

In 2011, the liquidation of the subsidiary Diellesentinued, which generated a loss of Euro 10
thousand. The net deficit of the company is cavdrg the provision for investment risks at 31
December 2011.

Annex 2 shows the information required by paragrelpbf art. 2427 of the ltalian Civil Code.
Information at 31 December 2011 is drawn from thaftdfinancial statements approved by the
Board of Directors of each direct and/or indiradbsidiary.

For more detailed information, a comparison betweamying amount and the amount derived
from the application of the equity method is praddor each investment in the following table

Equity Ownershi  Equity method (*) Carrying amount Difference
31/12/2011 (*) p% (a)
(b)
(a-b)
Cairo Editore S.p.A. 13,656 99.95% 23,636 6,273 17,363
Cairo Due S.r.l. 86 100% 86 132 (46)
Il Trovatore S.r.l. 28 80% 178 357 179)
Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. 8,679 100% 10,995 5,340 5,655
Diellesei S.r.l. in (151) 60% (151)
liquidation
Cairo Publishing S.r.l. 68 100% 68 1,595 (1,527)
Cairo Sport S.r.l. 10 100% 10 10

(*) Amount determined under IFRS

The carrying amount of the investments in Cairo Buedl., Il Trovatore S.r.l. and Cairo Publishing
S.r.l. are higher than the amount obtained ushey dquity method, respectively by Euro 46
thousand, Euro 179 thousand and Euro 1,527 thousand

The carrying amounts of investments have undergmpairment tests to measure any potential
indication of impairment of their realizable vadyes defined by value in use, that is, the present
value of their cash flow, estimated according ® élpected results of the investments based on the
most recent budgets and business plans. The ubkessf estimates is believed to support the carrying
amount ofthe investment.

The main assumptions for the calculation of vatuase are as follows:

. three-year budget period,
. a growth rate of 1% to extrapolate the cash floeygbd the current budget period,
. a weighted average cost of capital (wacc) of 10.88fisidered consistent with the

company'’s industry.

None of the above cases determined the need foetlognition of an impairment loss.
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The company prepares Group consolidated finarst@lements which, taking account of the
investments held, are an essential document torem®mplete understanding of the activities of
the Group and its investments.

Associate
In 2011, the investment held in the listed compBnyail Group S.p.A. (765,000 shares, or 10% of

the share capital) was reclassified from “investtsen other companies™ available for safg) to

“investments in associates”, with the resulting sueament using the equity method in the

consolidated financial statements, and at cost h@ separate financial statements of Cairo

Communication. The reasons for the reclassificatiere the following:

- on 8 April 2011, Cairo Communication had jointlybsuitted the lists of candidates with
another shareholder to renew the Board of Direcamd the Board of Statutory Auditors,
exercising, for the first time ever since holdihg investment (2005), the rights arising from
the list vote;

- submission of the lists, therefore exercise of sugiits, was consistent with the intention to
exercise greater influence in the management oh$seciate, whose new Board of Directors
is currently working on a long term business plakitk-start and develop business activities
and pursue greater operational efficiency.

At their meeting of 9 May 2011, the Shareholdershef Dmail Group appointed Fabio Tacciaria as

member of the Board of Directors, and Luca Bert&€hairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors,

both drawn from the minority lists jointly submittdoy Cairo Communication S.p.A. and Niteroi

S.r.l.

The date taken as reference for reclassificatios 8a@pril 2011 (date of submission of the lists),

with a carrying amount of Euro 2.91 per share @yerstock exchange price 1 January 2011 - 8

April 2011). “Fair value measurement effectsfers to theadjustment of the carrying amount of the

investment at 8 April 2011, with a balancing-enty Euro 8 thousand in the statement of

comprehensive income and equity.

At 31 December 2011, the stock exchange price was E.32 per share versus the carrying
amount of Euro 2.91 per share. The average stodkagge price in 2011 was approximately Euro
2.37 per share (Euro 2.72 the average price pe&e shdhe first half of the year). The share price
dropped mainly in the last quarter of 2011, a penfnce related also to the current market crisis.
Given the share’s performance and the equity metised in the consolidated financial statements
of Cairo Communication, an impairment test was cmtedd with the assistance of external
consultants, by separately measuring the diffeaetivities of Dmail Group. The methods used
were based on the discounting of expected resolisom current market multiples, drawing on
recent research carried out by independent proiesisi.
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The application of this method resulted in the geition, in 2011, of an impairment loss on the
investment in Dmail Group, to adjust “recoveradteount”, equivalent to Euro 765 thousand, with
a balancing-entry in profit and loss. The carryamgount at 31 December 2011 is Euro 1,462
thousand, which is in line with the equity meth@#d to measure the investment.

The main financial statements figures of Dmail @rodrawn from its interim financial statements
at 31 December 2011, gross of tax effects andudiay statement of financial position figures
other than the net financial position, from the smiidated financial statements at 31 December
2010 and from the consolidated interim report@tl@ne 2011, are summarized in the following

tables:
Income statement 12 months at31 6 months at 30 12 months at 31
December 2011 June 2011 December 2010
Revenue and other income 76,723 38,261 77,502
Gross operating profit from continuing operations 2,915 2,046 3,634
Net operating profit (loss) from continuing opeoats (280) 577 153
Pre-tax loss from continuing operations (2,338) (415) (1,174)
Loss from discontinued operations (3,830) (101) (1,675)
Pre-tax loss (6,169) (516) (4,488)
Profit (loss) for the year nd (744) (3,083)

As mentioned earlier, the company is currently wayko implement a new long term business plan

to kick-start and develop business and pursueearegerational efficiency.

Statement of financial position 30 June 31 December
2011 2010
Non-current assets 37,448 37,674
Current assets 9,682 5,758
Total assets 47,130 43,432
Non-current borrowings and provisions 6,635 6,444
Net financial position -continuing operations 27,397 27,039
Net financial position - discontinued operations (149) (4,143)
Equity attributable to the owners of the parent 12,091 12,821
Equity attributable to non controlling interest 1,156 1,271
Total equity and liabilities 47,130 43,432
Net financial position 31 December 30 June 31 December
2011 2011 2010
Net financial position - continuing operations (B11) (27,397) (27,039)
Net financial position - discontinued operations 101 149 4,143
Total equity and liabilities (30,961) (27,248) (22,896)

* % %
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13. Receivables from subsidiaries and other non-crgnt financial assets

Receivables from subsidiaries

The item refers to a non-interest bearing sharemdtwhn made to the subsidiary Cairo Due S.r.l.,
amounting to Euro 386 thousand (unchanged on &&mDkeer 2010).

Non-current financial assets

As at 31 December 2011, non-current financial assebainly guarantee deposits - amounted to
Euro 12 thousand (unchanged on 31 December 2010).

* % %
14. Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2011, deferred tax assets antbtmteéuro 806 thousand (Euro 905 thousand
at 31 December 2010). These assets can be analyZeliows:

31/12/11 31/12/10

Deferred tax assets Temporary  Tax effect Temporary Tax effect
(€ thousands) differences differences
Taxed allowance for impairment 2,190 602 2,681 737
Entertainment expenses deductible in future
years - - 1 1
Other temporary differences 736 204

606 167
Total deferred tax assets 2,926 806 3,288 905

Deferred tax assets relate to the recognitionlab8cember 2011, of deferred tax assets on the
temporary differences between the carrying amofireangnized assets and liabilities and their tax
values.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extegtdre considered recoverable depending on the
presence of future taxable income in which tempordifferences will be reversed. Management
periodically reviews the estimates underlying theoverability of these amounts.

15.Trade receivables

Trade receivables amounted to Euro 1,564 thousdedreasing by Euro 92 thousand on 31
December 2010. These are broken down as follows:
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Trade receivables 31/12/11 31/12/10 Change
(€ thousands)

Trade receivables 3,704 4,288 (584)
Allowance for impairment (2,140) (2,632) 492
Total trade receivables 1,564 1,656 (92)

Since 2009, Cairo Communication has operated oadRkertising sales market on a sub-concession
basis with the subsidiary Cairo Pubblicita, whickdices directly to its customers and returns a
share of the revenue to its parent. Current rebéggaarising from this activity accrue from the
subsidiary.

The ageing of trade receivables by due date islksifs:

31 December 2011 Current Pastdue Pastdue Past due Pastdue  Total
(€ thousands) between 30 between 61 between 91 more than

and 60 days and 90 days and 180 days 180 days
Trade receivables 131 - - 30 3,542 3,704
Allowance for impairment - - - - (2,140) (2,140)
Trade receivables 131 - - 30 1,403 1,564
31 December 2010 Current Pastdue Pastdue Past due Pastdue  Total
(€ thousands) between 30 between 61 between 91 more than

and 60 days and 90 days and 180 days 180 days
Trade receivables 129 0 0 272 3,887 4,288
Allowance for impairment - - - (23) (2,609) (2,632)
Trade receivables 129 0 0 249 1,278 1,656

Trade receivables are shown net of allowance rfgrairment that has been determined taking
account specific collection risks and takes inteoaint the allocation to the Company’s media
clients of a percentage of losses on receivabtpgldo the percentage of sales revenues allocated,
pursuant to advertising space sales contracts cidretween the two parties. Specifically,
receivables due more than 180 days are those vérmse when the Company used to operate
directly as an advertising agency. Since 2009, @idigg sales have been managed under a sub-
concession agreement with the subsidiary Cairo Rutab

16. Receivables from subsidiaries
They amounted to Euro 78,117 thousand, decreasiimro 7,473 thousand on 31 December
2010. Receivables from subsidiaries include:
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Receivables from subsidiaries 31/12/11 31/12/10

(€ thousands)

Cairo Due S.r.l. 58 58
Cairo Editore S.p.A. 712 2,893
Il Trovatore S.r.l. 311 285
Cairo Publishing S.r.l. 238 233
Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. 76,798 82,121
Total receivables from subsidiaries 78,117 85,590

Receivables from Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. (Euro 7Z,6housand at 31 December 2011) are mainly
receivables on the sub-concession contracts. T¢reake in these receivables is a result of the new
Group contractual framework for print media adwénty sales.

The other trade receivables from Cairo Pubblicifa/s, as receivables from Il Trovatore S.r.l. and
Cairo Due S.r.l. are mainly referable to centralizervices provided by Cairo Communication
S.p.A to Group companies. These services are gduitarough annual contracts renewable year by
year.

* *
17. Other receivables and other current assets
These amount to Euro 2,285 thousand, decreasirteuby 6,663 thousand on 31 December 2010,
and can be analyzed as follows:

Other receivables and other current assets 31/12/11 31/12/10 Change

(€ thousands)

VAT credit 1,097 0 1,097
IRAP advance payments 169 0 169
Receivables from others 814 8,613 (7,799)
Prepayments and accrued income 205 335 (130)
Total other receivables and other current 2,285 8,948 (6,663)
assets

Withholding and prepaid taxes are taken as a dieduétom the payment of taxes to relevant
authorities.

Receivables from other at 31 December 2010 alsloded Euro 7.5 million, the credit balance
from Telepiu arising from the arbitration awardNiote 2, which Telepiu argued it was entitled to
offset against the restricted deposit illustratedhie 2010 report, which Cairo Communication had
challenged in court.
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In August 2011, the Court of Milan ruled againgt ttiaim filed by Cairo Communication S.p.A.,
and in favour of Telepiu’s right to offset, up teetrelevant amount, its liability arising from the
arbitration award issued on 27 January 2011 agdimseamount held in the restricted deposit.

In the separate financial statements at 31 DecegiliEl, the foregoing receivable was therefore
offset (i) against amount payable to Telepiu (6iBian Euro) recorded in “trade payables” (arising
from invoices issued by Telepiu following the cinestances that led to the termination of the
concession contract) and (ii) against “other litib8” referring to the deferred interest accrued
(Euro 557 thousand) on the foregoing term depadid with Telepit SpA. The variation in trade
and other liabilities is, therefore, partly dughis offsetting.

The outcome had no consequence on the asset amdifihposition as at 31 December 2011, with
the exception of the legal expenses paid, whiclewerorded in the income statement.

Accrued income and prepaid expenses amounted  H thousand, decreasing by Euro 130
thousand versus 31 December 2010.

18. Securities and other current fiancial assets
At 31 December 2010, the item included Euro 79 shod referring to the current financial assets

disposed of during the year.

19. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents amounted to Euro 3714t6and, increasing by Euro 4,813 thousand on
2010. The item can be analyzed as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents 31/12/11 31/12/10 Change

(€ thousands)

Bank and postal accounts 37,470 32,660 4,810
Cash and cash equivalents 6 3 3
Total 37,476 32,663 4,813

Cash management continues to be managed prudently.

The net financial position of Cairo Communication S.p.A. at 31 December 2@bpared with
that at 31 December 2010, can be summarized asvill

(€ thousands) 31/12/2011 31/12/2010 Change
Cash and cash equivalents 37,476 32,663 4,813
Current financial assets - 79 (79)
Total 37,476 32,742 4,734
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In the 2010 statement of cash flows, “net finalhcaad cash equivalents” did not include current
financial assets of Euro 79 thousand.

20. Equity

Equity as at 31 December 2011 was Euro 60,342 #maljslecreasing by Euro 10,639 thousand on
31 December 2010, for the distribution of divideraggproved by the Shareholders (Euro 19,393
thousand), the distribution of an interim dividefudt 2011 approved by the Board of Directors
(Euro 11,696 thousand), the profit for the yearur(E19,258 thousand), the disposal of treasury
shares (Euro 1,200 thousand) and the fair valuesanement of available-for-sale assets (Euro 8
thousand).

In 2011:

- At their Meeting on 28 April 2011 the Shareholdapproved the distribution of a dividend of

0.25 Euro per share, inclusive of tax, for a tofaturo 19,393 thousand;

- the Board of Directors, on 30 November 2011, apgrothe distribution of an interim dividend
for 2011, amounting to Euro 0.15 per share (ingkusif tax), for a total of Euro 11,696 thousand,
Euro 10,240 thousand of which had been distribiae81 December 2011.

Share capital
The share capital as at 31 December 2011 was EQi®@! 4housand, fully subscribed and paid,

comprising 78,343,400 ordinary shares, to whicimoiminal amount is attributed.

In accordance with the bylaws the shares are exgidtindivisible and freely transferable. They are
subject to the requirements of representationtitegiation, circulation of the company investment
required for securities traded on regulated markets

Each share has the right to a proportion of thétpriich has been approved for distribution and to
a portion of equity on liquidation and also has tight to vote, without limits other than those
defined by the Law.

No securities having special rights of control hbeen issued

No financial instruments have been issued attiguthe right to subscribe to newly-issued shares.
No share incentive plans are foreseen involvingesbapital increases, including bonus issues.

The reconciliation between the number of sharestantling as at 31 December 2011 and those at
31 December 2010 is as follows:

31/12/2010 Purchase of Disposal of 31/12/2011

treasury shares treasury shares

Ordinary shares issued 78,343,400 - - 78,343,400
Less: treasury shares (771,326) - 400,000 (371,326)
Ordinary shares outstanding 77,572,074 - 400,000 77,972,074
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Share premium reserve

As at 31 December 2011 the share premium reseroarged to Euro 48,288 thousand.

Retained earnings
At 31 December 2011 the balance showed a positive E94 thousand. The item includes the
IFRS first time adoption reserve, with a hegabaéance of Euro 1,313 thousand.

Retained earnings

(€ thousands) 31/12/2011 31/12/2010
Retained earnings 1,807 4,038
Retained earnings — IFRS first time adoption reserve (1,313) (1,313)
Reserve for available-for-sale assets - (2,203)
Total 494 522

The reclassification of the investment in Dmail Guds.p.A from “investments in other companies”
to “investments in associates”, illustrated_in NA® led to the reclassification of the negative
equity reserve related to available-for-sale faiahassets, amounting to Euro 2,203 thousand, in
“retained earnings”.

Other reserves
As at 31 December 2011, other reserves, amoundiriguto 1,057 thousand, unchanged on the
prior year, are broken down as follows:

Other reserves 31/12/2011 31/12/2010

(€ thousands)

Legal reserve 815 815
Negative goodwill 225 225
Other reserves 17 17
Total 1,057 1,057

Treasury shares reserve
At 31 December 2010, Cairo Communication held 728 Beasury shares, or 0.985% of the share
capital, subject to the requirements of art. 23570f the Italian Civil Code, for a value of Euro

2,351 thousand deducted from equity.

On 28 April 2011, after revoking a similar resatutiadopted on 28 April 2010, the Shareholders
approved the proposal to acquire treasury shareac@ordance with art. 2357 and subsequent
articles of the Italian Civil Code, for the purposeé stabilizing the Company share price and
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sustaining liquidity, and, if deemed necessaryh®y Board of Directors, of establishing a “shares
stock” as provided in Consob regulation 16839/200% Board was authorizeéd acquire treasury
shares up to the maximum number permitted by lawafperiod of 18 months from the date of
authorization, by use of available resepvesludingthe share premium reserve, as resulting from
the most recently approved annual financial states8pecifically, the Board of Directors will be
authorized to acquire treasury shares on one oe rmaocasions, acquiring shares directly on the
market and through authorized intermediary — iroed@&nce to the procedures provided by art. 144
(i), paragraph 1, letter b of the Stock Exchanggations and relevant Instructions — and, in case
such operations are carried out, under acceptedemaractices, pursuant to the regulations
introduced by Consob Resolution No. 16839/200®imum price and maximum acquisition price
per share are set at an amount equal to the avefigal purchase price of the share on Borsa
Italiana S.p.A. for the 15 working days precedihg purchase respectively reduced or increased by
20%, in any event within a maximum limit of Eurd®er sharen case such operations are carried
out under accepted market practices, the purchiageasury shares is subject to further limits
including price limits, provided for theretd’he proposal of the Board also allows for the
authorization to sell, on one or more occasiong,auired treasury shares, setting the minimum
sale price per share no lower than the minimumepciiculated following the criteria adopted for
their purchaseShould the treasury shares be sold under accepéekiet practices pursuant to
Consob Resolution 16839/2009, the sale of treashgres shall be subject to further limits,
including price limits, provided for thereto

In 2011, as part of the share buy-back plans, 00@asury shares were sold (0.511% of the share
capital) following entry in the shareholding sturet of an institutional investor of prominent
standing, at a unit price of Euro 3.00 per shayaivalent to a total value of Euro 1.2 million.

At 31 December 2011, Cairo Communication held al tot n. 371,326 treasury shares, or 0.474%
of the share capital, for a carrying amount ofdlyl32 thousand, subject to art. 2357 ter of the
Italian Civil Code.

Interim dividend for 2011

As mentioned earlier, the Board of Directors, onfN&fvember 2011, approved the distribution of an

interim dividend for 2011, amounting to Euro 0.1&r ghare (inclusive of tax), for a total of Euro
11,696 thousand, Euro 10,240 thousand of whichbleath distributed at 31 December 2011.

The following table shows equity items and indisaifethey can be used and distributed, and tax
restrictions if any:
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(€ thousands) Use over the
previous three years

Amount Possibility of  Available To cover losses Other
use portion (dividends)

Share capital 4,074 0 0 0
Treasury shares (1,132) 0 0 0
Share premium reserve 48,288 ABC 48,2881) 0 (8,678)
Legal reserve 815 B 0 0 0
Other reserves 17 ABC 17 0 0
Negative goodwill 225 ABC 225 0 0
Retained profit 494 ABC 494 0 (41,682)
Interim dividend 2011 (11,696) (11,696)

Total 41,084 37,328

Legend:

A -for increases in share capital

B -to cover losses

C -dividend

(1) In accordance with art. 2431 of the Italian Civil Gadhe entire amount of this reserve may be disteith provided
the legal reserve has reached the limit as defimedrt. 2430 of the Civil Code

Profit for the year
Profit for the year amounted to Euro 19,257 thodséBuro 17,899 thousand at 31 December
2010).

21. Post-employment benefits
This item amounted to Euro 761 thousand, with aineease by Euro 93 thousand on 2010. The
composition and movement of the item is shown Hgvis:

Balance as at Paid during the Accrued during Balance as at
31/12/10 year the year 31/12/11

291 (12) 53 333
Employees

377 - 51 428
Managers

668 (12) 104 761
Total

Post-employment benefits reflect allocations mamteafl employees at the reporting date, made in
accordance with art. 2120 of the Italian Civil Coddne liability so determined does not vary
significantly from the liability that would resuitom an actuarial valuation.

The change in the composition of personnel dutiregyear is summarized as follows:
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Headcount at Changes Headcount at year Average headcount

the beginning of end
the year
6 1 7 7
Managers
. 2 2 2
Junior managers
19 (1) 18 18
Employees
27 - 27 27
Total

22. Provisions for risks and charges

The provisions for risks and charges amountedutm BE49 thousand, with a net decrease of Euro
20 thousand on 2010.

Provisions for risks and Balance as at Utilized Released  Accrued Balance as at
charges 31/12/10 31/12/11

(€ thousands)
Sundry risks

Risks on investments 169 (30) - 10 149
Total 169 (30) - 10 149

As mentioned earlier, the provision for risks ondstments refers entirely to Diellesei S.r.l. in
liquidation, accrued during 2005/2006 as a resiulhe subsidiary’s net deficit.

* %

23. Trade payables

Trade payables amounted to Euro 69,712 thousawodgasing by Euro 11,662 thousand on 31
December 2010.

24. Receivables from and payables to parents

Receivables from parents amounted to Euro 1,336stmal, increasing by Euro 1,275 thousand on
31 December 2010. Euro 1,275 thousand refers wivades from U.T. Communications arising
from the national tax consolidation scheme, neteskivables (interest withholdings) transferred.
The receivable stem from the tax advance paymettschagainst tax liabilities for the year.

As already mentioned, Cairo Communication and ubssgliaries Cairo Editore S.p.A., Cairo
Pubblicitd S.p.A., Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidatio@airo Due S.r.l. and Cairo Publishing S.r.l. have
adhered to the national tax consolidation schemé¢lo€ommunications S.p.A.

The consolidation scheme, which governs the fir@ragpects of amounts paid or received in return
for the advantages or disadvantages resulting tlartax consolidation, specifically provides that
any greater charges or minor benefits that mayuacto the Company resulting from adhesion to
the procedure, be suitably remunerated by the Paren
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25. Payables to subsidiaries

Payables to subsidiaries amounted to Euro 2,086, decreasing by Euro 8,314 thousand on 31
December 2010. The following table shows the breakdof payables to subsidiaries that relate to
services received in the ordinary course of busines

Payables to subsidiaries 31/12/11 31/12/10

(€ thousands)

Cairo Editore S.p.A. . 8,296
Cairo Due S.r.l. 38 38
Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidation } 47
Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. 1,886 1,662
Cairo Publishing S.r.l. 6 245
Il Trovatore S.r.l. 156 112
Total payables to subsidiaries 2,086 10,400

At 31 December 2010, payables due to Cairo EdBopeA. mainly referred to amounts due from the
advertising concession contract on the publisherégazines. The write-off of these amounts is
ascribable to the new Group contractual framewedarding print media advertising sales, under
which Cairo Pubblicita has entered directly withirGaEditore into an exclusive advertising
concession contract.

26. Tax liabilities
Tax liabilities amounted to Euro 212 thousand, €asing by Euro 404 thousand on 31 December

2010. They are broken down as follows:

Tax liabilities 31/12/11 31/12/10

(€ thousands)

VAT - 15
Current IRAP taxes - 444
Other tax liabilities - 7
Withholding taxes on employees 196 102
Withholding taxes on contract workers 16 55
Total tax liabilities 212 616
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As already mentioned, the taxable income of C&ommunication S.p.A., for IRES purposes, has
been recognized as a payable to the parent UT Caoinations S.p.A., in accordance with the
national tax consolidation scheme.

27. Other current liabilities
Other current liabilities amounted to Euro 4,3906ukand, increasing by Euro 1,310 thousand on 31

December 2010. They are broken down as follows:

Other current liabilities 31/12/2011 31/12/2010

(€ thousands)

Social security charges payable 203 161
Shareholder liability for dividends to be distribd 1,456 -
Other liabilities 2,118 1,858
Deferred income 613 1,061
Total other current liabilities 4,390 3,080

Accrued expenses and deferred income are deternunean accruals basis and mainly
relate toincome deriving from recharging of the share dafitopmedia bad debts, the losses of which
have not been fully ascertained and have not bemagnised in profit and loss

ok
“Shareholder liability for dividends to be distie” refers to liabilities for dividends to pay dot
the majority shareholder.
At 31 December 2010, accrued expenses and defieiwethe also included interest accrued on the
above-mentioned restricted deposit jointly helchwiielepiu SpA. Following the award rendered on
27 January 2010, the balance of the jointly hetthtdeposit, comprising interest, was released to
Cairo Communication.

28. Commitments, risks and other information

Guarantees and commitments

Main guarantees given are as follows:
- a bank surety of Euro 16.8 million, expiring onJifne 2012 issued by Banca Popolare

di Milano to Telecom lItalia Media S.p.A. (Teleconro@p) securing payment of
minimum guaranteed fees specified in its contracttlie exclusive sale of television

advertising space on LA7.

- surety totaling Euro 116 thousand issued by bawkimsurance institutes to customers,
public bodies and lessors of properties.

*k%
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Other information

The arbitration proceeding started in July 2010Qairo Communication against Telepiu Srl was
concluded with the award rendered by the Board dfitfators on 16 September 2011, In such
procedure, Cairo Communication was claiming thae threach by Telepiu (definitively

acknowledged by the arbitration award rendered onl&uary 2010) of the 10 years exclusive
concession for the advertising sale on Telepiu ebBsngranted to Cairo TV by Telepiu, implies also
the breach by Telepiu of the contract for the saflehe shares of Cairo TV (former Telepiu

Pubblicitd), being such contracts contextual ateted.

The Board of Arbitrators acknowledged the clairdiby Cairo Communication, limited to breach of

contract, but rejected Cairo’s claim for compersatfor damage arising from such breach by
Telepiu. The Board of Arbitrators - with the motigd dissenting opinion of Prof. Francesco Benatti
— taken the view that relevant damage was absdipéke damage for loss of profit compensated to
Cairo Communication (as acquirer of Cairo TV) unither foregoing award of 27 January 2010.

The outcome of the arbitration had no consequencthe financial statements as at 31 December

2011, with the exception of the legal expenses, patidich were recognised in profit and loss.

In 2011, the three-year contractual target (Eur8 Billion) securing Cairo a three-year renewal
(2012-2014) of the advertising concession contraeas achieved; in October 2011, Cairo
Communication and TIMedia acknowledged that theagent entered into on 19 November 2008
was to be deemed renewed for the further threepesod of 2012-2014, in accordance with the
terms and conditions established under the cor@iradttunder the additional agreements thereto. The
advertising concession contract regarding LA7 seitimum annual gross advertising revenue in
2012 of Euro 126 million, with minimum annual guateed fees for Telecom lItalia Media of Euro
88.2 million (70%).

In December 2010, Telecom Italia Media and Cairceeg to revise the advertising concession
contract of 19 November 2008. Specifically, for 2@ind for the 2012-2014 three-year period , both
set additional annual advertising revenue targetgyaranteed) with respect to the minimum annual
revenue, proportional to the achievement by Telettalima Media of annual targets of share higher
than the given 3% for LA7’s share. Cairo’s ackiment of these additional targets, or payment to
Telecom lItalia Media of equivalent dues, will eetiCairo to renew the contract up to 31 December
2019. Otherwise, Telecom Italia Media is authorimedithdraw from the contract.

The contract regarding the LA7d digital channebk sainimum gross advertising revenue in 2012 of
Euro 8 million for a 0.2% share of the channelhwitinimum guaranteed fees for Telecom Italia
Media of Euro 5.6 million, paid as per the contracta monthly basis. A result higher or lower than
the 0.2% share will produce a corresponding iner@aslecrease in minimum annual revenue and in

the guaranteed minimum fee.
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As the result of a VAT audit performed on Cairo Goumication S.p.A., in its report, the Guardia
di Finanza (the Italian Tax Police) identified sofindings for 2002 and subsequent years (2003,
2004 and 2005) relating to the application if ahy/ AT on dealing rights charged to media centres,
which were subsequently included in the final awdgorts issued in January 2008 (for 2002), in
June 2008 (for 2003, 2004 and 2005), and on 24 idbee 2011 (for 2006), which the company
has challenged. Regarding 2006, at the date oihgritf these notes, the hearing for the appeal has
yet to be scheduled. For all the periods in quag@®02, 2003, 2004 and 2005), the Provincial Tax
Commission of Milan has ruled in favour of the Canp's appeals. The Agenzia delle Entrate
(Tax Authority Agency) has filed an appeal with tRegional Tax Commission of Milan against
these decisions. In April 2010, the Regional Taxn@ussion of Milan ruled in favour of the
Agency’s appeal regarding 2002, and in Octoberl28i$0 regarding the years 2003, 2004 and
2005, on questionable grounds. Cairo Communicakiag already appealed to the Court of
Cassation against judgement regarding 2002, foclwtiie tax claim amounts to Euro 41 thousand,
in addition to penalties of Euro 51 thousand, aillappeal to the Court of Cassation also for the
subsequent years 2003, 2004 and 2005, for whichtakeclaim totals Euro 247 thousand, in
addition to penalties of Euro 272 thousand aner@st. The tax claim for 2006 amounts to Euro 63
thousand, in addition to penalties of Euro 79 tlandsand interest. Based also on the advice of its
tax consultants, the Directors believe there amddmental reasons and rights to oppose the

relevant findings.

The Agenzia delle Entrate (ltalian Tax Authoritied)allenged Cairo Communication for using
excess IRES from the 2006 tax return to offsed72payments. While not challenging the relevant
credit to Cairo Communication, the ltalian Tax Aathties has refuted its use for offsetting
purposes on grounds of non-compliance of proced(spscifically, the Italian Tax Authorities
claim that use of the credit would have requirddranal credit transfer from the Company to the
Company). On 6 July 2010, the Company received &ith substantially for payment of Euro 28
thousand as interest, and Euro 145 thousand ad#tipenaince the credit has not been disallowed.
Cairo Communication has filed an appeal with thevPicial Tax Commission. As at the date of the
writing of these notes, the hearing for the apeal yet to be scheduled. Based also on the advice
of its tax consultants, the Directors believe thame fundamental reasons and rights to oppose the

relevant findings.

A previous shareholder of the subsidiary Il Trovat8.r.l., who did not sell its shares to the pgren
had risen a claim against the current minority shalder, involving Cairo Communication S.p.A.
indirectly, questioning the validity of the conttamder which he had sold the quota in the limited
partnership Il Trovatore and the transformationtto§ company from a limited partnership to a
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limited liability company (S.r.l.), and requestitie annulment of the subsequent acquisition of the
company by Cairo Communication. The requests of dbwnterparty were rejected in the first
instance, although the counterparty has filed gpealp Based also on the advice of its legal
counsels, the Directors believe that the groundbede claims are such as not to request a specific
accrual.

*k%k

29. Related party transactions
Transactions carried out by Cairo Communicatiomwé#ated parties and the effect on the financial

statements can be shown as follows:

Receivables and financial assets Trade Other receivables  Intra-group Other current
(€ thousands) receivables and current assets financial assets financial assets
Parent U.T. Communications 61 1,275 - -
Subsidiaries of Cairo Communication

Group

Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. 76,798 - - -
Cairo Editore S.p.A. 712 - - -
Cairo Due S.r.l. 58 - - 386
Cairo Publishing S.r.l. 12 - - 225

Il Trovatore S.r.l. 311 - - -

Associates of U.T. Communications Group

Torino FC S.p.A. 239 - - -
Total 78,191 1,275 - 612
Payables and liabilities Trade payables Other payables and Intra-group Other current
(€ thousands) current liabilities financial financial

payables liabilities
Parent U.T. Communications - - - -
Subsidiaries of Cairo Communication

Group
Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. 1,886 - - -
Cairo Editore S.p.A. - - - -
Cairo Due S.r.l. 38 - - -
Cairo Publishing S.r.l. 6 - - -
Il Trovatore S.r.l. 155 - - -

Associates of U.T. Communications Group
Torino FC S.p.A. 17 - - -
Total 2,102 - _ -

“Other liabilities” include, for the amount of Eurb,456 thousand, payables for dividends to
distribute to the majority shareholder.

187



Income and expense Operating Operating Financial  Financial (Expense)/

(Euro/000) revenue cost income expense Income from
investments

Parent U.T. Communications - - - - -

Subsidiaries of Cairo Communication

Group

Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. 139,845 - - - 2,273
Cairo Editore S.p.A. 480 - - - 10,166
Cairo Publishing S.r.l. - (5) 3 - -
Il Trovatore S.r.l. 22 (108) - - -
Associates

Dmail Group - - - - (765)
Associates of U.T. Communications Group

Torino FC S.p.A. 100 - - - -
Total 140,447 (113) 3 - (765)

“Income (expense) from investments” include, fog amount of Euro 12,439 thousand, dividends
received from the subsidiaries Cairo Editore anttdCRubblicita, net of the impairment loss of the
investment in Dmail Group, amounting to Euro 76&uand.

Specifically, income and expense in relation tossibries can be analyzed as follows:

Income and expense Cairo Cairo Cairo Dielleseiin Il Trovatore  Torino FC
Editore  Pubblicita Publishing  liquidation

INCOME
Sub-concession payment 136,845 - - - -
Administrative services and use of 480 3,000 - - 22 100

serviced spaces
Recharged costs - -
Sale of advertising space - -

W
'
'
'

Interest income - -

Dividends 10,166 2,273 - - - -

Total 10,646 142,118 3 - 22 100
Cairo Cairo Cairo Dielleseiin Il Trovatore  Torino FC
Editore  Pubblicita Publishing  liquidation

EXPENSE

Share of publishing costs - - (5) - - -

Internet services - - - - (108) -

Other recharges - - - - - -

Total - - (5) - (108) -

Cairo Communication supplies a range of servicesotoe of its subsidiaries and associates, mainly
relating to management accounting software, usesesViced spaces, administration, finance,
treasury, management control, credit managementr@nlleting activities, to allow the individual
companies to benefit from economies of scale ane mfficient management.

In 2011, Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. worked for Ca@ommunication:
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- as sub-lessee of Cairo Communication for TV adswgi sales (LA7 and theme channels
under concession Cartoon Network, Boomerang, and)@Xd Internet advertising sales,

- as sub-lessee for print media advertising salesfontthe magazines of Editoriale Genesis.

Under these agreements, Cairo Pubblicita directpices customers and returns a percentage of

proceeds to the sub-lessor.

In 2011, there were no transactions with the par@hT. Communications) or with subsidiaries of

the latter, except for the contract with Torino Fi@ the provision of administrative services such

as bookkeeping; the agreement sets an annual teerofL00 thousand.

As mentioned earlier, Cairo Communication and itbsidiaries Cairo Editore S.p.A., Cairo

Pubblicita S.p.A., Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidatio@airo Due S.r.l. and Cairo Publishing S.r.I. have

adhered to the national tax consolidation schent¢ Bf Communications S.p.A.

Fees paid to the directors in 2011 are analyzedoite 31“Board of Directors’ and Board of

Statutory Auditors’ feésand in the Remuneration Report, prepared purstseait. 123 ter of the
TUF.

During the year, no transactions were carried wigmbers of the Board of Directors, general
managers and/or with key management personnel, ersnalb the Board of Stautory Auditors, and
the financial reporting manager, further than feesd and as already shown in this Note.

The procedures adopted by the Group for relatety geansactions, to ensure transparency and
substantial and procedural fairness, made by thep@ay either directly or through its subsidiaries,

are illustrated in the Directors’ Report in thetimton the‘Report on Corporate Governance”

30. Risk management

Liquidity risk

Cairo Communication is not exposed to liquiditykrign that on one hand, significant financial
resources are held with a net available positinarfcial position of Euro 37.4 million whilst on the
other, it attempts to ensure that an appropriateéyatn generate cash is maintained, even under th
current market conditions.

An analysis of the company’s equity structure shdeth liquidity, or the ability to maintain
financial stability in the short term, and solidityr the ability to maintain financial stability the
medium/long term.

It is Group policy to invest available cash in eamthnd or very short-term bank deposits, properly
spreading the investments, essentially in banknoglycts, with the prime objective of maintaining
a ready liquidity of the said investments. Courdelips are selected on the basis of their credit

rating, their reliability and the quality of thergiee rendered.
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Currency and interest rate risks

Cairo Communication is not exposed to these riskghat on one hand, there is no loan finance,
whilst on the other hand operations are carriedeaatusively in Italy, and revenue is generated
entirely in the country and main costs are incumeduro.

The interest rate risk only affects the yield oaikable cash. Specifically, with reference to tle¢ n
financial position aB1 December 2011, a one percentage point reduictithe interest rate would
result in a reduction in annual financial incomeapproximately Euro 0.4 million.

Movements in the cash flow and the liquidity of thempany are centrally monitored and managed
by Group Treasury in order to guarantee effecti efficient management of financial resources.
Given the limited exposure to both interest ratd &OREX risk, the Company does not use

financial derivative and/or hedging instruments.

Credit risk

Cairo Communication is exposed to credit risk, ity in relation to its advertising sales
activities. This risk is however mitigated by tleetf that exposure is divided across a large number
of customers and that credit monitoring and corgrotedures are in place.

It is of course possible that both the financiasisrand the uncertainty factors in the short and
medium term could deteriorate, along with the masglcredit squeeze, and negatively impact on

the quality of credit and on general payment terms.

31. Board of Directors’ and Board of Statutory Audtors’ fees
The following information refers to the 2011 feemdp to Directors, Statutory Auditors, General
Directors and key management personnel, also irsidiabies, analyzed in detail in the

Remuneration Report, prepared pursuant to artter2¥ the TUF:
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Name and Position  Term of office  Term expiry Fees Benefitsin  Bonuses and Other fees **

surname date kind other
* incentives
Urbano R. Cairo Chairman Jan.-Dec. 2011 31/12/2011
BoD 700 16 - 505
Uberto Fornara CEO Jan.-Dec. 201B1/12/2011
475 4 - 384
Roberto Cairo Director Jan.-Dec. 2011 31/12/2011
20 - - -
Marco Janni Director Jan.-Dec. 2011 31/12/2011
33 - - -
Antonio Director Jan.-Dec. 2011 31/12/2011
Magnocavallo 33 - - -
Marco Director Jan.-Dec. 2011 31/12/2011
Pompignoli 220 4 - 279
Roberto Director Jan.-Dec. 2011 31/12/2011
Rezzonico 40 - - -
Mauro Director Jan.-Dec. 31/12/2011
Sala 2011 33 - - -
Key management N/A Jan.-Dec. N/A - 8 - 763
personnel 2011
Marco Moroni Chairman Jan.-Dec. 2011 31/12/2011
Board of 30 - - 16
Statutory
Auditors
Maria Pia Standing Jan.-Dec. 2011 31/12/2011
Maspes auditor 20 - - 10
Marco Giuliani Standing Jan.-Dec. 2011 31/12/2011
auditor 20 - - -

* Other fees, in addition to fees for the role okdtor (Euro 20 thousand), refers to:

Urbano Cairo: fees pursuant to art. 2389, paragrahHtalian Civil Code (Euro 680 thousand).

Uberto Fornara: fees pursuant to art. 2389, parggne3, Italian Civil Code (Euro 455 thousand).

Marco Janni: fees for attendance in meetings ofRhenuneration Committee and Related Party Comniie 13 thousand);

Antonio Magnocavallo: fees for attendance in megtimf the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Gieam(Euro 13

thousand);

Marco Pompignoli: fees pursuant to art. 2389, paegh 3 Italian Civil Code (Euro 200 thousand);

. Roberto Rezzonico: fees for attendance in meetihtie Audit Committee and Related Party Comm({feeo 20 thousand).

. Mauro Sala: fees for attendance in meetings ofRBemuneration Committee, Audit Committee and ReRgety Committee (Euro
13 thousand);

** Other fees refers to:

. Urbano Cairo: fees for his duties performed for @aEditore (Euro 500 thousand) and other compartéshe Group (Euro 5
thousand).

. Uberto Fornara: gross fees as senior manager paydhy Cairo Communication (Euro 279 thousand) areks féor his duties
performed for Cairo Pubblicita (Euro 100 thousaraaiid other companies of the Group (Euro 5 thousand).

. Marco Pompignoli: gross fees as senior manager plydy Cairo Communication (Euro 184 thousand) &ek for his duties
performed for Cairo Pubblicita (Euro 90 thousandidaother companies of the Group (Euro 5 thousand).

. Key management personnel: gross fixed annual Gfeap for a total of Euro 629 thousand (comprisgmgss remuneration as
manager) and variable incentive components amogntiri34 thousand.

On 28 April 2011, the Shareholders of Cairo Comroatidn S.p.A. had resolved on annual fees of
Euro 220 thousand, which the meeting of the BodirDitectors on 3 May 2011 had split up in,
respectively, Euro 20 thousand as fees for the Reration Committee, the Internal Control
Committee and the Related Party Committee. TheiréngaEuro 160 thousand was split up among

the eight directors.
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On 12 May 2011, the Board of Directors, on the pegph of the Remuneration Committee and the
favourable opinion of the Related Party Commitfgesuant to art. 2389, paragraph 3 of the Italian
Civil Code, resolved for:

- fees to Chairman Urbano Cairo, CEO Uberto Forremd, Director Marco Pompignoli, who
hold particular responsibilities, amounting respety to Euro 480 thousand, Euro 60
thousand and Euro 90 thousand,

- a variable fees mechanism for CEO Uberto Fornasaed mainly on advertising revenue
growth targets.

Under the decisions adopted by the Board of Direobm 12 May 2011 and on 14 February 2012,

on the proposal of the Remuneration Committee amdfavourable opinion of the Related Party

Committee, further fees were established for 268p#cifically:

= for the Chairman — based on overall quality assestsnon results achieved - Euro 200

thousand.

= for CEO Uberto Fornara — based on the variable feeshanism defined by the Board on 12

May 2011 based mainly on advertising revenue graariets - Euro 395 thousand,
= for Director Marco Pompignoli — based on overalblify assessments on duties performed -
Euro 110 thousand.
Moreover, under Consob Communication n. DEM/110%281824 February 2011, point 2.3, letters
(a) and (f) it should be noted that
= there are no agreements in place between the Cognamahthe directors for any fee in the event
of resignation or unjust dismissal, or in the ewvibeir employment relationship ceases following
a takeover bid

= there are agreements in place between the CompasyUlerto Fornara, subject to non-
competition commitments in the year following temation of his employment with the
Company, for payment of a gross monthly fee of 15@eély of the gross monthly salary in his

capacity as manager, which will become effectiveruggrmination of his relationship.

Moreover, there are no succession plans regardiecuéve directors.

At 31 December 2011, key management personnel ®fQhiro Communication Group was
composed of:

e Giuseppe Ferrauto (board member, General Managemanager of Cairo Editore);

» Giuliano Cesari (executive board member and Gendlahager of Cairo Pubblicita) and

manager of Cairo Communication.

To date, Cairo Communication has no stock optiangin place.
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32 Transactions deriving from atypical and/or unusal transactions

Pursuant to Consob Communication of 28 July 200BEM/6064296, we note that in 2011, Cairo
Communication did not perform any atypical and/ousual transactions as defined by the above
Communication. Moreover, there are no cost andnm@ecomponents deriving from events or
transactions which by their nature or size are id@ned non-recurring.

As explained in Note,2n the 2010 income statement, income derivingnftbe arbitration pending
from 2004 between Cairo Communication S.p.A. antedig S.r.l. has been shown separately

owing to its non-recurring nature and size.

For the Board of Directors
Chairman Urbano R. Cairo
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ANNEX 1 - LIST OF INVESTMENTS PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH V OF ART.

2427 OF THE CIVIL CODE

SUBSIDIARIES!

Company name:

Registered office:

Share capital:

Equity at 31/12/2010:

Profit for 2010:

Equity as per draft financial statements at 31/0212
Profit as per draft financial statements at 31/0212

Ownership:

Company name:

Registered office:

Quota capital:

Equity at 31/12/2010:

Loss for 2010:

Equity as per draft financial statements at 3DQ21:
Loss as per draft financial statements at 31/12/201

Ownership:

Company name:

Registered office:

Quota capital:

Equity at 31/12/2010:

Loss for 2010:

Equity as per draft financial statements at 31/Q212
Profit as per draft financial statements at 312024:

Ownership:
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Cairo Editore S.p.A.
Milan — Corso Magenta, 55
1,043,256
12,835,407
10,170,901
13,665,073
11,000,567
99.95%

Cairo Due Sr.l.
Milan — Via Tucidide, 56
46,800
90,457
(2,903)
86,789
(3,668)
100%

Il Trovatore S.r.l.
Milan — Via Tucidide, 56
25,000
27,553
(7,689)
31,838
4,285
80%



Company name:

Registered office:

Share capital:

Equity at 31/12/10:

Profit for 2010:

Equity as per draft financial statements at 31/0212
Profit as per draft financial statements at 31/0212

Ownership:

Company name:
Registered office:

Quota capital:

Net deficit at 31/12/2010:
Loss for 2010:

Net deficit as per draft financial statements Hfl2/2011:

Loss as per draft financial statements at 31/12/201

Ownership

Company name:

Registered office:

Quota capital:

Equity at 31/12/2010

Loss for 2010:

Equity as per draft financial statement at 31/12420
Loss as per draft financial statements at 31/12/201

Ownership:

Company name:
Registered office:
Quota capital:

Equity at 31/12/2010:
Loss for 2010:

Ownership:

INDIRECT SUBSIDIARIES
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Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A.
Milan — Via Tucidide, 56
2,818,400
6,268,451
2,272,858
8,679,964
4,684,371
100%

Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidation
Milan — Via Tucidide, 56
10,000
(171,408)
(67,459)
(151,405)

(9,997)
60%

Cairo Publishing S.r.l.
Milan — Corso Magenta, 55
10,000
316,568
(85,777)
67,750
(248,818)
100%

Cairo Sport S.r.l.
Milan — Via Tucidide, 56
10,400
10,133
(267)
100%



Company name:

Registered office:

Quota capital:

Equity at 31/12/2010:

Loss for 2010:

Equity as per draft financial statements at 31/Q212
Loss as per draft financial statements at 31/12/20

Ownership:
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Edizioni Anabasi S.r.l.
Milan — Corso Magenta, 55
10,200
8,173
(2,156)
7,442
(2,891)
100%



ANNEX 2

Summary figures of draft financial statements of sbsidiaries in the advertising
segment, il Trovatore and discontinued operationsté81 December 2011.

Assets
A Share capital proceeds to be received
B) Intangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Financial fixed assets
Total non-current assets
C) Inventory
Receivables
Current financial assets
Liquid funds
Total current assets
D) Prepayments and accrued income
Total assets

Liabilities

A) Share capital
Income - related and other reserves
Shareholders' contributions to cover losses
Retained earnings/(losses carried forward)
Net profit for the year

Total equity

B) Provisions for risks and charges

C) Employees' leaving entitiement

D) Payables

E) Accrued expenses and deferred income

Total equity and liabilities

Income statement
A) Production revenue
B) Production cost
Operating profit/(loss)
C) Net financial income / (expense)
D) Adjustments to financial assets
E) Extraordinary income / (expenses)
Pre-tax profit/ (loss)
Income tax
Net profit / (loss) for the year

Cairo Pubblicita Cairo Due Il Trovatore Cairo Sport Di ellesei in liquidation
Financial statements at Financial statements i Financial statements at Financial statements at  Financial statements at
31.12.11 31.12.11 31.12.11 31.12.11 31.12.11
0 0 0 0 0
1.509.518 0 159 0 0
18.328 0 5.070 0 0
1.828 0 3.873 0
1.529.673 0 9.102 0 0
0 0 0
107.719.400 215.803 383.016 2.367 172.598
0 0 0 0 0
9.625.966 353.362 24.696 7.544 19.761
117.345.366 569.165 407.713 9.912 192.359
214.756 129 555 129 744
119.089.795 569.294 417.369 10.041 193.103
2.818.400 46.800 25.000 10.400 10.000
1.167.468 10.428 2.674 0 0
331 24615 0 0 30.000
9.394 8.614 (121) 0 (181.408)
4.684.371 (3.668) 4.285 (1.179) (9.997)
8.679.964 86.789 31.838 9.221 (151.405)
1.158.692 0 0 0 100.646
768.341 0 6.369 0
108.373.674 482.505 379.162 820 243.862
109.124 0 0 0 0
119.089.795 569.294 417.369 10.041 193.103
211.779.331 1.003 353.615 0 12.946
(204.732.148) (2.380) (336.073) (818) (24.286)
7.047.184 (1.377) 17.541 (818) (11.340)
190.293 8.798 (931) (361) (101)
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
7.237.476 7.421 16.610 (1.179) (11.441)
(2.553.105) (11.089) (12.325) 0 1.444
4.684.371 (3.668) 4.285 (1.179) (9.997)
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ANNEX 3

Summary figures of draft financial statements of shsidiaries in the publishing

segment at 31 December 2011.

Cairo Editore Cairo Publishing Edizioni
Anabasi
Financial statements Financial statements  at Financial statements
31.12.11 31.12.11 at 31.12.11
Assets
A Share capital proceeds to be received 0 0 0
B) Intangible fixed assets 15.924.086 23.419 0
Tangible fixed assets 2.156.540 4.031 0
Financial fixed assets 57.760 0 0
Total non-current assets 18.138.385 27.450 0
C) Inventory 3.207.747 181.676 0
Receivables 23.525.278 2.029.068 7.431
Current financial assets 0 0 0
Liquid funds 6.766.524 134.105 10.904
Total current assets 33.499.549 2.344.849 18.334
D) Prepayments and accrued income 261.098 5.908 0
Total assets 51.899.032 2.378.207 18.334
Equity and liabilities
A) Share capital 1.043.256 10.000 10.200
Income - related and other reserves 1.021.221 .0005 129
Shareholders' contributions to cover losses 4
Retained earnings 600.029 301.568 0
Net profit/(loss) for the year 11.000.567 (248.818) (2.891)
Total equity 13.665.073 67.750 7.442
B) Provisions for risks and charges 2.207.926 474.672 0
C) Post - employment benefits 2.457.101 132.751 0
D) Payables 33.309.007 1.703.034 10.892
E) Accrued expenses and deferred income 259.925 0
Total equity and liabilities 51.899.032 2.378.207 18.334
Income statement
A) Production revenue 100.885.715 1.583.577 0
B) Production cost (83.657.711) (1.891.662) (3.056)
Operating profit/(loss) 17.228.004 (308.084) (3.056)
C) Net Financial income 170.063 10.169 165
D) Adjustments to financial assets (107.767) 0 0
E) Extraordinary income / (expense) 0 0 0
Pre-tax profit/ (loss) 17.290.300 (297.915) (2.891)
Income tax (6.289.733) 49.097 0
Net profit / (loss) for the year 11.000.567 (248.818) (2.891)
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ANNEX 4

Summary figures of the most recently approved finaoial statements of the
subsidiaries in the advertising segment, il Trovate and discontinued operations (31

December 2010).
Cairo Pubblicita Cairo Due Il Trovatore Cairo Sport Di ellesei in liquidation
Financial statements Financial statements Financial statements Financial statements  Financial statements
31.12.10 at 31.12.10 at 31.12.10 31.12.10 31.12.10
Assets
A Share capital proceeds to be received 0 0 0 0
B) Intangible fixed assets 2.013.107 225 318 0 0
Tangible fixed assets 21.917 0 12.994 0 0
Financial fixed assets 1.800 0 3.873 0 0
Total non-current assets 2.036.824 225 17.185 0 0
C) Inventory 0 0 0 0 0
Receivables 89.814.434 222.685 279.749 2.308 171.407
Current financial assets 0 0 0 0 0
Liquid funds 9.806.783 349.059 68.289 8.982 37.162
Total current assets 99.621.217 571.744 348.038 11.290 208.56¢
D) Prepayments and accrued income 166.772 46 472 3.7
Total assets 101.824.813 572.016 365.695 11.290 212.29¢
Equity and liabilities
A) Share capital 2.818.400 46.800 25.000 10.400 2.000.000
Income - related and other reserves 1.167.468 0.429 2.372 0 0
Shareholders' contributions to cover losses 133 27.518 0 0 14.771.905
Retained earnings/(losses carried forward) 94.3 8.613 7.870 0 (16.875.854)
Net profit/(loss) for the year 2.272.858 (2.903 (7.689) (267) (67.459)
Total equity 6.268.451 90.457 27.553 10.133 (171.408)
B) Provisions for risks and charges 956.013 0 0 102.050
C) Employees' leaving entitlement 670.798 0 4.636 0 (
D) Payables 93.854.560 481.559 333.507 1.156 281.654
E) Accrued expenses and deferred income 74.991 0 0
Total equity and liabilities 101.824.813 572.016 3636 11.290 212.296
Income statement
A) Production revenue 169.430.819 79 343.813 1.250 121.090
B) Production cost (165.831.285) (4.099) (313.751) (992) (207.195)
Operating profit/(loss) 3.599.534 (4.020) 30.062 258 (86.105)
C) Net financial income / (expense) 53.767 1.117 43)2 (525) 732
D) Adjustments to financial assets 0 0 0 0 0
E) Extraordinary income / (expense) 0 0 0 0 0
Pre-tax profit/ (loss) 3.653.301 (2.903) 28.818 (267) (85.373)
Income tax (1.380.443) 0 (36.507) 0 17.914
Net profit / (loss) for the year 2.272.858 (2.903) @89) (267) (67.459)
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ANNEX 5

Summary figures of the most recently approved finaoial statements of the
subsidiaries in the publishing segment (31 Decemb&010).

64

Cairo Editore Cairo Publishing Edizioni
Anabasi
Financial statements Financial statements Financial statements
31.12.10 31.12.10 31.12.10
Assets
A Share capital proceeds to be received 0 0
B) Intangible fixed assets 17.460.025 47.500 0
Tangible fixed assets 2.090.345 5.287 0
Financial fixed assets 162.707 0 0
Total non-current assets 19.713.077 52.787 0
C) Inventory 2.663.977 288.499 0
Receivables 17.521.478 1.788.495 7.713
Current financial assets 0 0 0
Liquid funds 15.195.801 128.505 10.446
Total current assets 35.381.256 2.205.499 18.159
D) Prepayments and accrued income 262.020 1.577
Total assets 55.356.354 2.259.863 18.159
Equity and liabilities
A) Share capital 1.043.256 10.000 10.200
Income - related and other reserves 1.021.221 .0005 129
Shareholders' contributions to cover losses 0 0 0
Retained earnings 600.029 387.345 0
Net profit/(loss) for the year 10.170.901 (85Y (2.156)
Total equity 12.835.407 316.568 8.173
B) Provisions for risks and charges 1.662.486 697.439 0
C) Post - employment benefits 2.666.540 109.897
D) Payables 38.129.345 1.135.959 9.986
E) Accrued expenses and deferred income 62.576 0
Total equity and liabilities 55.356.354 2.259.863 1%9
Income statement
A) Production revenue 100.925.078 2.299.287 0
B) Production cost (85.360.160) (2.358.223) (2.220)
Operating profit/(loss) 15.564.918 (58.936) (2.220)
C) Net financial income / (expense) 64.429 (539)
D) Adjustments to financial assets 0 0 0
E) Extraordinary income / (expense) 0 0 0
Pre-tax profit/ (loss) 15.629.346 (59.474) (2.156)
Income tax (5.458.445) (26.303) 0
Net profit / (loss) for the year 10.170.901 (85.777) 2(56)
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APPENDI X
Information pursuant to art. 149-xii of Consob Reguations

The following summary, prepared pursuant to art9-%i4 of Consob Regulations, shows the
amounts due for the current period for auditingisess and for non-audit services provided by the
independent audit firm.

€ thousands Services rendered by Amounts due for the
period

Audit services

Audit of the financial statements, the consolidated
financial statements, quarterly audits and audihifor

companies KPMG S.p.A. 67
Subsidiaries

- Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. KPMG S.p.A. 34
- Cairo Editore S.p.A. Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. 61
Attestation services

Parent company KPMG S.p.A* 20

- Cairo Editore S.p.A. Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. 3

* Fairness opinion on the distribution of interinvidends pursuant to art.2433 bis, paragraph SefGivil Code
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DECLARATION ABOUT THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 81 (TER) OF CONSOB REGULATION 11971 OF 14

MAY 1999 AND SUBSEQUENT MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENT S

1. The undersigned Urbano Roberto Cairo, as Chairafatme Board of Directors, and Marco
Pompignoli, as Financial Reporting Manager of C&ammmunication S.p.A., also in accordance
with art. 154 bis, paragraphs 3 and 4 of Leg. Betruary 24, 1998 — n. 58, confirm:

« the suitability of the characteristics of the gamy and

« the effective application of administrative antt@unting procedures for the preparation of the
2011 financial statements

2. We also confirm that

2.1 the separate financial statements at 31 Desepili1:

a) have been prepared in compliance with Internatiodfi@lancial Reporting Standards
endorsed by the European Union, pursuant to EECulRégn 1606/2002 of the European
Parliament and Council, of 19 July 2002;

b) are consistent with the accounting records and $obkhe Company;

c) give a true and fair view of the financial positiand results of operations of the Issuer;

2.2 the Directors’Report contains a reliable analgs performance and operating results, as well
as on the position of the Issuer, together witlescdption of the principal risks and uncertainties

to which it is exposed.

Milan, 12 March 2012

For the Board of Directors Financial Repay Manager
Chairman
(Urbano Roberto Cairo) (MarBompignoli)
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Report of the Board of Auditors to the Shareholders Meeting of Cairo
Communication S.p.A., pursuant to art. 153 of Legisitive Decree 58/1998 and to
art. 2429 of the Civil Code

Shareholders,

pursuant to art. 2429 of the Civil Code and to Hs8, paragraph 1, of Legislative Decree n. 58 of
24 February 1998, we hereby inform you that dutimg year ended 31 December 2011, we
performed the oversight duties prescribed by layvatiicle 148et seq. of the abovementioned
Legislative Decree, by the instructions provided@NSOB communications, taking also into
account the standards of conduct recommended bialiesn Association of Public Accountants

and Accounting Professionals.

The above being stated, the results of the presgtridversight duties performed during the year
ended 31 December 2011 are the following:

« we attended all the Shareholders’ Meetings andettodthe Board of Directors and Audit
Committee held during the year, overseeing compéamvith the laws, bylaws and
regulations governing the functioning of Companylies, and receiving from the Directors,
according to the disclosure obligations to the Baair Auditors under art. 150, paragraph 1
of Legislative Decree n. 58/1958mely and appropriate information on activitiesformed
and on transactions of relevance, for their sizé mature, made by the Company and its
subsidiaries; we also ensured that actions de@deédaken by the Directors complied with
the laws and bylaws, and were made in a perspeofiygofitability, and that they were
neither imprudent nor reckless, or in potential fianof interest or in contrast with the
resolutions adopted by the Shareholders’ Meetingsgugh as to jeopardize the integrity of
corporate assets;

« to the extent of our responsibilities, we gathénédrmation and oversaw the appropriateness
of the Company's organizational structure and c@npé with the principles of proper
governance, and the timely execution of instrudigiven to subsidiaries; all these activities
were conducted through direct observation, thraafifrmation gathered from the managers
of the department concerned and through meetings ttve Audit Firm as part of a regular
exchange of important data and information withhsoiedies;

« to the extent of our responsibilities, pursuantatb 19 of Legislative Decree 39/2010, we
gathered information and oversaw the adequacy fiectizeness of the audit system, and the
activities conducted by the manager in charge, elbas the reliability of the administrative-
accounting system to properly illustrate operatiomaents, through information received
from the managers of the departments concerneexdmining company documents and the

activities conducted by the Audit Firm, by attergliine meetings of the Audit Committee



and the meetings with the managers charged witlersiging the operations of the audit
system, as well as with the Financial Reporting &tgan;

during the year, we issued our opinion as presdribg law on the determination of
compensation to managers holding strategic reshitities (art. 2389 of the Civil Code); we
verified compliance with the Group's current congadion policy and with the proposals set
forth by the Compensation Committee;

pursuant to art. 19 of Legislative Decree 39/2046,conducted oversight duties provided
therein on: a) the disclosing of financial inforioat b) effectiveness of the internal control,
internal audit and risk management systems; cytdteitory audit of annual and consolidated
financial statements; d) independence of the Audim, through direct observation,
information gathered from the managers of the depats concerned, and analysis of the
results of the activities conducted by the Audiinkiln such context, we took note of the
guarterly audits performed by the Audit Firm to wmesthat the accounts were kept on a
regular basis; from the Audit Firm, we received Reports prescribed by art. 14 and by art.
19, paragraph 3, of Legislative Decree n 39/2080wall as the “Annual confirmation of
independence” pursuant to art. 17, paragraph 8, dgtof Legislative Decree n. 39/2010;
pursuant to art. 17, paragraph 9, lett. a) of $2édree, we analyzed the risks regarding
independence of the Audit Firm and the measuraddpted to constrain such risks;

during the regular meetings held with the Auditkipursuant to the provisions of art. 150,
paragraph 3, of Legislative Decree 58/1998, no@speEmerged regarding issues within our
responsibility;

we controlled the proper functioning of the audistem on Group companies and the
appropriateness of instructions given to them, yanms also to art. 114, paragraph 2, of
Legislative Decree n. 58/1998;

we controlled the activities being undertaken tolatp the Organization, Management and
Control Model under Legislative Decree n. 231/2001order to implement the recent
changes in legislation on “liable offences” prowdder under the Decree;

we oversaw compliance of the Procedure for Rel&ady Transactions adopted by the
Company through specific Regulations;

we verified the appropriateness of information rdgey transactions with related parties or
intra-group companies, held in the explanatory :iotethe IAS/IFRS consolidated financial
statements of the Cairo Communication Group andh® IAS/IFRS separate financial
statements of Cairo Communication S.p.A., considerine size and structure of the
Company;

we controlled the implementation processes of aatgogovernance rules prescribed by the
Code of Conduct of listed companies issued by Bdta&éna S.p.A., as adopted by the

Company;



* we oversaw the disclosing of financial informatemd verified compliance with the laws and
regulations on the preparation and layout of thpasse and consolidated financial
statements, as well as the documents attachedtdaheBpecifically, the separate and
consolidated financial statements are accompanigdthe prescribed statements of
conformity signed by the Chairman of the Board akBtors and by the Financial Reporting
Manager, pursuant to art. 81-ter of Consob Regulatino. 11971 of 14 May 1999 and
subsequent amendments and supplements thereto;

e we assessed appropriateness, in terms of methdte dmpairment testing put in place to

verify the existence of a loss in value, if anythe booked investment in Dmail Group S.p.A.

The specific indications to provide with this Repare listed below, in accordance with the
provisions of the above-mentioned CONSOB Commuinnadf 6 April 2001 and subsequent

amendments:

1.  We gathered information on the transactionsgoitg and financial relevance made during
the period, also through subsidiaries, to verifyt ttney were made in compliance with the
laws and bylaws and that they were neither imprudesuch as to jeopardize the integrity
of corporate assets. We certify that, to the béstuo knowledge, these transactions were
based on principles of proper governance and ligaissues regarding potential or possible

conflicts of interest were carefully assessed.

2.  We received no report of atypical and/or unudsmahsactions made during the year,
including intra-group transactions or transactiongth related parties. Intragroup
transactions or transactions with related partfesncordinary nature, as well as their main
financial effects, are illustrated in the DirectoReport on Operations and in the
explanatory notes to the separate and consolidatedcial statements. The Board of
Auditors assessed that such transactions comply thvé laws and bylaws, are in keeping
with the Company’s interest, and are not likelgiee rise to doubts regarding the accuracy
and completeness of the disclosure provided infittencial statements, the existence of
conflicts of interest, safeguarding of company #ssand protection of minority
shareholders.

3. In our view, the information provided by the @&itors in their Report, pursuant to art. 2428
of the Civil Code (Report on Operations), regardialyo atypical and/or unusual
transactions and ordinary operations, under thevigue point, is to be considered
exhaustive and complete.

4.  the Audit Firm, KPMG S.p.A., with which we helégular meetings during the year,
assigned the task of carrying out statutory auglitinday issued the audit reports under art.
14 of Legislative Decree n. 39/2010, on the sepamatl consolidated financial statements

as at 31 December 2011, including the audit opipunsuant to art. 14, paragraph 2, lett. e)



10.

11.

of Legislative Decree n. 39/2010 and to art. 128 di Legislative Decree n. 58/1998.

These reports do not contain any issues of no¢g@anatory paragraphs.

there were no omissions, reprehensible facisr@gularities reportable to the competent

authorities or to the supervisory bodies, or wodhynention in this Report.
no complaints were received pursuant to art8 2@he Civil Code.
no opinions were issued pursuant to the law.

During the year, the Company, in compliance wiith laws, assigned KPMG S.p.A. the
additional task, besides statutory auditing, ofeasig and issuing an opinion on the

distribution of an interim dividend, pursuant to. &433-bis of the Civil Code.

There are no reports of tasks assigned to sulifeatsare part of the “network” of the Audit
Firm KPMG S.p.A.

During the year, seven meetings of the Board ok@ars were held, two of the Audit
Committee and five of the Board of Auditors.

The Compensation Committee met twice during 2011.

The Parent Company Financial Statements and thedlidated Financial Statements are
prepared in accordance with the international acting standards (IFRS) issued by the
International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) aapproved by the European Union,
and in accordance with the provisions issued inlémgntation of art. 9 of Legislative

Decree no. 38/2005.

All the above being stated, the Board of Auditagsldres, to the extent of its responsibilitiest tha

there are no reasons for impeding the approvaheffinancial statements as at 31 December

2011, and that there are no observations on thgopab to allocate profit for the year, including

the proposal for dividend distribution held in tidrectors’ Report on Operations to the

IAS/IFRS separate financial statements of Cairo @amication S.p.A. prepared by the Board of

Directors.

Milano, 3 April 2012

Statutory Auditors

Marco Moroni (Chairman)

Marco Giuliani

Maria Pia Maspes



The following page provides a list of the positimisadministration and supervision held by the

members of the Board of Auditors in other compariest the issue date of the Report (Annex

pursuant to art. 144 quinquiedecies of the IssltRegjulations).

ANNEX TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF AUDITORS OF CAI RO COMMUNICATION SPA
DRAWN UP PURSUANT TO ART. 153 OF LEGISLATIVE DECREE 58/98

List of positions held in Companies as per Book Vlitle V, Chapters V, VI and VII of the Civil Code,
as at the issue date of the Report
(art. 144-quinquiesdecies Consob Regulations 11999)

Until approval of the

N. Company Name Position fi .
inancial statements
Dott. Marco Moroni ( Chairman of the Board of Auditors)
1 Aerotecnica Star Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2013
2 Aston & Cooper Srl Statutory Auditor 31/12/2013
3 Betfair Italia Srl Statutory Auditor 31/12/2012
4 Cairo Communication Spa Chairman of the Board adifass 31/12/2013
5 Cairo Editore Spa Chairman of the Board of Auditors 31/12/2013
6 Cairo Pubblicita’ Chairman of the Board of Auditors 31/12/2012
7 Dataprocess Holding Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12R01
8 Elettrodelta S.P.A. in liquidation Statutory Audito 31/12/2011
9 Locauto Rent Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2012
10 Locauto Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2012
11 Publicitas International Spa Statutory Auditor 2012
12 Revicom Srl Chairman of the Board Until revocation
13 Sony Music Entertainment Italy Spa Statutory Audito 31/12/2013
14 Tec ltalia Srl Chairman of the Board of Auditors 31/03/2013
15 Ut Communications Spa Chairman of the Board of fardi 31/12/2013

Number of positions held in issuing companies
Total number of positions held

15

1

Until approval of the financial

N. Company Name Position
statements
Dott.ssa Maria Pia Maspes Statutorv Auditor )
1 Cairo Pubblicita Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2012
2 Caminetti Montegrappa Srl Chairman of the Boarduaditors 31/12/2012
3 G.B.H. Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2012
4 Cairo Communication Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12201
5 Cairo Editore Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2013
6 Ut Communications Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2013
7 Alto Partners SGR Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2012
8 lItalholding Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2012
9 Immobiliare Andronica Spa Statutory Auditor 31/112
10 Torino Fc Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2013
11 Eurofly Services Statutory Auditor 31/12/2013
12 CRE - Centro ricerche ecologiche Statutory Auditor 31/12/2012

Number of positions held in issuing companies
total number of positions held




Until approval of the

N. Company Name Position p .
inancial statements
Dott. Marco Giuliani (Statutorv Auditor)
1 Banca Mediolanum Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2011
2 Rothschild Italia Spa Statutory Auditor 31/03/2013
3 Marsh Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2011
4 Cairo Communication Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/r01
5 Orient —Express Hotels Italia Srl Chairman of theaBl of Auditors 31/12/2011
6 Yara ltalia Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2011
7 Banca Esperia Spa Statutory Auditor 31/12/2011
8 Ali Spa Statutory Auditor 31/08/2012
9 Mediolanum GESTIONI Fondi Spa Statutory Auditor P012
10 Hotel Cipriani Srl Chairman of the Board of Audsgor 31/12/2013

Number of positions held in issuing companies

Total number of positions held

10
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(Translation from the Italian original which remains the definitive version)

Report of the auditors in accordance with articles 14 and 16 of
Legislative decree no. 39 of 27 January 2010

To the shareholders of
Cairo Communication S.p.A.

1

We have audited the separate financial statements of Cairo Communication S.p.A. as at
and for the year ended 31 December 2011, comprising the statement of financial position,
income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity,
statement of cash flows and notes thereto. The company’s directors are responsible for
the preparation of these financial statements in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards endorsed by the European Union and the Italian
regulations implementing article 9 of Legislative decree no. 38/05. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards recommended by
Consob, the Italian Commission for Listed Companies and the Stock Exchange. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the separate financial statements are free of material misstatement and are, as a
whole, reliable. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by directors. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Reference should be made to the teport of other auditors dated 4 April 2011 for their
opinion on the prior year separate financial statements, which included the corresponding
figures presented for comparative purposes.

In our opinion, the separate financial statements of Cairo Communication S.p.A. as at
and for the year ended 31 December 2011 comply with the International Financial
Reporting Standards endorsed by the European Union and the Italian regulations
implementing article 9 of Legislative decree no. 38/05. Therefore, they are clearly stated
and give a true and fair view of the financial position of Cairo Communication S.p.A. as
at 31 December 2011, the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Societa per azion}
Capitale sociale
Euro 7625.700,00 iv.

Ancona Aosta Bari Bergamo Registro Imprese Milano e

KPMG S.p.A. & una societa per azioni di diritto italiano e fa parte del
network KPMG di entitd indipendenti affiliate a KPMG International
Cooperative {(“KPMG International”), entita di diritto svizzero

Bologna Bolzano Brescia Cagliari
Catania Como Firenze Genova
Lecce Milana Napoli Novara
Padova Palermo Parma Perugia
Pescara Roma Torino Treviso
Trieste Udine Varese Verona

Codice Fiscale N 00709600159
R.E A Milano N. 512867
Partita IVA 00709600169

VAT number IT00709600159
Sede legale: Via Vittor Pisani, 256
20124 Milano MI ITALIA



A

Cairo Communication S.p.A.
Report of the audiiors
31 December 2011

4 The directors of Cairo Communication S.p.A. are responsible for the preparation of a
directors’ report on the financial statements in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consistency of the
directors’ report and its specific section on corporate governance and ownership
structure, to the extent of the information required by article 123-bis.1.c/d/f/l/m and
article 123-bis.2.b of Legislative decree no. 58/98 with the financial statements to which
they refer, as required by the law. For this purpose, we have performed the procedures
required by the Italian Standard on Auditing 001 issued by the Italian Accounting
Profession and recommended by Consob. In our opinion, the directors’ report and the
information required by article 123-bis.1.c/d/f/l/m and article 123-bis.2.b of Legislative
decree no. 58/98 disclosed in the specific section of such report are consistent with the
separate financial statements of Cairo Communication S.p.A. as at and for the year ended
31 December 2011.

Milan, 3 April 2012

KPMG S.p.A.
(signed on the original)

Francesco Spadaro
Director





